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Independent Auditor's Repo.t

Basis for Opinion

To
The Members of Hindon M€rcantile Limited
Reporton theAudit of the Standalon€ financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial state ments of H indon Mercantite Limited
("th€ Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at t4arch 31, 2022. the Statement of profit
and Loss (including OtherComprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Ftows and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the standatone financiat statements
including a summary of siqnificant accounting policies and other exptanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as \the standalone financial statements').

in ouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the inJormation required by the Companies Act. 2013 C.the Act,J in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Srandards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rutes,
2015, as amended, C'Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally acc€pt€d in India, of the state of
affairs ofthe Company as at I\4arch 31,2022 and its profit, totalcomprehensiveincomer cash flows and the
chanqes in equity for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) ofthe Act, Our responsibilitjes under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standatone financiat statements
Section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia (!CAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rutes
made thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibitities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAIT Code ofEthics. We believe that the aud,t evidence obtained bv us is sufficienr
and appropflaLe to provide a basis for our opinion.

InformationOtherthantheStandalone financialstatements and Auditor,s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Boardt Report and its annexuresr but does not
include the standalone financial siatements and our auditor,s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit ofthe standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read th€ other
information and, in doing so, .onsider whether the other information is materiatty inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we r€iad the other information, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those aharged with governance as required under SA 720'The
Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Other hformation'. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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I',lanagement's Responsibitity for the Standatone f inanciat statements

The Company's Board of Diredors are respon$bte for the matiers stated in Section 134(S) of ihe Act with
respect to the preparation of these standatone financial statements that give a true a;d fair view of thefinancial position, financial performance incruding other comprehensive i;come, cash flows and changes
in equity of ihe Company in accordance with the Ind AS and ihe accounLing princrptes genera y accepied
in India, This responsibility arso incrudes marntenance of adequate accountinq records in accoroance withthe provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and fir preventing and detectingfrauds and other irregutarities; setection and application of upp-p'riut. u..ornting p-olicies; mat<inijudgments and estimat€s that are reasonable and prudent; and d;is;, imptementaiio"n ano maintenance
of adequate inte-rnal financial controts, thar were operahng effeativety ior ensurinq the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, rerevant to rhe pr;paratron ana presentati6n of the financiarstatement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatementr whether due to fraud

In preparinq the standarone financiar statements, the Board of Directors are responsibre for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disctosing, as applicable to the bomp;;y, matters retatedto going concern and using the goinq concern basis of accounting unress management either intends toliquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no r€alistic ;kernative butio do so.

The Board of Directors are atso responsibte for overseeing the Companyt financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit ofthe Standatone financiat stat€ments

our objectives are to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the standatone financiat statementsas a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to iraud or error, and to issue anauditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonabte assurance js a rrign tevel of assurance, but isnot a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with sAs w][ arways detect a materiarmisstatement when it exists. I\4isstatements can arise from fraud or error and ar; considered materiarrf, individually or rn the agsreqate, Lhey coutd reasonabty be expecred to infL;;ce the €conomic
oecrsrons or users taten on rhe basis ot these standatone tinanciat staremenls.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, u/e exercise
professional skepticism throughour rhe audir. We atso:

professional judgment and maintain

Identify and assess the risks of materiar misstatement of the standalone financiar statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to ttrose rist<s, anaobtain audit evidence that is surficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The riskof notdetecting a materiat misstatement resuiting from fr;ud rs higherthan foronJiesuttins from
erro!-, as fraud may involve cottuslon, forgery, intentional omissi6ns, misrepresentations, or theoverride of internal controts.

obtain an understandrng of internar financiar contrors rerevant to the audit in orderto design auditprocedures that are approprjare in the circumstances. under Section 1a3(3)(i) o; th; Act, we are
also responsibre for expressing our opinion on whetherthe company has aieiiite internarrnanciat
controls with reference to the standalone financiat statements in place and the ope.atjng
effec1iveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabteness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors, use of the going concern basis ofaccounting andr based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a ma;riai uncertainty existsrelated to events or conditions that may cast signficant doubt on the Company,s abitity tocontinue as a going concern. If we conctude ihat a materiat uncertainty exists, we are requiredto draw attention in our auditor's reporr to the rerated discrosures in ihe sra;daione nnanciarstatements or, if such disctosures are inadequate,to modifyouropinion. ourconctusions are oasea
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor,s report. ttowever, future events orconditions rnay cause the Company to cease to continue as a goi;g concern.
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' Evaluate the overarr presentationr structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whethe. the standatone financiat statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentatjon.

We communicate with those charqed wjth governance regardrng, among other matLers, the ptanned
scope and timinq ofthe audit and significant audit findings, in;tuding any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provrde those charged wrth governance with a statement that we have complied withrelevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thouqht to bear on our independence.
and where applicable to the Company, retated safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. w€ determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of tha standar;ne financi;l statements for the financialyear ended l\4arch 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disctosure about the matter or when, in
e)Gremelv rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so woutd reasonabty be expected to outweigh the pubtic
interest benefits of such communication-

Other Matters
1. The comparative frnanciat informatisn of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2O2r and

the opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2020 inctuded in these standatone financiat statements,
have been preparcd bythe management after adjusting the previously issued financialstatements
prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to compty with
Ind aS. The previousty issued financiat statements wer; audited bi M/s. iCS: a Co., ctrarterea
Accountanrs and their repori for the financiat year end€d t4arch j1. 2020 and t4arcli 31, 2021
dated December 09, 2O2O and October 23, 2021 respectivety expressed an unmodified opjnion
on those financiar statements, Adjustments made to the previousrv issued financiar statements to
comply with ind AS have been audited by us. Our opinion on the standElone financiat statements
is not modified in respect of the above matters on the comparative finan€iat information.

2. We draw attention to Note 42 to the standatone financiat staLemenrs in which the Company
describes the unceriainties arising from the Covid-19 pandemic. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regutatory Requiremehk
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor,s Report) Order, 2020 ('.the Order,,) issued by the Centrat

Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in An;exure .,A; a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent appticable to the
Company.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:a) we have sought and obtained all the information and exptanitions which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of profit and Loss inctuding Other Comprehensive income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Eq;ity deait witit Oy tt i. aeport uru
in agreement wjth the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standatone financial statements compty with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, as apptiabte to the Company;

e) on the basis of the written reprcsentations received ilom the directors and taken on record by
the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disquatified as on t4arch 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the AcU
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t) with respectto the adequacy ofthe internalfrnancialcontrols with reference to these siandalone
financlal statements and the operating eff€ctiveness of such controls, refer to our s€parate
Report in Annexure "B" Lo this rFporr:

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended. in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the company has not paid/ provided any managerial remuneration
covered under Section 197 ofthe Act to its directors during the year.

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

i. The Company does not have any pendinq litigations as at March 31, 2022 having impact
on its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeabl€ losses.

iii- There was no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Prote€tion Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2022.

ir (a) The management of the Company has represented that, to the best oftheir knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from the borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind offunds) by the Company to or in any person or entity includlng foreign
entity ("intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company C'Ultimate
Beneficiaries') or provide any suaranteer security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

(b) The Management ofth€ company has represented that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aqgregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity CFunding
Party") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall directly or indirectly/ lend or invest in other persons orentities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered r€asonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, performed by us on the Company, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-Clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mlsstatement.

For RSD & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012777N

I Y -u!,AVr
PURNI[,IA GOEL

lYembership No,526051
UDIN - 22526051At1(MKS2321

New Delhi
September 30, 2022

v. The Company has not paid/proposed any dividend during/for the year.



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us. the property, ptant and Equipmeni
(lncluding Right of Use assets) have been physically verified by the management at the end of
the year and no material discrepancies were noiiced on such verification. Having regard to the
slze ofthe Company and the nature and ageing ofthe assets, in our opinion, the periodicity of
the physical verification is reasonable.

(c) The Company does not have immoveable property (other than immovable property where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreement is duty executed in favour of the Company).
Accordinsly. the clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the infonTation and explanations given to us, the Company
has not revalued any of its Properiy, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
inrangible assets or both dLring the yedr.

1i)

(b) According to the informaUon and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
workinq capital limit in excess of Rs, 5 crore. in agqregate from the banks during the year
against pledge of the securities of gold loan assets. The periodicat returns/statements fited by
the Company with such banks are in aqreement with the books of account ofthe Company.

(iii) The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company having principal business to qive toans
and make investments

(a) the clause 3(iii)(a) ofthe order is not applicable to the company.

(b) in our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the investments
made and the terms and conditions ofthe grant ofloans/advances in the nature of loans, prima
facie, are not prejudicial to the Companyt interest. There are no guarantees provided or
security given by the Company during the year.

(e) According to the information and €xplanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
ofthe records ofthe Company, no proceedings have been injtiated or are pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transacrions (prohibition) Act,
'o88 and rules made ihereunder.

(a) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordinqly, the clause 3(ii)(a) of rhe Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(c) In respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedute of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments or receipts have been
reqularas pe r stipu latio ns except in case of3005loan accounts having outstanding balances
aggregating to Rs. 3255.09 lakhs as at March 31, 2022 wherein the repayments of
principal and payments of interest are not regutar. Having regard to the nature of the
CompanyG business and the volume of information involved, it is not prasticabteto provide
an itemised list of the irreqular cases.

(d) In respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company. the
amount outstandinq in the accounts overdue for more than 90 days as at March 31, 2022
aq9regate to Rs. 389.09 Iakhs. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations qiven to usr reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of

Ann€xure'A' to the IndependentAuditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under'Report on Othei Legal and Regulatory Requirements, Section of our
report of €ven date to the members of Hindon M€rcantile Limit€d on the Standatone financial
statements for the year ended l..larch 31,2022)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showins full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property. Plant and Equipment and relevant details of Right of Use
assets. The Company has maintained proper records showing futl particutars of intangtbte
assets.
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the overdue principaland interest amount.

(e) The clause 3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has notgranted during
the year any loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) h our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 1a6 of the Act with resped of loans, investments,
guarantees and secunty, as applcable.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public on which the dlrectives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Section 73
to 75 o. any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder are appticabte.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us/ the maintenance of cost records has not
been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act for the Company.

(vii) h our opinion and accordinq to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the records examined by us:

(a) The Company has qenerally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and service tax, Provident Fund, Employees'State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess and
other statutory dues applicable to the Company with the appropriate authorities. There were
no undisputed amounts payable in respeci ofstatutory dues outstandinq as at IYarch 31, 2022
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There ar€ no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above, which have not been deposited
by the Company on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations qiven to us and on the basis of the records
examined by us, the Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the books ofaccount
but surrendered or disclosed as incom€ during the year in the tax assessment under the Income
Tax Act, 1961,

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the records of the Company examined by us,

(a) the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
or intcrest the.eon Lo any lender durinq the year:

(b) the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender;

(c) the term loans were applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the
loans were obtained;

(d) there are no transactions of funds raised by the Company on short term basis and utilized,
prima facie, for long term purposes during the year;

(e) the Company does not have any associate orjoint venture during the year. The Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries during the year,

(f) the Company does not have any joint venture or associate company during the year. The
Company has not raised any loan during the year on the pledge of the securities hetd in its
subsidiaries,
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(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company' has not raised any money by way of initial public otr€r or turther public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the clause 3(x)(a) oI the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

(b) In our opinion and accordinq to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the requirements ofSection 42 and Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of the preferential allotment/private placement of shares during the year and the
funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the tunds were ra'sed.

(xl) (a) To the best ofour knowledg€ and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to usr no report under Section 143(12) of
the Act has been filed by the auditors in form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistl€blower complaint has
been received by the Company during the year.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanatjons given to us, the Company is not
a Nidh' Company. Accordinqly, the clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the records examined by us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
177 and 1aa of the Act, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an intemal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(xi i)

(xiv)

(rO

(xvi)

(b) During thecourseofouraudit. we have considered the repo(s of the Internal Auditor issued
for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the records examined by us. the Company has not entered into any non-cash lransactions with its
directors or persons connected with them durinq the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations qiven to us, the Company is required to be
registered under Section 45-iA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the registration has
been obtained by the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a valid Certificate
of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the R€serve Bank of india Act,
1934 to conduct the Non-Bankinq financial activities.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no Core Investment
Company within the Group.

{xvi)The Company has not incurred cash losses n the f nancial year under aud t and n the mmediately
preceding financ al year.

(xviii)There has been resignation of the statutory auditor dur;ng the year and as informed and explained
to us, the outgoing auditor has not raised any issue, objection or concern.
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(xix) According to the information and exptanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the
finEncial ratios. ageing and expected dates of reat,zation offinanciat assets and payment offinancial
Iiabilities, other information accompanying the standatone financiatstatements and our knowtedqe
of the Board of Directors and tyanagement ptans and based on our examination ofthe eviden;e
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attentionr whi.h causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe audit report indicating thai Company is not capabte
of me€ting its liabilities existing at the date of batance sheet as and when they fa due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is n;t an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give anv guarantee noi any assurance that aI riabiriries
falljnq due within the period of one year from the batance sheet date, wi get discharged by the
Company as and when they fattdue.

(xx) in our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company was not
required to spend any amount on Corporate Sociat Responsibitity aCSR) retated activities during theyearunderreviewintermsoftheprovisionsofsection135oftheAct.Accordingty,thectausej(xx)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For RSD & CO.
Chariered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012777N

O^atlv*
PURl,,uMA GoEL

IYembership No.526051
UDIN - 22526051AYX|4KS2321

New Delhi
September 30, 2022

(xxi) Reporting under the crause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicabre to the standarone financiar



Annexure'B'tothe Indepehdent Auditor's R€port

(Referred to in paragraph 2(0 under'Report on Oiher Legal and Regulatory Requtrem ents' Section ofour report
of even date to the members of Hindon Mercantile Limit€d on the Standalone financial statements for
the year ended lqarch 31, 2022)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- S€ction
3 ofSection 143 of the Compani€s Act, 2013 (\he Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls Over financjal reporting of Hindon itercantile Limited
("the Company") as of I,4arch 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit ofthe standalone fin an cial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibilityfor Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaininq internal flnanciat controts
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria estabtished by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal Financial Controts
Over Financial Reporting ('the cuidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounrants of hdia
Cthe ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to companyt policies/ the safeguardinq of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timety
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Our responsibility is lo express an opinion on the Company's internat financiat controts over financiat
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with th€ Guidance Note issued by
the ICAI and the Siandards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial €ontrols. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabte assurance about
whether adequate internalfinancial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internat
financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financiat
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controts,
assessing the risk that a materialweakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or e.ror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriat€ to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal frnancial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Finan€ial Controls Over Finahcial R€porting

A company's internal financial control over financial reportlnq is a process desiqned to provide reasonabte
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepardtion of standalone financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internalfinancial controls over financial reporting includes those poticjes and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratety and fairty reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabl€ assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures ofthe
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, irse, ordisposition ofthe company's assets that could hav€ a materiat effect on the standalone
financialstatements,

/

Auditor's Responsibility
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Inherent Limitatiohs oflnternal Financial Controts Over Financiat Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internat financiat contrDls over financial reporting, including the
possibility ofcollusion or improper management override of controts, materiat misst;tements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
conirols over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internat financial controt
over financial reporting may become inadequate becauSe of changes in conditions. or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate or for other reasons.

opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, ihe Company
has, in all material respectsr an adequate internal Rnanciat controls system ovar financiat repo(ing and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating etreciively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the internal control over financiat reporting criteria establish;d by the C;mpany considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued bv the ICAI.

For RSD & CO.
Chartered Ac.ountants
F rm Registratlon No. 012777N

pu*lqff'* oo..

: l.mbersh p No.526051
JDI r - 22526051AYXf1KS2321

N€w Delhi
September 30, 2022
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HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
cIN U34300DL1985PLC021785
NOTtrS TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATtrMtrNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

1. corporat€information

2. Basis of P.eparation and Significant accounting policies

2.1 statement ofcompliance and Basis of Preparatlon and Presentation

2.2 Functional and Presentation Currenc'y

2.3 Basis of Measurement

Fakvalue measurements under lnd AS are categorised into
falr value measurements are obseruable and the slgnlfican

Hindon Merantile Limited (the company')is a Publrc Limited Company incorporated !nderthe provisions ofthe Companies

Act,1956 with its registered office in Delhito carryonthe business of a Non Public DepositAccepung Non-Banklng Finan.e
Company in Lndia,The Company is registered underSection 45-AofReserve Bankoflndia Act,1934.The Company holds a

vaLid Certificate of Registration (coRlfrom the Reserve Bank of India.Ihe registered office ofthe company is located at 201,

2d Floor, Best sky Tower, Plot No. F-5, Netaji Subhash Place, North west Delhi 110034, The company is engaged in the
business of Flnarcing €cuvities.

The Balance SheeLthe Statement of Profit and Loss andthe Statement ofChan8es in Equity are prepared and presented in
the format prescribed in the Division lllof Schedule lllto the Companies Act,2013 (the'Act"). The statement of cash Flows

has been prepared and presented as per lhe requirements of lnd AS 7 "Statement of Cash Fows". The Balance Sheet,

Statement of Profit and Loss, statement of cash Flows and Statement of changes in Equity are together referred as the
flnancial statements of the Company,

The financia statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 are the flrst flnancials with comparatives, prepared under lnd
As. Effective Apri l,202l,thecompanyhasadoptedallthelndAsstandardsandtheadoptionwascarnedoutinaccordance
wlth lndAS l0l FlrstTlme Adoption of idlan AccountinE Standards, withApril1,2020 asthetransition date,Ihetransition
wascarriedoutfromthe ndian AccoLntirg Principle genera lyaccepted in ndia as prescrlbed undersecuon 133 ofthe Ad
read with Rule 7 of the companies {Accounts) Rules,2014 ('Previous GAAP'). Refer Note 43 for an expanation of howthe
transtion from previous GAAP to Lnd As has affeded the Flnancial Position, Financlal Perforrnance and Cash Flows ofthe

The fina ncia I natements ofthe company are prepared jn accordance with the companies (lndianAccountine Stardard, Rules,

2015 underSection 133ofActand relevaftamendmentrules issued thereafter(" nd AS").

The financial statements are prepared a,rd presented on going corcern basis and the relevant provisions of Act and the

suldelinesand directives issL,ed bythe Reserue Bankof lndia (RBL)ora.y otherauthority, to the extent applicable.

Amounts in the financia I statements are presented in lrdian Rupees in lakhs rounded offto two decimalplacesas permitted by

Schedule nrtothe Acr. Pershare data is presented in lndian Rupeetotwo decimal places. The compa ny presents lts Balanc-"

5heetinthe order of llquld ity.

Accounting policles are consistently applied except where a newly-issued lnd As initially adopted ora revision to an existinE

lnd AS requires a change in the accounting pohcy.

The financialstatements are presented in lndian Rupees (Rs.)which is the fundiona and the presentation currercyofthe
Compa.y and allvaLresare rounded to the nearest lakhswith two decimals, exceptwhen otherwise indicated,

The j nancla statehents have been prepared on h stor.al .ost basis ex.ept for c€.ta n financia nstruments that are
measured at ia r v.lues.

A historlcalcost is a measure ofvalue used for accounting in whkh the price of an asset on the balance sheet is based on lts
hlstofica cost, jt is generalyfalrvalue ofconsideration given in exchange forgoods andseruices at the time of transaction or
original cost when acquired by the Company-

Fair valLe ls the price that llkely to be received on sell of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transadion
between market pa rticipa nG on the measurement date, regard ess of whether that price is direcdy obsevable orestimated
uslnB anotherva uation technique. nestimatin8thefalrvalueofanassetora liabi ity,the Company takes into account the
characterlstics of the assetor liabililythat market participants would take into account when pricingthe asset or liability at
the measLrement date. Fair value for measurement and/ordisclosure purposes in the financial statements is determined on
such a basls, exceptfor leasingtransactionsthat are within the scope of lnd AS 116 Leases.

based on the degreetowhlchthe inputs to the
the fair value measurement in its ertirety,

kDgLH\

which a.e described as foLlows:
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HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
cIN t134300DLl 98sPr,C021 785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINAICIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ItrARCH 3I,2022

Level 1 quoted prlces {uradjusted) in adlve markets for identic.l assets or liabiliues that the Companycan access on

Level2 inputs, otherlhan quoted prices induded within level 1, that are obseruable for the asset orliability/ either diredy

Level3 where unobsetuable iiputs are usedforthe valuation of assets or iabiiities.

The preparation of the fiancial statements ln conlormity with tndian Accounring Standards {"tnd A5") requnes the
management to make esumates, judgemeits and a$umptions. These estirnates, judeements and assumptio.s affect the
applicauon of accounting pollcies and the .eponed amounts of asets:rd liabilities, the disdosure ofcontingent a$ets and
iabilities at the date of the financiai statements and the reported amo!nts of revenues and expenses during the year.

Accounting estim.tes could change lrom period to perlod,Actual results could differ from those estimates, Revisions to
accounting estimates are r€cognised prospectiveiy. The Management believes rhat the estimates used in preparation ofthe
financialstatements are prudent andreasonable, Futurc resuLts could differ due to these esumates and the differences
between the actualresu tsand the estimates are recognised ln the perlods ln whlch the resu ts are known/ materialise. Sorne
of the areas involvlns sisnificant estimation / judgernent are determin:uon of Eipected Credit Loss, fajr vatuation of
Investments, lncome taxes and employee benefits.

2,5 SignificantAccounting Policies

2,5.1 Rev€nueRecognition

Revenue ls recognised to the extent that it ls probable thatthe economic benefits wi lfowto the Company a.d the revenue
can be re iably measured and there exists reasorable certainty of its recovery,

lnterest income on flnancial instruments ls recognlsed on a lime proponion baslstaking into accouftthe amount outstandins
and the effective inrerest rate ('E R") applicable,

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument through theexpected life of
the flnancial instrument or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount. The future cash fows are
estimated takinE into account allthe contractua terrns olthe instrument.

Theca culation ofthe EIR inc udesallfees paid or received between parties to the contractthat are incrementa and directly
attributable to the speclf c lendlng arrangement, transaction costs, and a tother premiums or discountj. Forfinanciatassets
heasured atfairvalue throlgh proflt and loss ("FWPL")/ transacuon cotts arerecognised in the statement of profit and toss

lnterest incorne/expenses is calculated by applylng the EtR to rhe gross carryinB amount of non-c.edit impairedfinancial
a$ets/llabllities (1.e. atthe amortised cost ofthe flnancialasset before adjusrinsfor any expected credtt toss aflowance). For
credit impalred financialasrets, interest lncome is calcul:ted by apptyirgthe EtR to the amorrised cost ofthe credit-tmpatred
flnancia I a$ets (i.e. the gro$ ca rryine . mou nt les the allowa ncefo r expected credit o$er.

2.5,t,2

Divldend income s recoSnlsed when the Company's rightto receive dtyidend is establkhed.

2,5.1.3 Fee and Commission lncome

Fee and commission income include fees otherthan those thar are an tnte8ratpart of ErR. The Company recognises the fee
and commissioi income ln accordance wirh rheterms ofthe reievanr conrrads / agreement and when it is prob:be that the
companywl I colLectthe corsideration.

2.5,1,4

Other lncome represents in.ome earned from the activiUes tncidenratro the business and is recognised when the rtght to
recelve the income is established as perthe terms of the con

r

2.4 Use ot Estimates and ,udgements
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HINDON MERCA]'ITILE LIMTTED
ctN u3430oDL1985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EI\'DED MARCH 31,2022

2.5.2 Financial lnstruments

Fat val!ation of lnvestments

someoftheCompany'slnvestmentsaremeasuredatfalrvalue,lndeterminingthefairvaueofsuch nvestmerts, the Com pa nv

usesquoted pices(unadjusted)in active marketsforidenticalassetsorbased on inputs which are obseruable eithe r directly

or indlrecrly. However in certain cases, the Conrpany adoptsvaluation techniques:nd inputs which are not b:sed on market

data-when Marketobseruable iniormation is notavailable,the Company hasapp ied appropriatevaluation techniques and

inputs to the valuation modeL.

2,5,2.2 RecognitionandhitialMeasurement

All financial assets and liabillties, wlththe excepuon ofloans and borrowings are inltiallv recogrised on the trade date, i.e.,

the datethatthe company becomes a pany to the contractualprovlsions ofthe instrument.

Loans are recognised when fund transfer is initiated or disbursement cheque is issued to the customer. The Companv

recognises borrowlngs (other than debt securitie, when funds are received bythe cornpanv.

Fi.ancialassets and financia liabillties are lniuaLly rneasured at falrva ue, Transaction costs and revenueslhat are directly

atlributabte to the acquisirion or issue of flnancia assets and flnanclal liabi iues (other thar financlal a$ets and financlaL

Liabttities measured at FVIPL) are added to or deduded from the fair value of the financialassets orfinancialliabillties, as

appropriate,on initial recognirior, Transaction costsand revenues directly attributable to the acqlisltion oflinancialassets or

financial liabilities measured at FVTPLarerecognised lmmediately in the statement of profit and loss

2,5,2.3 Classificatio. and tubsequent Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabllities

2.5.2,3.1 FindnciolAs*ts

The company classlfies and measures all its financlalassets based on the buslness modelfor managinsthe assets and the

asset's contractual terms, either at:

Fairvalue through other comprehensive income
FairValue through Profitand Loss

2. 1- 2. 3- 7. 7 Amonised Cost

The company cla$ifles and meastres cash and bank balances, Loans, Trade receivable, certain debtinvestments and

otherfinancia assets at amorused cost ifthefo lowing condition h met:

Financiat Assets thar are held within a buslness model whose objective k to hold financial assets inorder to colect the

cont.a.tualcash fLows, and that have contradua cash flows that are SPPI;

2.5.2.3.7.2 Fdit Volue thrcugh othet Comprchensive In@ne ("Fvoct")

The company ctassifies and measures certain debt instruments at FVOC|when the investments are heLd withina busine$

modet,theobjecriveofwhich is achieved byboth, colledinscontractualcashflowsand sellingthe financial instrumerts and the

conrractua terms of the flnancial irstruments meet the Soley Payment ofPrincipal and lnterest on principal amount

outstarding ('5PPl) test.

The Company measures alLequity jnvestmerts atfairvalue through profit or oss, un ess the investments ls notfortrading

and the companyt management has elected to dassify itrevocabLy some of its equity instruments at FVOCI, when such

instruments meetthe definirion of Equity under lnd as 32 Financial lnstruments: Presentation and are not held fortrading.

Such clasifk;tion is determined on ar irstrurirent by instrument basis.

2,5,2.3.7,3 Fdir vdlue throush Ptolit dn.l Loss ("twPL")

Flnanc a a$ets at FVTPL.re:
assets w th co.rractualcashfowsthatare notsPP rand/or
assets that are held r a busl.ess mode other than he d to coLleci contractlal cash flows or heLd to co ect:.d se I or

rhese assets are measured at fair value, with any Salns/loses arisi

=

*

ent ls recognised ir the statement

assets designated at FWPL usinS the fairvalue option.

I gv k



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
crN u34300DLr985PLC02178s
NOTES TO T}IE STANDALONE FINATJCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31.2022

2.5.2,4 Evaluation of Businers Model

classification and measurement of firanctal instruments depends on the resutts of the sote y payments of princlpat and
lnterest on the principal amount outstanding ("SPpt") and the blsine$ mode test (refer note 2_5.2.4.1).The aompany
determi.esthe business modelat a levelthat reftects howthe companyt fiianciat instruments are managed together to
achleve a particular business objective.

The companv monitoB financiala$ets measu.ed at amortsed cost orfair value rhrough orher comprehensive income that are
de.ecognised priorto their maturityto understard the reason forrheir dGposatand whetherthe reasons are consistentwjth
the objecuve of the business for which the asset was he d. Monitoring is partofthe company's continuous assessr.ent of
whetherthe busrness modelfor which the remaining financiatassets are hetd continues ro be:ppropriate and if it is not
appropri:te whetherthere has been a change in business hodet and so a prospective chanee to the ctassification of those

2.5.2,4.1 BusinessModelfest

rhe companvconsrde* allre evant information and evidence avaitabte when makingthe business modera$essment such

an asse$ment of business modeifor manaSirgfinancialassets rs fundamentalro the classification ofa finarcjataset. The
companv determlnes the business model at a tevet rh2t refteds how financiat a$ets are managed toSether to achieve a
particular busrness objectrve, The co.npanv's business modetdoes not depend on nranagement,s tntenrionsforan individuat
lnstrumenl therefore the busine$ modet a$essmentis pedormed at a higher tevet of asgregation rather than on an
instrLment-by-instrument basis,

how the performa.ce of the business model and the ftnancia assets he d within that business mode are ev.tuated and
reponed to the company's key manaSement personnelj
the risksthat aflecfthe perforrnance of the busine$ modet(and rhe financiatasets hetd within that busines modet)and,
in particular, the way tn which those risks are managed,:.d
how manage. of the business are compensated (e.e. whether the compensation is based on the fairvatue ofthe asets
mrnagFd or or the,ortractudl,".h f'ows Lotteneo).

Atinitialrecognition ofa Jinancialasse! the Company determines whether newly recognisedfinanciatasseb are part of.. etisting
business model or whether rhey reflect a new bus:ness model. The company reassesses it,s business modet at each reporting
periodto determine whetherthe busines modelhas changed sincetheprecedins period. Forthe curent and prior reporting
period the company has not identified a change in its business nrodel.

solely Payments of Princip.land tnte.ert {,,sppt,,) on th€ princlpatemount outstanding

For an:ssetto be classified and measured.tamortised cost or at Fvocr, its contractuatterms shoutd Bive rise to cash ftows

Forthe purposeofsPPtrest, principa isrhefairvatueofthefinanciatassetatinitiatrecognition,Thatprincipatamountmay
chanse overthe life ofthe financialasset {e.8. ifthere are repayments of prtncipat). rnrerest consisrs of consideration forthe
time vaiue of money, for the credit risk associated wtth rhe prrncrpat amountoutstandtng during a particutar period ofume
and lorotherbasic lendiig risks and costs, as wettas a profit margin.

contactualtermsthatlntroduceexposuretorisksorvolatiitylnthecontractuacashftowsth.tareunrelatedtoabasicending
atrangement, such as exposureto changesin equityprices orcomrnodity prices, do norgiverise to contractualcash ftows that
are sPP, such flnancial assets are either ctassitied as fair vatue through profit & toss account or fair vatue through other
comprehensive income.

2.5,2.4.1,1 Subsequent Measurement and Gain and tosses

Finohcidl AsseB dt Amottised Cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost usirgthe effect ve tnterest method. The amorrjsedcost is reduced
by rnpairment losses. nterest incor.e and tmpairment
on derecognition is recognised in statement of proft a

ised in statemertofprofit and loss. Any gain or toss

Oebt lnstunent ot FVOCT

0 S*}-
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HINDON MtrRCANTILE LIMITED
cIN U34300DL1 985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDf,D ]\LARCH 31,2022

These assets are subsequently measured atfairvalue.lnterest income and impairmert loss are recogrised in statementof
proiitand oss-AnyEain orlosson subsequent measurementls recognised in OCland on derecognltion the c!mulative gain

or loss recognised in OCI will be recycled to statement of proflt and loss.

Equity lastuheht dt Fvocl

Findnciol Assets dt FWPL

2.5.2.4.1,2 Reclassifi.ations

2.5.2,4.2 Financial Liabilities and Equity hstruments

2,5.2.42.1 cldssiJkdtion ds Debt or Equity

2,5,2.42.2 EquiLytnsttunents

2.5.24.2.3 Subsequent Meosurenent dnd Goin dnd Lo*es

lnpairment and Write-off

Equlty instruments are measured.tfairvalue and not subjed to an impakment loss,

EcLis requted to be measured throush a lossaliowa

Gains a.d loses on equity instrurne.ts measLred at Fvocl are recognised in other comprehensive income and never

recycled to the statementof profit and Loss. Dividends a.e recognised in profitor lossas dividend income when the rightto
receive payment has been established, except when the Company berefits from such proceeds.s a recovery ofwhole or
partofthe cost ofthe instrument, in which case, slch Sainsare recorded in ocl Equityinstruments at Fvoclare fairvalued

at each reportine date and not subjectto an impairment assessment.

These assets are subseqlrently measured at fair value. Net Sain or losses, lncluding any irterest or dividend income, are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

tfthe busines modelunder whkh the Company holds financialassets chanses, the firancialassets affected are reclasslfled.

The c assificatior and measo.ement requirements re ated to the new category:pp y prospectively from the flrst day ofthe
first reponirs perlod folowingthe change in brslne$ modelthat resu tin recLasslfying the companyt finarcial assets.

A ftnancial liabillty is a contractua obligation to dellver cash or another linancial asset or to exchange financial assets or

financlalliabiitieswithanotherenutyunderconditionsthatarepotentiallyunfavourabletothecompanyo.acontractthat
willor rnay be settled in the compary's own equity lnstrumenis andis a non_derivative contract for whkh the Companv is

or may be obllged to deliver a variabie number oflts own equityinstrumerts, ora derivative contract over own equitythat
witlor may be settled other than by theexchanse of a flxed amount of cash (or anotherfinancjalasset)for a fixed rumber of
the companv's own equity lnstruments.

Anequiryinstrumentisanycontractthatevidencesaresidualinterestintheassebofanentityafterdeductirgallofltsliabilities.
Equityinstruments issued bythe companyare recognised atthefacevalue and proceeds received in ercess of the face value

are recognised as secufities Premium.

Financial liabiiUes are subsequenty measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, lnterestexpens-" is

recosnised in statement of profit and loss. Anysain or loss on derecognltion is recognhed in statement of proflt and los.

2,5.2.5

The Companv recosnlses oss a ow.nces for Expected Cred t Loses on the fo ow ng flna.c a instruments that are not

Loans and advances to customers;

Otherflnanciai assets;

12'rnonth ECL, 1.e., lossallowance on defaultevents
the rcpoding date, (refered to as stase 1)i or

ancialinstumentthatare poss ble withinl2 nronths after

LHI k{
*

Debt and eqlity innruments thai are issued are classified as elther financial iabilities or as equity i. accordance wlth the

sLbstance of the contractua I a rc rgement.
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HIN'DON MERCANTILE LIMITED
cIN U34300DL1985PLC021?85
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EN'DED MARCH 3I -2022

a loss a lowance for lifetime ECL is required for a financialinstrument ifthe credlt risk on thatfinanciai instrument has incrcased
slgnifica.tlysince initialrecognition. Foral orherfiranclatinstruments, ECLis measured ar an amount equatro the 12 month
ECL.

The Company has established a poilcy ro perform an assessment at the end of each reporting pertod whether a financiat
instrumentt credit risk has increased slgnificantty since inltiat recogniton by constdertngthe change in the rkk of defautt
occuringoverthe remaining life of thefinancial insrruments.

sased on the above process, rhe Company categorises its toans into Sta8e 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described betow:

state 1:When loansarefirst recogrised,the Compary recognises an altowance based or 12 months ECL.Stage l toans ako
include facilities where the credit rlsk has improved andthe toan has been rectassified from Srage 2 to Stage 1.

Stage 2: When a loan has showr a significant increase jn credtt riskstnce originatjon, the Conrpany recordsan a towance for
the ifetimeo(pected credit losses. Stase 2loans aiso ircludefacilities,wherethe credit risk has improved and rhe toan has
been reclassified from Stage 3 to Stage 2,

stage 3: when loans are considered credit-impaired, rhe Company records an a owance for the tife time expected credit

For firancial assets for which the company has no reasonabte expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding
amoLnt, or a proportion thereof, the gros carrying amount ofthe ilnancjatasset is reduced. Th sC co.sidered a (parti.t)
derecognition of theflnancial asset.

2,5.2.6 D€t€rmination of Expected Credit Loss {,,EC1,,)

The measu rement of impa irment o$es (EcL) :cross a tt categories of fina nciat a$ets requ ires judgement.

ln padicular, the estimation of rhe amount and timing offuture cash fows based on Company,s historica experience and
collateralvalues when determining impairment losses along with the ase$ment of a signifiGnr increase in credit risk. These
estimates are drlven by a number offactots, changes in which can resutt in difterent tevets of alowances.

Elements ofthe ECL mode s that are considered accountingjudsments and esrimates inctude:
Bifurcation oftheflnancialassets into different portfotios when EcL ts assessed on a co tective basis
Company's criteria for assessin8 lfthere has been a signtftcant jncrease in credtt risk.
Deve opment of EcL models, includins chotce of n puts / a$u mptions used.

Thevarious inputsused andthe processfollowed by the company in measurementofECLhas been detailed b€tow

2-5.2.6.7 Medsurement ol Expected Cre.lit Lsses

expects to be owed at the iinre of default. For a rcvotving
anyfLfther amount that is expected to be drawn upto

the curent contractual imit bythetimeofdefaut! shoutd it

The Companvcalculates EcLbased on probabi ity-wei8hted scenariosto rreasure expected cash shorrJats,djscounted at an
approximation to the portfo io. A cash shortfa I is a dtfference between the c.sh ftows rhat are due to the Company tn
accordance wlth the contract and the cash flows that the Compa.yexpeds to receive,

when estimatinS EcLfor undrawn loan commirments, the company estimates the expected portion ofthe loan commitment
that wlll be drawn down over its expected life. The EcL ls then based on the presenr value ofthe expected sho.$a[s ]n cash
flows ifthe loan is drawn down. The expeded cash shorrJals are discountedat an approximation to the tnterest rate on the

The Cornpanv measures EcL on an jndilidual basis, oron a collective basisfor poadolios of loans rhat share simitar economlc
risk characteristics. The measurement ofthe toss a owance is based on the presentvatue ofthe a$et,s expected cash ftows
usingthe assefs originalE R, regardless ofwherher it is measured on an indivjdual basis or a colective basL!.

The mechanics ofthe ECL cakulations are outtined betow and the key etemeits are, as folows:

Exposure at D€fault (EAD) is bBed on rhe amounts the company
commitmen! the company includesthe current drawn batance

Ll-ilI
*

o

Lifetime ECL, i,e, llfetime ECL that results from at po$ibte defautt events over the tife of the flnanciat instrlment,
{referred to as stase 2 and Stage 3).
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probabitity of DefauLr (pD)represenrsthe likelihood of a botrower defaulting on itsfinancialobliSation (as per "Defnition of

defaultandcredit.impa]red,,)eitheloverthene,t12months{12monthsPD),oroverthelem2ininglifetime(LjfetimePD)

LosGivenDefault{LGD)rcpresentsthecompanysexpectationoftheerlentollo$onadefuU]tedexposure,LGDvaiesbyt}peof
counterpartv,typeandpreferenceofclaimandavailabllityofcolateralorothercreditsuppon.

FoMrdtooking economic infomation (including manaBementoverlay)is included in determinin8the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD

and LGD.lhe a$umptions underlying the expeded credit loss 2re monltoreda.d rryiewed on an ongoing basis'

2.5.2.6-2 sisniJicdnt locredse ln credit Risk

The company monitors a flnanciat assers, tncludinB loan comnritments contractsissued that are subiect to lmpaiment

requjrements, to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credlt rltk since lnitial recognltion. lfthere has been

a siSntficant tncrease tn credit riskthe cornpany measures the lo$ allowance b2sed on lifetime ratherthan 12-month EcL.

Thocompany monitoB aI financ]at assets, issued oan commitments and financial guar.ntee contracts that are subject to

impatmentfor a significant increase in credit risk,

n assessin8 whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has incrcased siSnificaitLY since initial recoSnition, the companv

compares the risk of a defaultoccLr|ing on rhe financialinstrunrent at the reporting date based on the renraining maturitv

ofthe instrumentwith the rtsk of a default occurrinS that was..ticlpated forthe remainlrg maturitY atthe curcnt reportinB

datewhenthefinanciatinstrumentwasfirstrecognised. n makingthisassesnrenl the companyconsiders both quantitative

and quatitauve information rhat is reason.be and suppotable, lncluding historicalexperience that ls avaiLabe without

undue cost or effort,

The quantitative factorsthat indicate a significantincrease in credit riskare reflected ln PD models on a timelybasls. However,

the Company stiLtconsiders separatelysome qualitauve factotrto assess ifcredit risk has increasedsignificantly Forcorporate

tending,there isa panicutarfocuson assetsthat are included ona'watchlisf. Given an exposure h on a watch List once, there

ts a concern thar the credit worthiness ofthe specific corinterparty has deteriorated, EcL assessmentforwatch llst accou.ts

i5doneonacasebycaseapproachaftercons]delingtheprobabil]tyofweiShtedaveraeeinad]fferentrecoveryscenar]o,For
individual loans the company conslders the expectation of forbearance, payment holldays, and events such as

unemployment,barkmptcy, divorce, or death.

Given thata significant increase ln credit risksince initial recognitior is a relative measure, a given change, in absolute terms,

in the pD is more slgnilicanrfor a financtal instrument wirh a lower inltial PD than comparedto a financial insrrument with a

hlgher PD.

As a back-stop when a financialasset becomes past duebut not stage 3; the company considersth.t a slgnlfi.ant incre2se in

credit risk has occutred and ihe asser is classified in stage 2 ofthe impairment mode, i.e. the los allowance is measured as

the lifetime EcL.

2.9.2.6,3 crcdtlmpditedFihdncidlA.tets

a financiatasset is,credtt impaired'when one or more €venrs that have a detrimental lrnpact on rhe estimated futurecash fLows

ofthe financta asser have occufted. credtt impated flnanciaLassets are refered to as stage3 assets. Evidence of credlt

impairmert lncludes observable data aboutthe followlns events:

sisnificantfinancial diffi.ulty of lhe borrower or issueri

a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

restruduring of loars due to financial djfficulty ofthe boroweGj
the dlsappearance of an active marketfor a security because offlnancial difflculties, or

the purchase of a fina,rcialasset at a deep discountthat reflectsthe incurred credit loses

ltmaynotbepossibletoidentifyasinglediscreteevent'nsteadthecombinedeffectofseveraleventsmayhavecaUsed
financtaL assets to become credit impaired. The company assesses whether debt instruments that are financial asets

measured ar amortised cost are credtt-impated at each repo.ting date,To assess ifcorporate debt instrumentsare credlt

impaired,thecompa.yconsidersfactorssuchasbondvields,creditraungsandtheabilitvoftheborowertoraisefunds'

a toan is considered credit tmpaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to deterioration in thebonower's

financla condition,The deflrition of defaultlnc udes lndicatoGanda back-stopif amounts are overdue for

( VDELHI
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2.5.2.6.4 Definition ol Delouh

Thedef]nitionofdefaultkusedinmeasuringtheamountofEcLandinthedeterminationofwhethelthe]osallowanceis
bared on 12 month or lifetime ECL.

The Company considers thefol owingas constitutine an eventof default:

.theborowerispastdUemorethangodays+AccourtsldentifiedbythecompanyasNPAasperreSu]atoryguidelines
+ objective Evidence for impairment (Qualitative Ovenav), or

. the borroweris unlikelyto pay its credit obligations to the Company

whenasessingifthebolrowerisunlike]ytopayitscreditobligation,thecompanytakesintoaccountbothqualilativeand
quantitative ln;icators. The informatior assesed depends on the tvpe of the asset' for example in corporate lending a

;ualitatjve tndicator used is the breach of covenants, whrch is not as relevantforindividuallending auanutative indicatoB,

suchasoverduestatusandnon-paymentonanotherobligationofthesamecounterp2rtyarekeyinputsinthisanalysis.

modificatior does not result in derecognition, the

lflcantlvsinceinitial recosnltion by comparinS:

2.s.2.6.5 Wite'oll

Loans are written off when the company has no reasonabLe expectauons of recovering the financial asset (either in lts

entiretyoraport]onofit).Thisisthecasewhenthecomp.nydeterminesthattheborrowerdoesnothaveassetsor
,or*"i a i"..." that could generate sufficient cash fLows to .epaythe amounts subjed to the write-off. a write-off

constitutesaderecognitionevent,Thecompanyrrayappyenforcementactivit]estofinancialassetswrittenoff/mayassign
/ sel toan exposur;to ARc / Bank /a I]nancia insuturionfora negotiated consideration- Recoveries resultinsfrom the

company'senforcementactivities cotild resu t in impairmert gains'

2.s.2,7 Modification and Derecognition of Financial Asset5

A modjfication of a financiat asset occriu when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financialasset are

renegoti:ted or otheruise modtfied between the initial recognition and maturity ofthe financial asset, A modlfication affectsthe

amo;nt and/or timing of ihe contractuat cash flows erther immediately or at a future date ln addition, the introduction or

adjustmentofexisti;covenants ofan existins toan wou d consritute a modification even ifrhese new or adjusted covenants

uonotyetaffecttnecasrtowsimmedjatelybutmavaffectthecashf]owsdepend]ngonwhetherth.covenanthorisnot
met (e.;. a chanse to the increase lnthe interest rate that arises when covenants are breached)'

Ihe company renegoriates loans ro customers in financial difficulty lo maximize collection and minimize rhe risk ofdefault. Loan

foroearanceisgrantedlncaseswherea]thoUghtheborcwermadealreasonableeffortstopayundertheoriSinalcontradua]
terms, there l; hi€h rlsk of defau t or defatlt has alreadv happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the

revised terms. The ;evtsed terms in most of the cases include an extenslon ofthe matu rity of the loan, changes to the timlng

ofthecashflowsoftheloan(plincipalandirterestrepayment),reductionintheamountofcashflowsdUe(princip:land
interestforgivenes, and anrendments to covenants'

When a nnanciatasser is modtfied the Companyassesses whetherthis modification results in derecognition. ln accordancewith

the company,s poticy, a modification resu ts in derecognftion when itgives riseto substantially differentterms, To detemine

tf rhe modifted terms are substantiatLv differentfrom rhe original contractual terms the Companv considere the following:

quatitative fadors, such as contractuat cash fLows after modification, are no longer SPPI, chan8e in currencyor change of

counterpafty,theextentofchangeininterestrates,maturity,covenants,lfthesedonotcleadylndicateasubstantiaL
modificat]on,then;aquantitat]Veassessment]sperformedtocomparethepresentvaLUeoftheremainingcortractualcash
flows under rhe orisinat terms with the contractuaL cash flows undethe revised terms, both amounts discounted at the

olic]nalER.lfthereisasiSnificantd]fferenceinpresentvaLUe,theconrpanydeemsthearanSementsubstantiallvdiffelent,
leadlngto derecognition.

tn the case where the financia assetisderecosntsedthelosalowancesforECLhremeasuredatthedateofderecosnition
todeterminethenetcariyingamountoftheassetatthatdate.Thedifferencebetweenthi'rev]sedca'ryingamountandthe
failvalueofthenewfinancia]assetwjththerev]sedtermsmayleadtoaSainorlossondereco8nition.Thenewfiranciaasset
may have a toss atowance me.sured based on 12-month EcL except where the new loan is consldered to be originated-

cre;it impaired. this appties onty in the case wherethefairva ue ofthe new toan is recognised at a significanr discoLntto irs

revtsea par amount recausethe;e rematnsa hiSh riskofdefauttwhich has notbeen reduced bythe modification.The companv

monito6 the credit risk of modified financi2l :sets by evaluating quaLitative ard quantitative information, such as if the

borrower is in past due status underthe new terms.

When the contractual terms of a financia asset are

company determ nes if the linancla a$ef s.redit rl
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The remaining lifeume PD estimated based on data at initiaL recognltion and the originalcontractualterms:

The remaininB lifetime PD atthe reporting date based on the modified terms.

Forfinancialassets modlfied, where modification does not result in derecosniuon, the esumate of PD rcflectsthe CompanY's

abi iry to collect the modlfled cash flows taking into account the company's previous experience of slmilar forbearance

action, as we I as various behaviouraL lndicators, inc uding the borrower's payment performa.ce against the modifled

co.tractual terms. lf the credit risk remains slEnific.ntly hlgher than what was expected at initial recognition, the oss

allowance is continued to be measured at an amount equalto lifeume EcL.The loss allowance on forborre loans is Senera lv

measured based on 12 month EcL when there is evidence of the borowe/s improved repavment behaviour following

modification leadingtoa reveGalofthe previous sieniflcant increase in credit risk.

wherea modification does not lead to derecosniuon,the Conrpany calculates the modiflcation gain/losscomparinsthe sross

carying amount before aid after the modlfication (excludine the ECL aLlowance). Then the Company measures EcLforthe

modified asset, where the expected cash flows arisine from the modified financial asset are induded in calcu ating the

expected cash shortfailsfromtheoriginal asset.

TheCompanyde.ecognlsesafin.ncla asset onlywhen the contactualri8hts to the assett cash fLows expire(includlng expiry

arisin8from a modification with sLbstantially differerttermr, or whenthefinanclalasset and subsbntiallyallthe risks and

rewards ofownership of the asseraretransfetred to anotherenuty,lfthe companynelthertransfers norretains 5Lbstanua ly

alLthe risks and rewards ofownership and conunuestocontrolthe transfetred asset, the Cor.pany recognises its retalned

interest in the asset and an associated llabilityfor amounts it may have to pay lfthe Company retajns substantially allthe
rkkr and rewards of owneBhip ofatransferedflnancial.sset, the companY conunuesto recognlse thefinanciaLassetand

alsorecognises a colLaterallsed borcwlng for the proceeds received

On derecognition of a fnanclalarset in lts entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum ofthe
coisideraton received and recelvabe and the cumulative Cain/oss that had been recognized in OcLand accumulated in

equity is recognised in the statement of profitand loss, with the exception of equityinvestment desiSnated as measured at

FVOCL,wherethe cumu ative 6aln/los previously recognised inOClisnot subsequently reclassified to the statement of proflt

Or derecognition of a financial asset other than in its enurety (e,g when the Company retains an option to repurchase

partofarransfetredasset),thecompanYalocatesthepreviouscarryingamountofthefinancial asset between the part it
conUnues to recosnise under continulne involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis ofthe re ativefair
values ofthose pans on the date oflhe transfer, The differerce between the carrylng amount alocated to the part that is

no longer recognGed and the sum ofthe consideration received for the part no longer recognised and anv cumulauve

gai./lo$allocatedtoitthathad been recognised in ocl ls recognised in lhe statement of profit and los. A cumuhtive
gain/lo$ that had been recognised in oclis alloc.ted between the partthat continues to be recognised and the partthat

is no longer recognised on the basis oI the relative fair values of those parts. Thh does not applY for equity nvestments

designated as measured at FVOCI, as the cumu ative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not subseqtentv reca$ified
to the statement of proflt and oss.

2.5,2,4 Derecognition of Financial LiabiUties

Thecompanyderecosnisesfinancialliabilitieswhen,andonlywhen,thecompany'sobliSationsaredischarged,cancelledor
haveexpired. The difference betweenthe carryingamountofthefinancia liabiLityderecognisedandtheco.siderationpaid

and payable is recog.ised in the statement of profit and loss,

2,5.3 lnvestment in subsidiaries, a5sociates and ioint ventures

l.vestments represenunsequityirterest in subsidiariesare catried at cost less any provision for impairment.

investments aie revlewedfor impairment if events orchanges in circumstarces lndicate thatthe carrying amount may.ot

2.5.4 Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE")

PPE heldforuse are stated in the balance sheetatcost less accumulated depreciation and accurnlrlated impairment osses

PPE is reco8nised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item is expected to flow to the

Company and the cost ofthe item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at originalcost net of taxlduty credits availed,lf any,

les accumulated depreciation and cumulative impai

specificallyattributabeto acquhiuon of PPE are allo
inhtrative and other generaloverhead expenses that:re

as a part ofthe cost ofthe PPE
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an item of property, pla.tand equipment 1s derecognised upon dhposatorwhen nofuture economic berefitsareexpectedto
arisefromthecontinued useoftheaset.anygain orlossarisingonrhedrsposatorrerirementofan item of propedy, ptantand
equipment is determined as the diiference between the sates proceeds andthe carrytng arnount of the asset and is
recognlsed in the statement of proflt€nd loss.

2,5,5 lntangible Asset5

lntangible assets are recognised when it is probable thatthe future economic beneftts rhar are aftriburabte to the asset wil
flow to the company and the cost of the asset .an be measured reliably. tntangibte assersare stated ar ortginatcost rerof
tax/duty credits avarled, if an, less accumutated amortisation and cumutative imparrment, Administrative and orher generat
overhead expensesthatarespecificallyattributableto acqulsition of intangtbte asets are attocated and capttatised as a part of
the cost ofthe intangible assets.

lntangible assets not ready for the intended use on the dare of Barance sheet are disctosed as ,,rntangibte asets under

An ntanglbe asset is derecosnrsed on disposat, or when no future economic benefits are expected from rseor disposat.
Gains and losses arising from derecognirion of an ntangib e asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carry ng .mount of the assets are recognised in the statement ofproiit and loss when the asset is

2.5.6 Capital work-in-progres5

capitalwork in progress lncludes assets not readv for the intendeduse and is carried at cost, comprising drrect cosr and
related jncidental expenses.

2,5.7 Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciauon is recoSnised using written down value method so asto wrire offthe costofrhe assets tess rhejr resjduatva uer
over their estimated usefullives specified in ScheduLe llto the act. Deprectation method is reviewedateachfinanciatyear
end to reflect expected pattern ofconsumption ofrhe future economic benefrs embodied in the asset. The esrimated useful
llfe and residualvalues are ako reviewed at each financialyear end wirh the effect ofany change tn the estirnates oi usefut
lifelresiduaivalue is recosnised on prospective basis.

Depreciationforadditionsto/deductionsfrom, ownedassers is calculated pro rata to the period ofuse.

ible assets he d bythe Com

lntangible asets with finite usefu I lives a re a mo rtised on wdtten down va lue basis over the estimated usefut tife. The method
ofamortisatior and usefullife are reviewed at the end ofeach accountingyear with rhe effect ofanychanges in the esumate
beinB accounted for on a prospective basis.

htangibe assets with indefinite usef!l lives are tested for impairmenr by comparing irs recoverabte amount with irs carrylng
amount annua ly and wheneverthere h an indication that the inrangibte asset may be impaired,

2,5,4lmpanm€nt of Assetr other than Financiat tnstruments

As at the end of each accounung year, the companv reviews the carrying amounrs of its ppE and intangrble assets ro
detemine whetherthere is any indicauon th:tthose assets have suffered an impanment toss. lfsuch indi-tion exists, the
PPEand intangible assets.retestedfor lmpairment so as to delermtne the imp.irment toss, if a.y.
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Emplovee benefitsfalinE due within twelve months ofrendeingthe seruice are classified asshort term emp oyee beneflts

and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service, Liabllities recognised in respect of short-

term enrp oyee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount ofthe benefits expected to be paid in exchange forthe

Deflned contribution Plans:

contributionstodefined conlributionschemessuchas employees'state lnsurance, employee providentfundand employee
pensior scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the amo!nt of contribution required to be made as and when

services are rendered bythe employees. Companyt providentfund contribution is madeto a governmentadminlstered fund
and charsed as an expens€ to the Statement of Profit and Lo$. The above benefits are classified as Defined cortribuuon
schemes asthe Company has nofultherdefined obligations beyond the rnonth ycontribuuons.

Post-employment Benef its:

The company operates defl.ed beneflt plan in the form of gratulty and compensated absence. The llabllity or asset

recosnised in the balance sheet in respect of its defined beneflt p ans is the prcsent value ofthe defined beneft obligation

at the end ofthe reporting perlod.Ihe defined benefit obllsation ls calculated annually by actuaries Lrsing the projected unit

credit method, The presentvalue ofthe said obligation is determined by discounungthe esumated future cash out flows,

using market yields ofgovernment bonds that have tenure approxlmating the tenures of the re ated llability, The lnterest

expenses are calculared by appyingthe dlscount rate to the net delined benefit liability orasset. The net interest expense

onthe netdefined beneflt iabjLityorassetls recosnised inthestatementofProfitand los, Remeasurementgainsand losses

arisinsfrcm experlence adjustmentsand chanses in actuarlalassumptionsare recognjsed in the period in whichtheyoccut
dtectly in other items of other comprehensive income. They are included in other Equity lr the Statement of Changes in

Equity and ln the Balance sheet. changes in the present va ue of the defined benefit obligation resLrlting from plan

amendments orcurtaiments are recognised immedlately in profit or loss as pastseruice cost.

The company as Lessee

The company's lease assetclases primarilyconsistof leasesfor office premkes.The company assesses whethera contract

contalnsalease,atlnceptionofacontract,Aconiractis,orcontains,a ease ifthecontradconveysthe rightto contro theuse

of an identifled asset for a period oftime ln exchange for consideration. Toassess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an ldentiiied asset, the compa ny assesses whethe r:

(D

(iD

(iiD

the contractlnvolvesthe use ofan identified asset

theConpanyhassubstantiallyal ofthe economic benefitsfrom use of the assetthrough the period of the lease and

the Company has the right to directthe use of the asset-

At the date of cornmencement of the lease, the company recognlzes a riSht of use a$et ("RoU") and a corcsponding
lease liabilityforalllease arangements in which ltis a lessee.

Ce rtain Iease a rcngements include the optiors to extend or terrninate the lease before the en d of the ease term. ROU assets

and lease Iiabilities includesthese optiorswhen it ls reasonablycertaln that they wilbe exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initialy recognized at cost, whlch comprisesthe initialamountofthe lease liabilltyadiusted for any

lease payments madeatorpriortothecommencementdate ofthe lease plusanyinltia dlrectcostsLesanyleaseincentives,
Theyaresubsequentlymeasuredatcostessaccumulateddepreciationandlrhpalrmentlosses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencemert date or a stralght-lire basis overthe shorterofthe lease term
and useful llfe ofthe underlying asset.

Ihe lease jiabl iiy is !nitially measured at amortized costatthe presentvalue ofthefuture lease payments.Thelease paYments

are discounted usingthelnterestrateimp lcltinthe lease or, ifnotreadilydeterminab e, usingthe increm€ntal botrowing rates

in the country ofdomicie ofthese leases. Lease liabiLities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustmentto the related

right of use asset ifthe Company changes lts assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option

Lease Liabiityand ROU asset have bee. sep a ance Sheet and lease payments have been casslfied

as i iancing cash fLows

I 5 V
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2.5.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

cash comprhes ofcash on hand and demand deposits with banks. cash equivalents are shorr-term depositswith barks (with
an orisinal m.turitv of three months or tess from the date of pacemenr) and cheques on hand. short term and tiquid
investmentr beins subject to more than insisnifica,rt risk of charee in value, are not inctuded as part of cash and cash

2.5.12 Divideds on Equity Shares

The companv recognises a liability to make cash distriburions to equity sharehotdeG ofthe company when the dividend is
authorised ard the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the company and a corresponding amount is recognised
directrv rn equitv. as per the corporare raws jn rndia, an jnterim divrdend is authorised whe; it is approved by the Board of
Directors arldfinaldivldend isaLthorised when tt isapproved by the sharehotde6.

2.5,13 S€curities Premium A.count

secufities premium is credlted when shares are issued at premium. tt can be used to issue bonus sharcs, to providefor
premium on redemption ofshares.nd issueexpenses ofsecuritieswhich quatifyasequityinstrumeits.

2.5.14 Finance Costs

Finance costsinclude interestexpensecalculated usingthe EtRonrespedivefinanctatinsrrumentsand botrowings is measured
atamortised cost, amodization ofancillarycosts lncured in connection with the arrangement ofborrowingsand exchange
differences arisingfrorn foreign currency bonowings to the extent they are regardedas an adjustmenttorhe interestcost.

2.5.15 ForeignCurencies

(i) Functional currencv of the companv and foreign operations has been determined based on the primary economic
environmentinwhichthecompanvand itsforeign operationsoperateconsideringthe cunency in which fuids are generated,

Tr.nsactions n curencies other than the company's funcuonal cufency are recorded on initiat recognition usin8 the
exch2nge rate atthe transaction date. at each Bat.nce sheet date, foreign cutrency monetary items are reported atthe rates
prevalling atthe vear e.d, Non_monetary irems thatare measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are nor

(ii)

Exchange differences thatarise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items ar each Batance sheet
date atthe closing spot rate are recosntsed in the starement of profit and Loss:n the period i; which they arise.

operating segments are those components of the business whose opeEung resutts are regutarty reviewed by the chief
operating Decislon makin8 body in the company to make decisions for per.formance assessmenr and resource .location,
operatins segment are repored in a manner consistent with the internat reporung provided to accounting poticies are in
ljne with the inter.al reporing provided to the ChiefOperating Decision maker.

2.5.17 Ea.nings Per Share

BasicearningspershareiscomputedbydividinSprofitorossattributabletoordinaryequityhotdersbythewetghtedaverase
numberofshares outstandingdurinStheyear. Diluted earnrnSs pershare is cornputed usinB the weighted average number of
shares and dtlutive potentiat shares, except where the resuttwoutd be anri djtutive.

2,5.1a Taxes on tncome

The comp2ny's taxjurkdiction is in lndla. sisnificantjudsements are rnvolved in detehininsthe provision for income taxes,
including a mou nt expected to be paid/recovered for cena in tax positions.

lncometaxexpensecomprisescurrentard deferedtaxes. rncometaxexpense is recognked inthe statementof profitand toss
except when thev relate to items that a re recognized outsrde sratement of profit a nd oss (whethe r in other comprehensivejncome ordirectlytn equtty), in which casetax is a so recogntzed outlide statemert of profit and tos.

Deferred tax assets and ltabilities are recog 2x corsequences of tempor:ry differences between the
caflyirg values of assets and llabilities and their res and unutilted business loss and depreciation carry

? a
tr.
Jr'
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forwards' Defetred tax a$ets are recognized to the extent that it is probabte that future taxabte tncome wilt be availabteagainsrwiich the dedLctibte tempor.ry differences, Lnused tax tosses and depreciatio" *r.y_f"*_6, 
"or,O 

Ou *,,rud,rhe carryins amount of defered tax assers js reviewed at u".r, ,"po.ting aut" 
"nJr"d,"Ji" riu 

",r"nr,nu, 
i, ,, no r."g",probabrethatsufricienttaxabre profitwr be avaiabrero arr"*"rr., p..t 

"rtn" 
0"r"""a1""X"i" i" ,,ro"o. ,","."r" o"odeferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reponins date, .nd are recosnised to ti" 

",i""i,r,"i t, i * u*"r" p,"o"r,r"tharfuturetaxabte profitswil alowthe deferred t.x assut ,o f" r".or"r"i.
Deferred tax assets and riabirities are measured based on the tax ratesthatare expectedtoappry inthe periodwhen the asset

;"[::,""*::ii:S r " 
,ettred, based on tax rates and tax raws thar have be;n en""i";".., l,u,t"*i,"ry **,"a oy ,r"

Deferred tax assets and iabilitjes are offset when there is a tegaly erforceabte right to set off currenr tax assetsaSainstcurent tax ,a biliues and when they relate to income tar€s tev ed by the same taratron . r,Li,tv 
" "i,," C".pu rv irt""A, to:edlA ts I Jrre.t -ax a\qs and tabit,tre\ or o ne. brsi!.

The companY providesforcurenttax llabilities atthe best estimate that is expected to be paid to rhe tax authorities wherean outflow is probabte.

2.5.19 Goods and Services Tax lnpur Credit

Goods and Seturces tar iroLr (edrt is re..Enised in the book of accourt in the period in which the suppty of goods or\ptuke,e.e,v.o's,e, oenFed a10 wr-en rle;e is no LncF*.",y i" ",.:r.Biii,.;";ii;,;;,,;.,- 
,

2.5.20 Provisions, Contingent Liabitities and Cont inge nr Assets

(a) Provisions are recosnisedontywhen;

(i)

(iD

iiiD

The Company has a pr$ent obligation (tegator constructive) as a resutt of a pastevent; andIt r probabh rh.t ourftow of resources embodying economic benefits wiitbe required to settte the obtigation; andA re i:ble psr'hdF (dn oe nade o. r1e dnorn. of In" ootRanor .

Provision is measured usirg the cash flows estimated to serlte rhe presert obJigarion and when the effect oftime vatue ofmoney is mate ria t, the ca tryins a mourt of rhe provision is the present va lue of th;se cash ;;.- "^_

Contingent Liability is disctosed in case of:

ir:ff:fjl::i"" -,'*rrom pastevents, when it is not probabre thatan ourfrow of resourceswj, be reqLjjred to settre

A present obligation arisingfrom past everts, when no reliable estimate is possibte.

where the unavoidabre costs of meet ns the obrisarions underthe contrad exceed the economic benefits expeded to bereceived undersuch contr.ct, the present obrisat,; n underthe contract is recosnised r;d;;",;;"; 
"..",.,""k) continsentA$ets:

(J) co.,i1Ee..a.se.. a-e.or,e.og.saoi1,hetndn(.t.r.remen-:.
( rr) ronrrrgenr 

"ssers are dn.toseo whpre dr irf ow or e, olomi. oe1Ff,t, n prcbabte

Provisions, contingent riabirities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date

2.5.21 Commitments

(b)

(D

(ii)

a)
b)
c)
d)

2.5,22

commitmenrs are future tiabitities for.onrractuajexpenditure, ciasified and disclosed as fotJows:Estimated amounr of conr'cts remainingro be execured 
"" 

."pit" I 
"..", "t ""d;p;;;;i;;,Urcd'led ,rbi,:ty on shdres a1d orne. .nve\rmen-s 

pdn,y pd d;
'undilg related cornitn ert .o a,\oc ate "ro Joinr v"nrLre compan F.,.r o
other non cancellabte (ommrtments, if.ny, rothe extentthey are considered materialand relevant inthe opinion ot

statement of Cash Ftows

ii.

Statefrenr of Cash Ftows is prepared segregating the cash tows inro
mt.gactivites is reporred us ng ind rect merhod adjust
nges during the period in operatinB receivables a

.on cash iremss!ch as deorecauon, prov s ons, d

operating, i.vesung and fi nan.ing activities.c:sh f low f rom
net profit fo r the effects of:

nsactio.s of a non-cash nature
ised foreigr currencygains and tossesj and

V
(
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iii. Allother items for whjch the cash effects are investirs orfinancins cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (includlng bank balance, shown in the Statement of cash rlows exclude itemswhich arc not

available for seneral use as on the date of Balance sheet.

3. Recent accountint Developments

3.1 Law enacted but not effective

The Code on Socia I SecuriW, 2020 ('Code') relau ng to empLoyee benefits during employment and post_emplovment benefits

received ndian Parliament's approval and Presldential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the

Gazette ol lndia and subsequently, on November 13, 2020, dGft ru es were pub ished and stakeholders' suggesiions were

invited. However,the date on which the code wiLlcome into effect has not been noufied, The companywillassessthe lmpact

ofthe code when it comes into effect and wlll record any related impact in the period the code becomes effed ve

3.2 Amendments in hd AS

Mlnlstry of corporate Affans (MCA), vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has made the
fo Lowing amendmentsto lnd ASwhich are effecuve from April01,2022:

(a) rnd aS 109 -Annuallmprovements to lnd AS (2021)

The amendment cla fies which fees are to be included by an entiw when it applies the '10 percent' ten of lnd AS 109 ln

assessingwhetherto derecognise a financial iability,The company does notexpectthe amendmentto have anysignificant
impact ln itsflnanclal statements.

(b) nd AS 37 Onerous contracts - costs ofFulfiling a Contract

The amendments specifv thatthe'cost offu fllling'a contract comprisesthe /costs that relate directlytothe contracf. costs

thar relate directly to a contract can either be lncremental costs offu Illling that contract (examples wou d be direct labour,

materraLs)oran allocation ofothercoststhat relate directlytofulfilling contracts.Theamendmertis essentially aclarification
and the company does not expect the amendmentto have any significant lmpact in its flnarcial statements.

(c) lndAS 16- Proceeds before intended use

the amendments rnainly prohibit an entity from deductingfrom the cost of property, p ant and equlpmentamounts recelved

fromse linE items produced whlletheentityis preparingthe assetfor ts intended use,lnstead, an entitywiLlrecognisesuch
sales prcceeds and related cost ln profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendmerts to have anY impact in its

(d) nd As 103-Reference to conceptualFramewolk

The amendments specify thar to qualifyfor recognition as paft of applylrg the acquisition method, the idertifiable assets

acquired and liabilities assumed must meetthe definltions ofassets and liabilities ir the conceptual Frameworkfor Financial

Reporung under tndian Accounting standards (conceptua Frarnework)issued bythe !nstitute ofChartered Accountants of
tndia at the acquisition date. The Company does not expect the amendrnentto have any tgnificant impact in its financial

r
lr.r
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4 cashand.ashequivabna

rr ty.l esih I m.fths

s BankBarance.otherthancashand.ash€quivatents

aturb/ofmorethan3months

Re.elvab es.onsidered cood secured
Receivables conridered Bood Unsecured
Re.eivableswhich have rlsnili.ant increase n cred t RBk

Receivabrer rrom nle of nvenmenr
tes: rmpa rmentLos Allowai.e (Erpected credit Lo$)

rradeae..Tvables aseincs.hedule as on March

scheduleasonMa(h3!2021
Le$ than lyear 2, Year

Re@ vab es .onsldered sood umetured

No debt !!.5r d:redoE or other.ff.e( of trje comp:ircr: rf oidr nroth.rrnJonoroebEdrebyrr

lorm agslnn Gold,rco 3 hwelerv.lRpfpr n.te 7 21

Lo:r5 sgah{ Land/erooPrties

(B) 1isetur!d byr:nc b e A$eG
1 lse.ured liy ri brsrbeAseb

6.,,31:

a r.pay:b e on demand
b withoutspe.flinsanyrernsor p

ReferNote30forE.oncrriationof gro$.arrynsanoutrtof toansand f*,*,n*,
72 cod/G.drewe ery e p pdsed:ssecuriryroroverdr:ft okeirrcm b:nkFefnide14l

""SlY'

,o-arNd,c,.r a {rD r0-;r4:i-------,ir,.-sr-------;
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NOAT STATEMENIS TOR THE YEAR

NonradeiNenmeha (atco*)
rnv€dmenr in whollvowned sub3rdrad
rnve*ment in Equhy rnnrumens {uiquoted sharcs)
H ndon Aftountassres on teruce5 Prlvate Lrmired

H idon Peerto Peer Finan.e Private tim ted

rEde inv€nmenB {at e*)
rnvestment in suMdlary
rnvestm€nt ln Eouleh*rum.nB{duot€dshared
Munn Green Finance Limited (FormoryaPM Fiiven timfted)

Assrecnte amount of quoted Inveimenh

A*reFt. amount of unquoted ,nvestmena
rmDalrment Lo$ Allowa n.e I Exoeded crcdir

March 31,2022 Mafth3! 2021 Aprit01,2020

10 oereiredtaxa$eu/(kbilirieslnet)

o5.s1l

e h intentionallY left blankt'N3N'
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oedudion/
sal€ MztchrLloTz AptnoL2'2t Mat.h1l,2022 Mar.h 3\.2A22 Mzrcn 3L,2O7r

A'PlopertY,Plantand€qu]pment

Prop€df, Plantand Equipmenr & othertntansibtea$€ts ar at Marh3l" 2021

Ma(h31,2021 Apnl01,2020 Mafth 112021 Ma(h 3t,2021 Mrlth3r,2020
A. Prcpedy, P:ntatu Equipment

.. h intenrionallv left b ank!r'1'1

rF> 1,
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softwares nder deve opment

1ar fte deve opmpntorthe softw e.ommeicoddurinEtha ye, s{heduedlor.ompeionattheendofrhenn:ncratyear202221.

Mad31,2022 March3! 2021
Balsn.es with 60vernmenr authorir es

14 Borowirys (orhdrhan Debr se.uritie,

Loatu from related pafries

ofDre(06 Thrsmeare repay:bte i equa nn:menrndm ut.lsnronths
ortrdGJtta.ril?stcmB klrEaFnnbyipdseof cod.anse.!rq
PerodG Retrn5rr.dwirhtheBarjk f, respedof overdEfria.
rhecomianyh{d!!f !d Rpg:str oiof.h gesaidstsr:(onoi.h gesdlrjtheReg{4rofa.mo.ir.r, :pp cabc

14.2 TemsofRepayment of soiiowlns (dherthan D.btse.ur,ties) ar.rMa(h3r, 2022

&qlcd

Rdeof hrere( (Ro ): 141s.^%

Loansfrom Re ated Pafries

i Loans fiom colporates

Prces,ns ree lrnd As rdju*meho

bt se.urftiE) as at Mal.h 3! 2021

z,

*

!!!qc!

of Bo(owinss (other than De

o
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. Loans fiom rclated paft es

Prccsiry ree (rnd AsAdjudment)

Borowincs(dherthanDehrse.u iie,xatae r0r,z0z0

' Loansfrom rehled padiPs

toan P!o.€$lncadj!*med

Mamh 312021 Apnl 01,2020

remsof Repaym€ntof of subordiiar€d tiabi itesas at Mar.h31, ?022

lerms orRepaymenlorof sui,ordinated Llabllrtesas3rMarh 3

15 otherF,nan.iarriabiiries

iteren ar,ed but notdue on borowins

sa :ry :nd othel beielG payab e

Ad!.i..s rom re aed pafry'

I Represent5advance recelved f,on subsl ln&rcn:..rued oJR5.20 02 akh,

Provn on for n.ome bx lierof advaice ail

I

creen Flnance Llmitad towardstanrrer of oan portfo io

Ro 15% 1!rer( y 10% w e rNovenber 2021l
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PEvi5lons ror Employ€. BenenB
. cctu ty Payab e (Refer note 31)

19 0therNon"tinan.iarliabirities
As ar Marh 11,2022 Asat March 31,2021

as arMa.ch312022 tu atMarh 31,2021

, 50.00.000 1M,.h 31, ,0nr ,,s0,00,000, Apri 01, ,020 60,00,000) eq !ity

lssued, subsc bed andfullypaid-up shares

1,11,e2,6!4 lM .h11, 201 1,12,20,s25,Aprir01.'0r0:s6,37,346)equity

20,1 R..oft iliatioi of the numher of

20.2 rem' rghr ara.hed ro equirysharcs
riecomDairhroiyoie.?$.rEqu,lysh eshavngp vaueofRjlcodnErelM drl,:r,.r21:Rs t0pershre Arr 01 2020:tu lopersha.el E..hh.deiof

per+ . A equqsh ehodetrareh.!e,ghtroCptdvdeid nproportonroD.dupvaue0f.a.iequit!+rer:idlvhen

amount rhe dtt Dut.n w qrr!. rh eshelibfhe.harehode6

20.3 Debirrof rhsrehoideuhodinsmoreth3i 5percenrsharcsrnth€company

20-4 Detairsofthesharcs herd bv P6mot€6 in the
as atMarch312021 %.hang€ in

% or holdlns sharcholdinc

Detalls of the shaEsheld by PrcmoteB inthe

%olhordins shaEholding

20.5 share.alored fora (ons dec

15.i, ]7,51'400 no ofiU yp]d!
.rrPFid.. s.rv.esPrv eLmtedrej0ediey,uiddranhEmeor r.ise,..t1n.rs.r:nd:m:s:mdonllRefn.or,to)

20.s Ihe Fund5rai5ed bythe companY f.om pr.fercntjala lotmenvprivate o acomentoJsh es have been used for rhe pulposesfDrwhich rhe rundswere n sed.

207rheaomp:ryh!5aoied152,092fuyp:id!paq!ty5harejoiM.h10,2022totheeidnsot.onvertbeo:n5amounrngroRjs57s2rakhs

Rserre tund u/5 4s c.f RB Ad,1934

other tehs ofothp, comprEhens ve i.ome

3 Ir.
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?1,1 Nature and Pu.pos6 ornes.to.r:
a. R6etue Fund u/5 4src of RB e.t, 1e34:

1ne companv deated a reserue tund puEuant to section 4s rc ofthe Resetue B:nk of rndra act, 1934 by ransrerinc amount not resihan 20% ofrb net prott every

ftisRese,erepresertsthep.emiumonissueorequitysh es aid can ba utirtzed in a.cordan.ewth theproMs on5orthecofrpaniesad,2013.

Retaloede ningscompriseoftheprofitsorrhecompanye iedritdatenetofdkrjbulronsandotheradiunmefrs

othercomprehensive nome inctudes Remeasurementolthe defined benefiE p an (net)

utrsd under id as.1o9:id rlrepro
frndaon n.omeRe.osntoi,A$d.x5rGiof, dtu.yismnclrRA.plapproprrtedrromihenetprortntermsorRB

rouncto. No wthdr:{a 5 are perm red arom rE resovc w uro( prior perm $.i ol1he Ra
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23 tee and cDmmhsion ln.ome

nterestiicome on depoiits w th Bankl
nlg.edon n.omPT:lRefund

8us nesAurl Dryteto.e charses

.teren.i borD*in35 lotherth:tr debr!e.ur tesl
otereno.srbor.lii,:.d Debb

on linanciar instruments neas!rcd

' Loan}jsebwrren onlNetof Recovene,

cortr butoi to pro! deit aid othpr frnds

Aud toa! rpmutr auoi 6rtutoryArd t Fpel

e k intentionalv leftblankflrii
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29. CotrtinAent Liabitities and Commitme.ts

(a) ContinSent Liabirities - Nil (March 31, 2021 _ N it, Aprit ol, 2o2o Nit).

(b) commitments - Nil (March 31,2021- Nlt, Apr 01,2O2O - Ni).

30. Re@n.iliation ofcross Carrying Amount of Loans and Expected credit Loss on toans

A. Reconcillatlon of Cross CarryingAmountot Loans

B, Reconciliation of Expected Credit Losson Loans

*excluding amount of Rs. O-73 ta of lmpairment Reserue (Refer Note,14.6)

31. Details of Employees Benefits as required byrhe lnd AS 12 iEmptoyee Benefits,,

a) Defined Contributton ptans

The companyhas recosnized the folowingarnounts in the sratementof proftand Lossi

{Rr. in Iakhs)

b) PostRetirement Benefit ptah

(i) Amount recogn ized in the Batancesheet

I k

Mat.h 31, 2022 Vlarch 31, 2021
rnc 35702.25 4180.93

141467.0O 76471.Q4
7 (2276.6a) (108.94)
2 2702.0O 122.03
3 174,68 130.97

131.95)
( 11.72)

ahountatthe end of the 47736,26 357A2.16

2022 March 31,2021
cted Credit toss at the 109.43 18.59Of Amount writen off

131.95
707,33 191.18

E
13.A4

provisio,r on financiai assers(ret of recover/) (s91.84) (24s.33)
in Expected Credit Loss duringthe year 232,93 90,84

Expected Credit Loss at rhe end of the 1,ry+ 342,16 109.43

zo22 2A2l
74,61 2.40
3,55 0.80
0.61 4.12
0.60 4,71

19.1' 3,83

March31,2022 March 31,2021

Present va ue ofplan tiabttires o.67
Fairva ue of p an assets AM

117.43

c.atuity 
i
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(i0 Amount recoSnized in the Statement of profit and toss as Emptoyee BenefitErpenses

(iv) sensirivity Ana tysis

fThe estimate of rate ofescalation in satarv conside

""d",,",d;";f;"";;iJ;;lffi;ffit",;:;jl:1[,Jfl;il11"*jiH/[:-coun, 
nf aton,senorty. promoton

The sensitivity analvses above have
atthe end ofthe reponing period
change in the key assumption whit
the method (prcjected Unit Credit
methods and types of assumptions

0
I

been determ ned based on reasonabtv po55
and mav not be representatve ofthe adua

ble changesofthe respecr ve assum
lchange. Jt is based or a cha

g the sensitivityto the ass!mption,
balance sheet has beer apptied. The

e holding.ll otherassumpti
Method) lsed to carcu
used in prepart.g the se

Deficit/(s urplu0 offunded ptens 0.52 0.67

Net plan liabilities/(assets)
1.19 a_67

Mat.h X!, 2O2Z March17,2A21

1.03 0.43

0.24

{0.s6)
o.52 0.67

March 31,2022 March 31,2021

7.26 6.76Salary Esca ation Rare t
10.00 10,00

60 60slve of provh on fordhab ity 100% of lAtM (2012-14 ) la1% af ALM l2aD-74)

44.00 44,00
44,00 44.00
44.00 44.00

2022 7,2A21

liabilities
liabilities liabilities liabilities

0,500/" 0.02 0.50% (0.02 0,a2Sa aryEscararion Rata o,50% o,02 {0.02) a 5Q% 0.02 {0.02)

0.50% 0,50%

salary Escabtion RaE 0.50% a,5a%

change.ompared with the prev ous o€rrodk

I o.os

.qctuarlat (eatns)/rossei .... _ _-

{0.02)
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{v) The defjned benefit obligations maturing afteryearended March31,2022

Compensated Absence

t-2

34

5-6

* Amount lessthan orethousand

32, lncomeTax Expense

al Tax expense recognlzed in the Statemertof Proftt and Loss

b) A reconciliation ofthe tax expense to the amount computed by app yinB the statutory income tax rate to the profit before
tax issummarized below:

Forthe year ended March
11,2022 March 31, 2021

27,42% 27.82%
678.00 4t4.29

Curre.t tax expense on profit before tax expense at the enacted
income t:x rate in lndia

188,62

Tax effed of the amounts whtch are not deductibte/ (t.xabte) tn (181.24) 63.63

Tax Expenre for the year 7.38 180.00

l22.szl
TaxExpense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (15.14) 180.00

is intentionallY left blank***

i

For the year €nded Mar.h
3!,2022 March 31, 2021

Cutrenl tax on taxable income forthe year Lt3,17 161.60
Total Curent tax expense L13,77 161.60

{105.79) 18,40
(r05.79) 18,40

7,38 180.00

l22.S2l
{1s.14) 180.00

\rr

lax expense forthe year

116,37

calculaUne tax.ble income
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c) Defercd lax Assets and Liabitities

33

2020

(Liabilltie0

{credit)/
(chaGe) 31,2021

(Liabilities)

arse)in 31,2022

(Llabilitie,

irnpact of difference
between tax
depreciation and
depreclation/amortDa
tior charged for the
financial reporting

(1.07) 4.33 (s.40) {es.68} 90,2A

(1.07) 4.33 (s.40) 19s.68) 90.28mpact of Provsions of
lncome Tax Act,1961

14,06 10.11 (10.11) (0.14) (0.14)

3.9s 14 06 10.11 (10.11) (0.14) (0.14)
Defered tax {tiabiliries) / 18.39 (1s.s1) (105.79) {0.14) 90,14

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 April01,2020
otherthan DebtSe.urir 14,272.46 7626.70 3,295.28

30,000,00 3 000.00
Otherflnancia llabilities 2,424.a5 162.08 91.61

1119.44) 142.7 (246.66)
42,517.87 32,646.67
6s42,57 3,621,65

49,500.39 36,26A.26 4,494.65
85,89% 90.o7% 69.89%

No chaneeswere made in the objectives, poticies
and March 31,2021

o. processes for managing cap tai during the years erded March 31,2022

The risk management potictes ofthe Company are established to ide ntit and analyses the risks faced byrhe Companv, tosetappropriate risk limitsand controls, andro monttorrisksandadhe rence to limits. Rlsk management poticies and systernsare rev ewed regularlyto reftectchan8es in marketco

34. FinancialRiskManagement

rhe companv is mainlv enSaSed in FinancinsAcuvities. The companyt principalfinancialtiabitities comprise borrowin8s andother payables. The main plrpose of rhese financiat tiabitiu;s i; t; n**" 
""a 

,ror.n-l"rpany.s operations. Thecompany's principatfinanctalassets inctude toans, cash andcash equivatents and receivables.

The primary objective ofthe companyt capital management is to maxim'e the sharehotdervatue, safeguard the businesscontinuitv and to maintair strons capitar base for irvestor, credtors and marker confla"""". i", ,n" purpose of thecompanv's capital management, capltalircludes issued equity capitatand aI other equiry reserves attributab]eto the equityholders of the Company.

The cornpanv manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light ofchanges in economjccordjtions, iuture pans
and the requirements ofrhe financiat covenants. The funaing ,"q utru r*t, u."."itr,.rgl ro"". r"d op".ting*rt fto.,generated The companvmonitou capitalusinsa Bearing ratio, which is net debr divideo [y totai m ptta i prus netaeut. rtrecompany's policy isto keepoptimum gearing ratio asgiven betow:

t :D'l

*

e Company's actvities

V

{credit}/

3.95

l -- 3,r4ljtj
1,353.36
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The companv is exposedto credit risk, market risk and riquiditv risk. rhe company,s managementoversees the managementofthese risks to ensure the companyt financiatrisk activiti", 
"." c",",""0 ry 

";pi"p,,"iil"r,.'r* ""a 
p,*"a,*, 

"r0,r,",financtatrjsks are tdentjfjed, measured and manased in a."oro""i",i l co.p"nf,'pJirJ, 
""Jr^* obj""r*. rr." r,i",risk are summarDed betow:

34.1 CreditRisk

credit rkk is the risk that the counterparty will not meer its obligations undera financiat insrrument ora customercontracr,leadinsto financia oss. rhe company isexposedro credit riskfiom itsfinancing activn,"li.."ii,',**. *r.*"r.*r.rhe companv's exposure to c.edit risk rs infruenced mainry bythe individua r cha;a;;ri..o, 
"i ","i "*.".*. .,"o n ,,rl 1".alwavs been managed bvthe companyrhroush credit approvak, estabrish credit rimits, 

"J 
*",,""*, .""n" rag,t 

" 
*"unwonhiness oicusromersto which the com pany sG nts credtt t"r.s t" the n" r.at ." r.;e ;i;;;i;;;

Financiarassets are writren off when there is no reasonabre expe*ation of recovery such as a borrower fairingto enSage ina repayment pran with the companv. where Ioans/rfreru" r-u u""" ,,i t"n 
"tr, 

ir," a..p-v 
"o*rru, 

. 
"ng"a" 

,nenforcement activityto attempt to recoverthe roans/re-i"abr" d,e. wh;,;;;.;;,., 
"*" 

_io"l**" *" *_ro* *incomeinthestaremenrof profitand toss_

The companv measures the expeded credit lo$ oftrade receivabtes/toans based on hisrori.atrend, avaiiabie exrernatandinternatcredit risk factors such as financ arcondition, asei"g of*.ou"t. ,ec"i,"lre 
"t.., 

,;;;,;;;;r"*,"d,h" b,rr*,environment in whichthe entityoperates. Loss rares are based on acturnedit toss;x;;,i""." jii p*,u""0..
As at M'rch 31, 2022, the company did not considerthere to be any significant concentration of credit risk, which had notbeen adequate v prcvided for. The .arrying amount of the financiaras;ts recorded in tn" ir"" *i" i ,,","."*., gr"*"a rp'or.1v.llowdn,esto. osses.repre,elrsrt-era,imLre,posLrero(reditr,t

Market risk is the risk that the fair value ofruture cash ftows of a financial instruments wil fiuduate because of changes rnmarket prices. Market risk comprises three types of risr: i"r".rt 
"t" 

,,t! -";;;;rr;""J ,,",i"i p,n" ,,rr *.1 * 
"q,i ,price riskand commoditv risk. Financiarinsrruments affected bv market nsr incrud; roa nr, ,"""iir"",r, o""o*ra, unuto"o

34,2.1 tnte.€st tute Risk

The irterest rate risk exposure is mainlvfrom changes in fixed and floating interest rates, The lnterest rates are disctosed inthe respective notes to the fina nci. r stateme nt' of the co, p-v. r," o.i"r, p 
"iriu 

i 
", "i," 

r'"",,",, 
" " 

o ,," u,rn,", o^ ,lubasis ofinterestand non-tnterest nature is as under:

'lhe table betow summaries the impact of increase and dec of interest on the Cornpany,s Equiry/other assetsand profit for the year. The ana ys s s based of rhe drsu ren rate has increased/decreased by 50 base

::
:)

\

lvlarch 31,2021 Apri 01,2020

779,44 678.85 198.23
717.77 30.87

7,L32,49 10.00
Othe.s FinancialAssets 609.51 552.63 176.46

100,00 463.32 48.43
47,736,67 3 742.26

2,424,A5 162 08 92,67

otherthan Debt Securiti 70,272.46 1,626.7A 95.283
30,000.00 30,000.00

l,

I March31,2022

trr
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(a) lnterest.atesensitivity-Borrowinss

in lakhs)

{b) l.ter.st Ete sensitivity - Loans

F.Y, ZO27-22 F,\. 2424 21
50 bo n,'ea$ would rnrred\p rl-e prot r be ore ro { ov 205.68 178.51
50 bp decrease would decreasethe profit before tax by (178.s1)

{c) lnte.est Ete sensitivity - Fixed Depositswith Bank

F.\.2027-22 F.y.2420-27

50 bp increasewould decreasethe profit before rax by (201.36) (1s8.13)

q0 bp oe.,-d.p woJ o l.c-edse rne p.of'r before d\ Ly 201.36 158,13

Rs. in lakh,
F.v,202A-27

50 bo n,'ea\e woLld r.red\6rf6p.o||roe,ore-a/ bI 0.s0 2,32
s0 bp decrease would decrease the profit beforetax by {0.s0} (2.32)

The companydoes not have anycutrency risk exposure asthere is noforeign cu rency obtisauon/receiva bte

34.2.3 Market Price Risk

The marketvalue ofthe investment (quoted equityshare, is Rs.8949.8s takhs as at March 31,2022 (As at March 31,2021
NiD

Market p.ice risk ls the riskthatthe fairvalue offuture cash flows of a flnanctal irstrumerts wiltfluctuate because ofchanses
in market prices of equity shares, tn rhe case ofthe company, market risk primarity impacts financiatinstruments such as
nvestment in Equityshares etc.

The companv exposure to market pice riskarisingfrom tnvestmerts hetd bythe company and is ctassified inthefinanciai
statemenb at Costasthe lnvestments are made tn Subsidiaries,

The table below summaries the impact of increase :nd decrease of the index on the Comp.ny's Equjty/ other assers and
profit forthe vear. The analvsis is based on the assumption that the instrument index has increased by 5% or decreased by
5% with allothervari.bles he d constant,

t.
w.

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
5% in ease would increase the 447.49
5% decrease would decrease the 1447.49)

34.3 LiquidityRisk

Liquiditv risk is defined as the riskthatthe company willnot be able to settle or meet its obligations ontime or at reasonable
price. Liquidrtv risk ar€ managed th.ough combinauon of str:tegies tke managing tenors in tine with a$et tiabitity
managemenr policy and adequate liquiditv cover is mainrained- The company's treasury team is responsibte for liquidity,
funding as well as settlement manaeement. ln addition, processes and policies reLated to such risks are oveBeen by serior
manasemenl. Management monitors the companv tiquidity position thrcugh rolins forecasts on the basjs ofexpected cash

The analysis offinancial liabllities by remainins contractuat maruritiesi

10,2O3.27' 89,88

2072
otherth.n DebtSecurities

30,000.00 30,000.00
Otherlinancial liab llties 2 23\\ VIi^ ss.6z 2424.a5

(20s.68)

4.y,202!-22

f

10,293.15

s2
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Borrowlngs other than Debt securlties !626,74 7626,74

30,000.00 30,000.00

Otherfinaf cial liablllties 2070.88 91 20 2162.08

Borowinss otherthan Debt securiues 2797,57 3,295,24

Other flnancial liabilities 78.47 74,20 92,57

35

:cro$ of processingfee of Rs,20.69lakhs
other Finencial lnstruments Disclosures

35.1 Financia I lnstruments by CateSory

The carrying value and fairvalue offinanclalinstrumenls by categorles as at March 31, 2022 are as follows
(Rs. in lakhs)

oct

i.) nvestment n equ ty 6,912.49 6,912.49 6,912.49

(b) nvestment in equ ty shares 220,00 220,OO 220.00

L77,77 t17,77 177,77

40,794,31 40,794.31 40,794,31

(e) other fina ncla I a$ets 609,51 609,51 609.51

179.44

(s) Bank ba ance other 100.00 100.00 100.00

Liabilities

{a) Botrowinss other than 70,272,46 10,272.46 70,272,46

(b) subordinated Debts 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000,00

k) otherfinancia abilties 2,424.45 2,424.45 2,424.45

The carryingvalue and fairvalLe offinanciaLinstruments by categorles as.t March 31, 2021are as follows
in lakh,

? IJr

through ocl

{a) lnvestment in equity

10.00 10.00 10.00(b) lnvestmentin equity
shares (unquoted)

30.87 30.87 30,87

35,592,8335,592.83 35,592.83

552.63 552,63 552.63(e) otherfinarcial assets

1,t42.11 L,142.11

1,626.101a) Boriow nss other than 1,626.70 !,626 7A

. .,il-----.] :l 30,000.00 30,000,00{b)subordinated Debts 30,000.00

(c) OtherflnanciaL Liabillties 2,!62 a8 /_\)/ ,, \r:\ 2,162.08 2,162.04

o

*w,.-

179.44

1,142.17
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The carrying va ue and fair value offinanciallnstruments by categorles as at April01,2020 are as follows:

35.2 FairValueHierarchy

35,2,1 thts secuon explairs thejudgments and estimates made in determlnligthe fair value of the financial lrstruments that are

(a)reco8nlzed and measured atialrvalue and (b)measured at amo.tized cost and forwhkhfalrvalues are disclosed inthe
flnancialstatements, t does not incLrde fairvalue information forflnancialassets and liabilities ifthe carrying amount is a

reasonable approximation of falr value.

35,2,2 Measurementof fanv.lues

Ihe above table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at f:ir
value,srouped lnto Levellto Level3, as described belowl

Levell -Ouoted prlces (unadjusted)in active marketsforldenticalassetsor liabiiues.
Level2 - rnput otherthan quoted prlces lncluded wlthin Levell that are obseruable for the assets or llabj ity, eirher dnectly (1.e. as

prlces)orlndlrectly(i.e.derivedfrom prices).

Level3- lnputsforthe asseb orthe iabiitiesthat are ble market data (unobservable lnputs)

?

{a) lnvestmert in equity

(b) lnvestment ln equity shares

4,156.16 4,156,164,156.16
116,46116.46 716.46(e) Other fina ncial a sets

246.66 246,66246.66

3,295.24 3,295,243,295.28

(b)subordinated Debts

92.67 92.6792.67

March 31,2021Mat.h 3!, 2022

1 1 3 7 2 31 2 3

FinancialAssets and Li.biliti€s which are measured atfairvalue rrecuiiingfatvalue measurement

(auoted)

6,912,49

10,00220.00

FinancialAssets and Liabilities w hich are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

44.62

(a) Borrowlngsotherthan

Aptil0!,2020

s>-
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VaLuation Methodologies of Iinancial lnstruments measured at fairvalue

r,irt"Jeqri v tr,".. 
"ru 

.*sured on the basis of closing rate of the stock exchange where equity^shares are listed'

rtart"" i, "i, " 
* .** *O base d on the plrblished net aset valLre (NAV) bv AM Fl a nd a re classifled as Level 1

Atternative Lnvestments Funds and Fixed Maturity Plan are measured on the latest NAV provlded bvthe fund house and are

c asslfied as evel3.

(l) Fairvalueof financlaLasset5and iabl ites measured atamortsed cost :

The fan v:tue of the financiat assets are included ar amounts at which the instftrments could be exchanged in a current

transaction between wilLing parties otherthan in a forced or liquidation sale'

(ii) The followins methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fairvalue:

(a)FairvalueofcashandcashequivaLents,vadeandotherreceivables,othelpayab]esandotherfinanc]alliabi]ities,
approximate their carrying amounts lareely due to the short-term maturities ofthese instruments

(b) Financial instrume.ts with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated bv the companv based on parameters such as

interest ratesand jndivtduaLcredirworthiness ofthe counterparty. Based on this evaluation, alLowan.esaretaken to account

forthe expected losses ofthese receivabes.

36, Maturity profile ol Assets and Liabilitieson undiscounted basG

Apri 01,2020March 31,2021March 31,2022

44,62

Apr 101, 2020March 31,2021March 31,2022
Wlthln 12wlthin 12

246,66t,!42,71!79,44Cnsh a.d cash equ va ents
100,00Bank balance otherthar cash and

12.33 18,54117,77
4156.162031176 L5279,A11443,9239350,39

10.007,132,49
116.4648.7075.00 503.93534,51Others Financla Assets

2.8990.14
6.182t.1724.14

83,06

747,r5ntanglbe assets under

1.870.334,05
23!.41226.53308,83 10,11100.47Other nonJlnancla assets

2797.5r
89.84to203,27rBo ow ng otner than Debt

30000.0030000.00
14,2491.24

-/4,47
2A7A.882371,23 53.62Other financlaL llablhties

Non-Financial Liabilities
22.33c!rerttax ilabi ities (net

L.731.19
15,51

73.22t37.7010.34

*6rossof processlngfeeof Rs,20.69 lakhs

f

!616.14

5.36

I 0.67

Other Non-Financial Liabillties

V
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37, Disclosureras required by hd 45-24'Related Party,

37.1 ListofRelated

37,2 The followjng transactions w.re carried outwjth Retated parties in the ordinary cou6eofbusiness
(Rs. in lakhs

*transferred as.equested bythe concerned borrowers

p

5.No Particulars ol Relationship
I Mufin Green Finance

Hindon Account
AggregaUon Seruices

Hindon Peer to Peer
Finance Private Limited

w.e.f March 09,2022

w,e,fOctober 15,2021

2 Key Management Personnel

ShrlAlaV (umar Chhabra
ManaginS Director w,e,f. September 07,2021

3 SUbsidiary of subsidiary Finle ligence Data

Science Prvate Limited
Relatives of Key Management

iGa M
Husband oISmt, Neha AAAarwal, Direcror

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Non-Executive Director w.e.t Octobet 23,2027
Nor-Execuuve Director w,e,f Nove mber 25,2021

Name ofthe Related party

31,2022 March 31,2021
159,87 563.97

Shri Ghanshyam Das coyal 3.59

235.72
r6.57 15,24
0,30

0irecto/s Rem!neration 150.00
312.00
372,O0

22A,Aa 505.57

shr Kap lGarg

4.92 2.!3
o.25
9.74

10.00

Hindon Account ASSregaUon Services Private

10.00
Findon Peerto Peer Finance Prilate Limited 200.00 10,00

1.00

26.t4 63.45

0.19

26,74 63.45
6,29 0.40

665,00
20.00

smt shelly Gars

665.00
105.00
r05.00

Hi.do. Peerto Peer Finance Private Limited

75.00

7346,57

Loan Portfo iotransferred 2A2A,2A
Loan accounts transferredN 1479.42

1400,00

Mufin creen Finance Limited

Refund5 of payments madeon
their beFilffrt-Al>:\

161,93

w.e.f .r!ne 16,2021

Non ExecuUve Directors

.s! V"
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37.3 outstanding balanceswith Related paties

* calculated as perlncomeTax Rules

37.5 No amount pertainingto related parties has been providedforas doubtfuLdebts or written off

37.6 Related pany relationshipisas identified bythe company

38 Earnln8s pershar€ {EPS)

Mat.h 31, 2022

Net Profitfor the vear (before ocl) (Rs. in Lakh, 693,14 23a,29

Welghted aveGge no. of Equity Shares 1,16,44,805 60,64,677

Diuted:veraEe no. ofEquity shares 1,16,44,805 64,64,617

Basic earninSs per share {Rs.) 5.95 3.93

D uted earriiCs Pe, share (Rs.) 5,95 3,93

Face va ue ofeach shsre (Rs.) 10 10

39 Disclosur€s of Leases puEuantto lndAS 116

39.1 The company has taken buildins on operating leaseforoffice use.

39.2 Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2021March 31,2022Nam€ ol the related party

o,22Loan outstanding (llablLity)Hlndon Account AgeregaUon

setuices Private Limited
Advance outstandlne GsseoHindon Peer to Peer Finarce

165a.88Advance recelved {llability)Mufin Green Finance Llmited

Shri(apilGarg,

Mat.h 3!,2022 March 31,2021March 31,2022 March 31,2021
4,26150,00salaryand Alowarces
0,20

Forthe year ended March
37,2022

Fortheyearended March
31 2421

16.61Depreciation Expenses

4.16
20,77

BuildinB

Forthe year ended March
31,2021

For the year ended Mar.h
31,2022

Balance atthe beginning oI the year
99.67

(16.61)

83,06Balance at the end of the year

V,

37.4 Particulars of Remuneration to (eY M anagement Personnel

March 31,2021

39.3 The chances inthe carryingvalue of risht ofuseassets (RoU)

r

75.00

S$D
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Ihe aggregate deprcciauon expense on RoU assets ls ircluded Lrnder depreciation and amoftizauon expense ln the

statement of Prolitand Loss.

39.4 Thebreak'upof curentandnon_drrentleaseliabilities

(Rs, in lakhs)

39.6 The detaits regardingthe ;ontractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basls

The company has prepa red flnancialstatement forthe year ended March 31, 2022,ln accordance with lnd as forthe first

time. For the periods upto and including the vea r ended March 31, 2021, the companv prep:red financial statement in

accordance with accounting standards notified under sedior 133 of the cornpanies A.t 2013, read together with the

companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006, as ame nded (Previous GAAP). AccordinslY, the cornpanv has prepared its

40 Pursuanttotheorder dated Septernber 14,2020 ofthe Nauonalcompany LawTribunal' New DelhiBench lv' inthematter
- 

"i"nrare".atio" "f 
vrfin Finance Limited and QTp Financiat seryices private Limited with Hindon rvler.antile Limited in a

scheme of amalgamation under se.lon 230 to;32 of the companres Act, 2013 (the 'scheme') w.ef ' 31st lulv, 2019'

i,rrii","o a",J l" --,a,nce with the scheme ofamalsamatio;' wjth effectfrom the appointed date' the companv has

"..lrm"a 
fo,"rufg"."tio" of Mufin Finance Limited & QTP Financlalseruices Private Limited in irs books of accounts as

p"iir,lo""i',e "rj*".*, 
Method" as described in Accountins standard(as)-l4 "Accountinsfor Amalsamations" issued

rvrh. rn(rirure 6f chartered accountants or Lndia. Ln.ccordance with Para 10 ofAccounting Standard {AS) lA"Accounting

,l ;;;;;., ;;.;;;anv nas en*ted saia amaLeamation recosnizinsthe identifiabre assets atrheir existine carryins

amounts. ln accordance with Paragraph 3s of afore;id Accounting Standard'14' the differen'e between the anount

recorded as share capitalissued andthe amount ofshare capitalofthetransferorcompanv have been adiuned in reserues-

41 Thecompany'smainbusinessisFinancingactiviues'AllactivitiesarecarrledoutwithinLndia 
As such there are no reportable

segments as per lnd A5 108 -',OperaUnS SeemFnts''

42 The company does not see anv chalenge in the recoverabillty ofthe carrylngvalues ol its a$ets and to its liquidity positlon'

TheeventualoutcomeofimpactoithecovlD-19pandem]cmaybeditrerentfromthoseestimatedasonthedateofapprova]
of rhese financiaL staternents and the compan; witt continue to monitor any materlal chanses to the future economic

43 Notes on Transition offlnancialstatementto lnd as

T.ansltion to lnd A5

financial statements to comply with lnd AS forthe vear

and forthe year ended March 31, 2021as described i

tinancial statements, the comPanyh opening BalanceSh

ended March 31, 2022, together with comparative inlormation as at

n the summary of siSnificant accounung policies.ln preparingthese

as at Apr I 1, 2o2O ie the transacuon date to lnd

r =o

March 31 2421March 3!,2022
29.44

Curent lease ll.billties
54,74Non-curcnt lease iabiLiues
a4.62

Mar.h 3 202720zz

97.80
4,16

t7
a4.62

Balance at the end of the

2427

36.30
58,79

39,5 The movementin lease llabilities

March 31,2022

95,09

,s.l")> t<) V



43.1 Exemptionsavailed.

(i) Deemed Costfor PropertY, Plant and Equipment-

fte Company has elected to continue with the carryirg value of all of its propertv, plant and equipme't recognized as of

April,20la(thetransitiondate).MeaslrredasperthePreviousGAAPandusethatcarryingvalueirsd_"emedcostasofthe
transition date under lnd AS.

(i) classification and Measu rement of Financial Asset

The comp:ny has ctassified the financiatassets in accordance with Lnd AS 109 on the basis offacts.nd.ir.umstances that

exist atthe date of transition to lnd As.

I{INDON MERCANTILE LIMITEI)
ctN u34300DL1985PLC021785
t.toTEsToTuTsTINDALONEFINANCIALSTATEMENTSFoRTHEYEARENDEDMARCH]1'2022

Asforthecompany.PreliousGAAPfinancialsstatementasonAprill,2020be!ngtransitiondateandforpreviousyear
ended March 31.2021have been rclated as per lndA5.

Thi!noteexpla]nstheprincipaladjustmentsmadebythecompanyinrestatingitsPreviousGAAPfinancialstatements,
]nc]udinEtheBalanceSheetasatAprill,2o2o,andthefin.ncialstatementsasatandfortheyearendedMarch3l,202l'

(r)

on assessmentofthe esurnates made under the previo!s GAAP fin.nciaLstatements, the company has con.tudedlhatthere

is no necessityto revise the estimate under lnd As, as there k no objecuve evidence of an error in those estimates. However,

estimatesthatwererequiredunderlndAsbutnotrequiredunderPreviousGAAParcmadebYthecompanyfortherelevant
reportinsdaresreflectingconditionsexistingasatthatdate.Thecompanymadeestimatesforfollowingitemsinaccordance

with lnd As atthe date oftransltion as these were not required under previous GAAP:

mpairme nt of fina ncia I .ssets based on expected credit loss model.

(ii0 classif ication and measurement of f inancial as5ets

The ctasstfication of financiat assets ro be measured at amortized cost orfair value through other comprehensive income is

made on the basis ofthe facts and circumstance that exlsted on the date oftransition to lrd A5'

43,2.2 Reconciliation of Equlty reported in Prevlous GAAP and !nd AS ls as under:

{iv) Exemption for business combination

The company has adopred not to apply tnd as 103 Business Combinations retrospectively to pass business combination

(businesscombinationthatoccurred beforetransitionto Lnd As)'

43,2,lReconciliationofnetprofitfortheyearendedMarch3l,2o2lbetweenthePreviousGAAPandLndAsisasU.der:

?

Period ended March 31,2021

318.33Net profitas per Previous GAAP

76,62lnterestincome on Flnance Lease (Refer note 1)

(91.47)
Renta income on Finance Lease {Refer note 1)

14,85rc.i.rron on assetsofrinance Lease {Refernote 1)
(80.04)

MArcredlt e ntitleme nt a djlrstme nt (Refer note 2)

238,29
Net Profit as per hd aS

Re measurementofthe deflned benefits p an

Total Comprehensiv€ lncomeas per hdAs

1,353.363,621.65Balance as per prevlous GAAP

1,353.36aalances as per lnd As

V:l

3,621.65

g),



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
ctN u34300DL1985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONtr FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR T}Itr YEAR ENDED MARCH 3I,2022

43.2.3 Re.onciliation of EquitY as at Aprll01,2o2o and March 3l,2021and Total comprehensive lncometor the vear ended

March 31, Z02r

a, Reconciliation ofEquityas at March 31,2021
rn Lakhs)

r lrV

s,No.

ASSETS

I

7,742.17 7,t42,17Cash and cash equivalents

b) Bank bahnces otherthan cash &
cash equlvalents

30.8730.87

35,592.8335,300,54d)

10.0010.00e)

552.63552.63f)

37,a2A.5017,016,2L

a) Defetredtax asets (net)

313.46 1292.29) 2t.\7Property, p ant & equipment

c)

d) lntangible assets under

0.33 0,33Otherlntangible assets

236.64Other non f nancialassets 236,64f)

zsa,t4550.43 \292.29)Total Non-f inancial assets

37,586,64 37,586.64

L|AAILIIIESAND EqUIry

LIABILITIES

It

i)Totaloutstanding dues of mkro
enterprhes and small

I ) Total o!tstanding dues of
creditotr other than micro
e.terprlses and sma

1,676.14
Borowings {otherthan Debt

securities) !,626.70
30,000.0030,000.00

2,t62.04Otherfirancia llabllities 2,!62 a8d)

33,788.78 33,788.78Total Financial Liabilities

Non-Financial tiabilities

^{rXa) currenttax liabiities (net) /-JZ / \:\ ,,33

LHI)

*

b)

22.33

.a-&



HIN'DON MERCANTILE LIMITED
cIN U34300DL1985PLC021785
NOTtrS TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31.2022

b) 0.67 4.67

15.51 15.51

Other non financlal iabilities 737.70 737,74

T.trl N.n-f in.n.irl liabilities 176.21 776.21

EQUITY

7,722.09 t,722.Q9

b) 2,499.56 2,499,56

3,621.65 3,621..65

Total Li.bilities and Equity 37,546.64 37,586,64

b. Reconc liauon ofEquityas at March 31,2020

s,

I

a) cash and cash equivalents 246.66 746.66

Bank ba ances other than cash & cash

dl 4,106.04 50.12 4,156.16

f) 116.46 116.46

4,469.16 50.12 4,519.28

a) Deferedtax asets (net) 2.88 2,88

Propeny, Plant & equlpment s6.30 (50.12) 6,18

d) ntansib e assets under development

e) Other ntangib e assets 1.87 1.87

f) Other non-flnancial assets 13L.4! 23t.41

Total Non-f inancial assets 292,46 242.34

4,761,62 4,767.62

LIABITIIIES AND EQUIIY

LIABILIT'fS

t

-f*r?>
D

Defered tax liabiiues (net)

455ETS

(s0.12)

I

ss V,



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
cIN U3430oDL1985PLC021785
NOTtrS TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATtrMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED I4ARCH 3I!2022

i)rotaloutstandins dues of mlcro
enterprises a n d smal

li) Total outstanding dues ofcreditors
otherthan micro enterprises
andsmallenterprises

b) Borcwings (otherthan Debr 3,295,2A 3,295,2a

cl

Otherfinancia llabllities 92.67 92.67

3,387,95 3347.95

Non-Financial Liabilities

Curent tax l:abllities (net) 5.36 5.36

b) 7.73 1.73

Defered tax iabiiues (net)

d) other non financial itabtlities 13.22

Total Non-f inancial li.bilities 20.31

EqUIIY

568.73 564,73

b) 784.63 744.63

1,353,36 1,353.36

Total Liabilities and Equity 4,76L.62 4,761.62

c. Total Comprehensive income forthe year ended March 31, 2021

t =a))

S.No.

Revenue f ron operations

4,033.69 16.62 4,7!4.3!
(ii)Fee and commission lncome 31.61 31,67

Total Revenue frorn operations 4,065.36 76.62 4,t41,94

197.47) 12.68

t 4,169.51 (14.8s) 4,154.66

1,532.41 1,532,41
(ir) mpairment of financial instruments /r,(9N 222.79 222,79

lr

I

I
rotal Financial Liabilities

13,22

20.31

104.15

s$



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITtrD
cIN U3430oDL1985PLC021785
NOTf,S TO TIIf, STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ItrARCH 3I,2022

(ili) Employee benefits expenses 87.26 87.26

(iv) Depreclation and amortization 18 14 (14.8s)

1,890.62 1,890,62

3,75t.22 (14.8s) 3,736.37

Profit before exceptional items End tax (lll-lv) 4\8,29 418,29

Vi Profit before tax (v-vl) 418.29 418.29

VI

161.60 161.60

(80.04) 80.04

3) Tax related to earlieryear

18.40 18.40

tx 31a,33 234,29

x Other Comprehensive lncome

A)i) tenrsthat willnot be reclassifiedto profitor lo$
li) lncome tax relaUngto items that willnot be

reclassif ied to proflt or lo$

B) i) ltemsthatwillbe reclassifiedtoprofitorLoss

i)lncometaxrelatngtoitemsthatwl bereclassified

rotal other comprehensive lncome {A+B)

xt Total comprehensive lncomeforthe year (lx+x) 234.29

d. Eflective lnterest Rate {ElR).

43.24 The Translto. from Previous GAAP to nd AS has no materal adjustments on the Statement of Cash Fow except
reca$lflcat on of certaln tems to confirm lnd AS presentauon

!pI!!!

The asset glven on finance leases bythe Compary accourted as property, plant and equiprnert under previous GAAP has

been restated as loan. Accordlngly, Lease renland depreciationaccounted under previous GAAP reversed and lnterest using

EIR isaccounted as lnterest lncome.

The company has evalLrated the facts and ctcumstances on date oftransition to lnd AS for the purpose of dasificatio,r and

measurementoffinanciaiassets/iinancialliablities.Accordingiybifurcationofa$ets/ilabilltiesasfinancial/Non financialis

idertified ard reclassified, Howeverthis reclassification ls not presented astransition adjustments,

Under PrevioLs GAAP, Transacuon cost5 char8ed to customers incurred bythe company was recognked upfront while under

lndA5,suchcostsarelrcludedintheinitialrecognltionamountoff!nancialasset/fnancialliabilityandrecognlzedaslnterest
income/interestexpenses usingthe effective interest met

P i) u

-

3,29

Profit forthe year {vll-vlll)

I

-t

318.33 |

b. MATcredlt entitlementadjusted from otherequity.

c. classification of financial instruments.



TIINDON MERCANTILE LIMTTED
clN u34300DL1 985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR trNDED MARCH 31.2022

e. Fair valuation forfinanciatAssets and uabitities,

The companv has values financialassets and liabilities, at fa,rvatue and changes are recognized in statement of profit and

f. Retained E.rninss.

Retained Earninss as ataprirol,2o2o have been adjusted consequentto the above nd A5 transition adjustments.

g. Expected Credit toss.

The companv made estimate ofimpairmentofFinancialAssets based on expected credit loss modetin accordance with hd
AS at the date ofrrarsition as these were not required under previous GAAP,

44. Disclosure as per RBt Notifications / CjrcutaE

44.1. Pursua nt to RBr circu ta r RBt/2021 22l12s DoR.srR.RE c.6a/27.04.O4A/2021 22 da:ed November 12, 2o21,on ,,prudentia 
I Norms

on lncome Recosnition, Asset classificati.n and provisioning pertaining to Advances - Cta riflcati;nJ, the company hastaken
necessary steps to revise its process of NpAcrassification to fra8 thebotrower as overdue as pan of the day€nd proce$ for

Fudher to this, on February 15, 2022, RBt a towed deferment of para 10 of rhe aforesaid circutar tilt September3o, 2022pertarnins to upgrade of.on pe.formrnS accoLrts. Howeler, the company has opted for the deferment.

44 2. There are ro write_offs/ technicar write-offs of non-performinS assers of roans durinE the year ended March 31,2022.rherefore, no discrosures are required in terms af ctculat Rsv2o21 1022/70+/oon.-'ro.srn"qEc.ss/zr.o 4.04a/2027-22
dared October12021.

44.3. Additionar discrosures, to the extent appricabre, rn terms of Master Direction DNBR.pD.oo8/03.10,119/2016,17 datedseptem ber 01,2016 (as amended):

March 31,2022 March 31,2021 Apri 01,2020
{r)

(i) GrossValue of tnvest.f ents

7132,49 10,00

(ii)

(ii)

7732.49 10,00

(2) provisions held towards depreciation

(,
(D P.ovlsions made durtngthe year

{i ) I write-off / write back of exce$
Provlsions duringtheyear

(v)

(b) Exposure to Real Estate sector:

P o

Ma..h 31,2022 March 31,2021 Apr 01,2020(A)

in lakhs)

I Provslon for Depreciaton

:.'lF+(

p> k



residential propedy that is or;i[ be
occupied by the borrower or that is

Lerdins futly securA
246,67 193.42 77,27

mortgages on commerciai
real estates (office buildinss, retail
spa.e. muhpurpose.ommercral premises.
multrfamrly residential bu ldine, mutn,
tenantedcommerciat premise, industriator
warehouse space, hores, and a(qu6ihon,
development and .onstructron, €t(.).
L,posure would a so indude noFfund baled

iii)
M Bs)

Fund based and non-fm
u Bank NHB) inE

l-l

236.67 193.42 77.27

IIINDON MtrRCANTILE LIMITED
clN u34300DLt985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED MARCH31.2O22

khs)

P ?

March 31,2022 1March 3 0(i) nment in equity shares, convertbl;
bondt convertibte debentures and unirs ot
equiry orieited muruatfundsthe corpus of
which is oot exc usivety invested in

6972,49

(i)

othersecurtties oron ctean basis to
individualsfor investment in sha.e5 lin.tud ns
rPOs/ EsoPs) convertibte bonds , (onvertjbte
debentures, and Lrnits of equity,orienred

Advances againstsh

(i,
converuble bonds or convertibte debentures
orunits of equity oriented mutuat tunds are

rpurposeswhereshares.r

(rv)

secured bythe co[aterai securiw ofshare5
or convenible bonds or conventbte
debentures or unirs ofequityonented mutuat
funds r.e. where thepl rma./securitvorhpr
than shares/convertibte bonds / c;rvertibte
debentures / units of equityoriented mutual

er p!rposestothe exteft

(v) secured af d unsecured adva
and guaraf tees issued on behatf of stock

(vi)

(vii) nture capirat Funds (bothAl €xposurestoG

t/.l./

(.) Etposure to capitat Market:

,<#H?1111

g>



HII\'DON MERCANTILE LIMITED
cIN U34300DLl985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONtr FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR f,NDtrD I\LARCH 31,2022

44.4.1 Details of loans not in defauLt transfered during the year ended March 31, 2022 under the Master Direction BBI

(Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021 dated septembet 24,2o2!:

44.4.2 Details ofstressed loans (specialMention Accou nts 'SMA') tra nsfered durins the Year ended lvarch 31,2022 under the

MasterDlrection-RalfiransferofLoanExposurerDirections,202ldatedsepternber24,202l

in lakhd

F.om lenders listed in clause 3

1,206

Asgregate princlpal outstandingof loaistransfe(ed (Rs. ln lakh, 988 86

Welshted average residua tenorofthe loans transfeired (ln month, 10.76

Net bookvalue of loanstransferred (atthetime of transfer) 988.86

Assresate conslderation (Rs. in akh, 988.86

Additioral.onsideration realized in respect ofaccountsttansfered in ear ier
NJ

44.5 Details ofGross Advances, Gross NPAs, NetAdvances and Net NPAS duringthe yearended March 31,2022 pursuant to the

Master circular Prudential norms on lrcome Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaininB to Advances

dated october 1,2021:

P

From lenders listed in clause 3

1,839.42Aasresate amoL nt of loanstransferred (Rs.ln lakhs)

11.76Weishted averase maturitv (in months)

6.15Weighted average holdlns perlod (in months)

NJRetentionolbeneflcialeconomicirterestbytheorlginator

70a%Tangible securlty coverage

Rating wise distribution ofrated loans

40,747,581

389.092 cross Non pe rformlng assets (NPA,

4L,136.613 GrossAdvances (1+2 )

0 95%Gross NPAs asa percentage ofGrossadvances (2/3)(ln %)

126.45) Provislons held in the case ofNPAAccounts as perasset

classification (includinBadditional ProvislonsforNPAsathigher
than prescribed 6tes).

NJDICGC/ ECGCclalms received and he d pendlngadjustment(ii)

N](ir)

NI(!v) BaldnLe rn 5und,ie! A((oLrt (l.te'esr Cap.Ll?a,io1
Restrudured Accounts), in respect of NPAAccounts

Nillv)

Nilvil pr.vicons n ie!oldimlnuuon rthefairvaueolrenruct!red

1,4
V

Part payment received and kept nSuspe.seAcco!ntorany

\S+2;



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
ctN u34300DL1985PLC021785
NOTtrS TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATtrMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3I.2022

Provisions in lieu of dlminution in the fairvalue of restructured
accounc classified as standard assets

NI

6. 47,4L0.22

NetNPAS12s(l+ + l+ v+v+v)] 262.64

8 Net NPAs as percenrase of Net Advances (7/6)(in %) 4.64%

i Provisionsor Standard Assets exdudings(vi) in PartA

1 lnterest recorded as Memorandum tem NI

3 Amountofcumu ative Technical Write Off n respect ofNpAaccounts
reported ln Partaabove

NI

446 Dsciosures putsuantto RBr Clrcularno. RB/2019 20/170 DOR/NBFC.CC.pD NO,109/22.10.106/2019 20 dated March 13,
2020

?

lndAS 109

Net
carying AS 109

{1) (2) (3) (41 (5)=
(3)-(4)

(7)=
{4)-(6)

Stage 1 37a81.58 201.58 37680,00 151.53 50,05
Stage 2 2466.00 2851,67 11,46 z.a7

40747.54 215.91 162.99 52,92

Non-P€rforming Assets
(NPA)

Stage 3 389.09 726,45 262.64 38,91 81.54
Doubtfu - up to lyear Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 2

Sta8e 3

Stage r 37881,58 37680.00 151,53 50.05

Stage 2 2866.00 14.33 2851.67 71,46 2.47
Stage 3 389.09 126,45 262,64 38,91. a7,54

4t714.67 342,16 40794,31 201.90 !40,46

(v i)

215.91

(6)

14,33

40531,67

201,58

t

\rw'



Asset Classif ication ae

109

109

45109

(1) (21 (4) {5}=

l3)-{4}

(6) (7)=

{4)-(6)

Stage 1 34723.45 86.08 34631.71 86.81 (0.73)

Stage 2 764 00 191 762,49

35487,85 87.99 35399.86 (0.73)
Non-Performing Ass€ts

(NPA)

214 47 27.44 792.97 21.44
Doubtfu - up to lyear

Stage 3

Stage 3

Stage 3

Sta8e 1

stage 2

which are i.the scope of
lnd AS 109 but not
covered undercurent

Asset Classlf i.ation and

St:ge 3

34723,a5 86,08 34637.77 86.81 (0.73)

sta8e 2 764.00 1.91 762.49 1.91
Stage 3 214,4! 27.44 t92.97 21.44

35742,26 109.43 35592.83 110.16 (o.13)

HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
ctN u34300DL1985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATf,MENTS FOR THtr YEAR ENDED MARCH J1.2022

202\

Note: The compa.v has rransfefied Rs. o-73 Lakhs representing the amount of difference between the toss alowance as
required under lnd 45'109 and the provisior required as per prudertial norms on tncome Recognitior, Aset ctassificationand Provisioning to tmpairnenr Reserve in terms of RB notification RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.pD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020.

44.7 Dlsclosures or LiqLidity Risk Management, to the extent appticabte required
DNBR.PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated Seprembero1,2016 (as amended)l

44.7.1 FundinS contentration based on significant counter party

by Maxer Directon of RB -

f zo

As at March 31,2021
5,

1 zo 40272,46 94.30% . i l1 .'), 7 37626.70 93.72%

i

{3)

1.91

44.72

Stage 3

Stage 3

I

$ij> V



HIN'DON MtrRCANTILE LIMITED
crN u34300DLI 985PLC021785
NOTES TO THtr STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YtrAR ENDtrD MARCH 3I,2022

44.7.2 Top 10 Borrowings

in lakhs)

% Of total

I 45s.52 40272.46 1,,13% 782,2A 37626.7A 0.58%
2 341,94 40272,46 o.as% 1.62 3!626,7a a.a\o

3 CSB Bank 0,00 40272.46 0.00% 15.58 31626.70 0,05%
4U.96 40272.46 r.oz% 410.65 31626.7A 1,30%

5 36794,34 40272.46 91,36% 37016.24 37626,7Q 94.07%

6 195.59 40272,46 o.49% 0.00 31626.74 0,00

Agility 90.74 40272,46 0,23yo 0,00 3!626.7Q 0.00

8 423.9' 40272.46 L,O5% 0.00 37626.70 0.00

9 463.45 40272.46 t.15% 0.00 31626.10 0.00

10 790,61 40272.46 t,96% 0.00 31626.70 0,00

40212,46 0.50% 0.00 0,00

44.7,3 Funding concentration bar€d on instrument/product

44.7,4 sto.k Ratios - OtherShort Term Liabitities

s.

Name of the instrument

As at March 31,2021

Iiabilities % oftotal liabilities

L

2

3

Loan repayable on demand 7529.42

1749.60

993.04

30000,00

t7.62%

4.10%

2.33%

70.24%

7427.37

0,00

199.39

30000.00

4.2A%

a.a0%

0,59%

88.33%

7,2OZ2 As at March 31,2021s

Short

Iiabilities

%

%

liabilities

%

aslsq

%

%

I 2341.58 5.97% 5.58% ,^f ,Frfr.k) \ 2230.91 1.05% 6,57% 5,94%

:-,| V

S,No,

CKERS

Ltd,

200.00 37626.74

7

11

?
^\z.l.9t q1



HlNDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
clN u34300DL1985PLC021785
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3I.2022

44 8 Disclos!res on Asser Liabiritv Management (ALM) required bv Master Direcron of RBr- DNBR.pD.oo8/03.10.119/2016,17
dated Septem ber 01,2016 (asamended):

44.9 RBt

l-

(
z.o

*

s!



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED

CIN; U34300DL193sPLc0z173s

NOITS IO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL SIAIEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3'2022

44.9 Schedule in terms ol Pa.asraph 19of"Non-Banking Financial compary-Non systedi@llylmportant Non-Deposittakingconpany lReterue B.nk)

Dtedio.s, 2016 .s amend€d.

?

11) Loans .nd advances availed by the non-banklng linanclal .ompany
ih.llsileollnter€staccruedth€reon but not paid :

: Unsecured

(otherthan fa lingwithlnthe meaiingof public deports)

(d) rnter.orpoEte loads and boirowlnE

(c) otherLoam Gpecrynatre)
12) Breal up oJ (1)(f) abov€ loutslandins public deposits inclutiv€ o,
interestaccruedth€reo. blt not pald) :

{a) h thetord of Unsecured deb€nrur€s
(b) i the form ofpartLysecured debentures i.e. debe.tureswhere there h
ashortfa nthevalueoJs€curity

(31Br€ak'upo, Loanr and Advances lncluding bilh receivables lother than

ihoseincruded in 14) belowl :

4) Break up ol Leased As€ts and sto.k on hne and othe, assets colnti

1iv)6.remmo,t s.art s

(i) Debeiturerand Boids

(vl Gov.rnmenrse.urlrles

nve(ment,n A F atrd Othe.
Curentinve meit

1i ) oeoeniures.id Bondi

liulcovdimentsetu,te5

H\

1 ) Lease aset n. ud ns ease re ta s und.rsund d.btor l

( )Sto.k.n h rc rc Jd igh r..harges uider5undrydebto6:

( i)otherro.ns..uxnstow.rdsAFca.tvter
lalL.a !wlrer! a$etshave be.n repo$e$ed

1b) ift roothsrhaniar sbove
(s) Break.up of lnvestmenrs

ss,> V



HINDON MERCANTILE TIMITED

cr N: u 34300D r193sP rC02173s

NOTES IO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAI STAIEMENTS FORTHEY

(vr co?e rft.nrse.!rrres
l6) Borowersroup-wlse classif ication or assets f inanced as in

amount (net o, pmvkions) amount (netof prov s onr)

(b)companies nthe same sroup

l7)lnvesto.sroup'wiseclasnncalionofallinvestmentslnshaGsandsecuritles:

lbl aomoailes n the 5ame gr.up
l.rOther ro ated pai( e5

(i) Gross Non-Perrornins assets

(b) otherlhan re ared pafties
(ii)Net No. Perlormins asets

(b)otherthan related part es

liii) Assets a.quned h satisfa.tion or debr

?
z,)

V.



HIN'DON MERCANTILE LIMITED
ctN u3430oDL1985PLC021785
NOTTS TO TUT ST,TNDALONE FINANCIAL STATf,MENTS FOR THE YtrAR ENDED MARCH 3I'2022

45 otherdisclosures/information

4s.1 Additional information requked as perSchedule ltl ofthe companies A't, 2013 :

(i) Details of benami proPerty held

NoproceedingshavebeeninltiatedorarependingagainstthecompanyasatMarch3l,2o22forholdingbenam!property
unjerthe Benami Tra nsactions (Prohibition) act (4s of 1988), as amended and rules made thereunde''

(li) Borowingsecurcdagain5tcurrentassets

The company has raken overdrafrfacitities from the banks against pledge ofthe securiues ofgoLd loan assets. The periodical

retu rns/statements filed by the companYwith these banks are in agreeme nt with the books ofaccounts'

{iii) wilflldefault.r

The companyk not declared wilfuldefauter bvanv ban(financialinstitution or lenderas at March 31,2022'

{iv) Relatlonshipwithstruckoff comPanies

There are no transadions rnade bvthe Companv during the vear with struck off companies as at March 31,2022'

(v) compliance with numberof layers ofcomPanies

Ihecompanyhadcompiedtheprovisionsofsect]on186ofthecompan]esAct,2ol3inrespectofnumberoflayersof

lvi) Comptian@ with apProved scheme{s) of arran8ement5

ouringtheYear,noschenreofarangementsinrelat]ontothecompanyh.sbeenapprovedbythecompetentauthoritY]n
terms ofSecrion 232 to 237 ofthe Companles Ad,2013. Accordinel, this cbuse is not applicable to the company'

{vii) Utilisation of borowed fundsand 5hare Premium

As a part of normaltending business, the company grants loans and advances on the basis ofseculity/guarantee provided

by the Borrower/Co'borrower' These tra nsactions a re conducted after exe rcising proper due diligence'

otherthan transactions described above, durinS the year the companY has not advanced or lend or invested flrnds (either

lromthe bo owed funds or share premium or any other sources ol kind offUnd, to any peBon or entity, including foreign

entity(lntermedialie,wththetndeGtandinS(whetherrecordedinwitingolotherwke)thatthelntermediaryshall(a)
direcl[ or ]ndjredty te.d or tnvest in orher persons orertities tdentified in any manne r whatsoeve r by or on behalf of the

comp;ny (uLtimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provtde any Suaranree, secority or rhe tike ro or on beharf of the uttimate

The company has not received any fund from anv pe6on or entitv, induding foreign enutv (Fundins Partv) with the

undersbnding(whethelrecordedinwritingorotherwGe)thatthecompanYshall(a)directlyorindirectlylendorinvest]n
other persons orentities idenufied in any mannerwhatsoever by oron behalfofthe Fundins Party (u timate Beneficiarie,

or(b)provideanyguarantee, security orthe ike on behalfofthe ultimate beneficiaries

(viii) undisclosed income

The company does not have any unrecorded transacuons in rhe book5 ofaccounr which have beer su(endered ordisclosed

as lncome duringthe year in the tax assessment underthe lncome Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) Iransactions io cryPto curr€nc'y or vinual currencY

The Company has not traded or invested ir crypto currencv orvirtL:l.urencv during the vear erded March 31,2022'

(x) Revaluation of property, plant& equiPment and inta.gible asset

The company has not rev.[]ed its prop€rty, plantand

durlngthe year ended March 31,2022
ng right of use assets)orlntangible assets or both
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HINDON MERCANTILtr LIMITET)
cIN U34300DLI 985PLC021785
NOTf,S TO THtr STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED MARC}I3I.2022

(xi) Re8istr.tion of cha.Ses or saflsfaction wirh Registrar of Companies

There are no charges o'satisfacuon which are pendingto be registeredwiththe Registrarofcompaniesas on March 3r.2022
45,2 Othe. St.tutory ihformation

(i)

(ii)
Duringthe year provsions ofSe(ton 135 ofthe Corrrerewdsrodrounlortsrano,"e"nooretoru,n<"Plnes&r'20I3 s nor dopl'cable to lhe comp"nv.
MarL\ )t,2022. er to 1're 'nvPsLor LoJ.ation ara protectron.und ourrne rhe vear endeo
The Companv has no ton8 term contracrs inctLdirr3t,2022, J derivative contracts having materialforeseeabte to$es as at March
The(onp.ryha\norre@iveddnywh,sl.eotower,oro.a.ntdLr,lerheyedrenoedMa(nlI 

202,rfiere are no pending ttigations as at March 31.2022
rr-e,e rre, o oris.a;.n; du;;i;,;,;;;;"i:ffi; ::fi'sinpact on the Irnarciarpo'\ition;trhe compdnv.
.n'" p'i.e, oe,",oo,enr a... ,o;; i ;il;;;' .Y 'ro- and s-ndr Lntero'Bs ou6uanl to v'cro smcrrand r.4ediLr

:l::19,"i1,-"":,".,.,",",,;;,;;;;;,'i;;:il; 1ff":l^X,,;.,i i:?,, ,va-(,- 3r ,02, \i, Ap,,' or 2o2o . N,,)
rrere rs no Core tnvestment Company within the eroup as defined in the regulations made bythe Reserve Bank of tndia,

li )

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

46

*rhe Compafy i; not requiredto compl V with the gu detin; on Liquidity Coverage qati04,11.2019 RBt/2019-20/88 DOR.NBF c (PD)Cc. No.102/03
o (LcR)in line with

10.001/2019 2O ksued

Previous yearfigures have been resrouped / rearanged ro confirm current year presentation wherever necessa

As peroLr repoirofeven date anached

Fo. RSD & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Be8isvation No, 012777N

FOR ANO ON BEHATFOFTHE BOARD

L,:
Membership No,526051

D)N: O7723426Membership No.446666

=)

37.O3.2022* 31,03,2021

(CRAR)

0.98 14.9A (93.46)

449 9,83 (9s.02)

March gth, 2022.

4.49 5,15 (s0.4e)

Nigh Quallty

Dater September JO, 2022

DI 477769a7
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RSD&CO
fff.{ # 3 .$'"ff il F} .4{ { * {i 3 ?,''c Z TS

106A, Apra Plaza'A', Plot No.29, Community Certtre, Rord No. 44, Pitampura, Delhi - 110034
' Ph No: 011-42644475, (M.) +91-9811141755 E-Mail: frail2rsd@gmail.com

Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ta th* lvlembers of Hindon Mercantile Limited

&pZrzz*n

We h*ve audited the acc*mpanying Consolielated Fi::ancial Staternenls of t'$isndmu"r Mercazz€?tre Z*2r*22*d

{"the l-iolcling Company"} and its subsidiari*s {H*lding Campany and lts subsidiaries together referr*rl lo
*s "the firoup"], which cnrnprise the C*rt**1i**?.*d **,\artr* Sh**t *s at March 37,2A22, and the
{lensolidated Siai*ment nf $}rnfit ancl Loss {trzcus*usg *ih*r ccmpr*hensive *c*r{re}, the C*nr*lldat*d
Stmten"rent *{ Ctsa*ges in Eqr"rity and the C*ns*lidat*ri Cnsh fX*ws Steien:ent l*r lhe year th** *r*eci ni'l

thal rlate *nd n surtl{r1.&ry *f significant accsunting policies and ather explanalary inf*ri:l*tian ('"ihe
Con sciid aied Fi n nrrcial Stet*rr,*nls'"),

1n our *pinion *r":d to the best *f *ur infcrmalicr: and accor"ciing to the expla**ti*r:: given to ua, the
af*res*i* consolidat*d financial statements give the \nf*rrnalirsr, r*quired *y T*e Companies Art, ?0J"3,

{'-the Acl"} i:r lhe manner s* require* **,* give n Lrue and fnir vi*,;v in ccnfmrrnity rrvlth th*in*ia* &rr*unting
Ste*d*nds prescribed *n**r section 133 cl lhe &cl r*ad wilh th* C*rnpanies (Indimri &ccnuntlng
stendards) Ruies, ?n15, ** *m*rz.ded, {"1nd &5"} a*d nther ncruunting r:rincipl**;***rally accepi*d in

\*42a, *{ the callsolirlated stete *f affairs of ihc Gi-uirp a; at }1e i-cli iL, 2*22, r:{ Z** e*rs*iidnte* pr*fit nnd
*thcr ccnrpreher:=!va in*:orne, ccnsulideted change= in *,qsti|y *r,* iZ* cons*lideteC c*slr flr:lls lcr t|":e year
ended on rhat Caie.

ffimsds ft>r a:p*ni*m
V,le conducted *ur audlt of the consolidat"** fir,a*ci*l glat*n:e*t* ir' acc*rrlance with th* Sl*nC;rds on
Auditirrg {"SAs"l specified uncler sect,sn l-43{10} *f l*e Act. *ur r*sponsihililies under t?t*** Star,darls
ar* further *escribed rn the Auditor's Responsihilities for the Auriii af lhe cons*lidated fi*ancial statennents
scction uf curr*part. We are independent ef thc fir*r"rp in ncc*rdance with the C*d* *f Ethics issued i:y
trirstitute *f Chartered Acccuntant *f India (-ICAI") together with the ethical r*quirement*l*,at *re relevant
to our audit *f c*nsoXidated financial staternent under the provisicns rf tl"le &ct and the Rul*sthereunder,
and we !:ave fulfillecl oun other ethical r*sponsibiiiti*sin atcr:r*ar.lce witi": the reEUirsm*nts cnd the 1{"A1'*
r*d*.;:f er?,trs, \{,te believe ih*t lhe e udil evrclerrce oblarned L:y us is suffu:t*rtt and apprcpriale lo provide a

lr;lsis fcr **r cpinion on the c*zssali*afed financia! stal*ments"

Isz€*:rrx'lat[sn ****r than *he flnmncial *&eeer**m{* *zz* &"*a*\k*r'* repmu-& theracn
The {-ioidrng t*ntS:any's Eoard of Dii"*ct*r* is respon=rble f*r th* nthcr infci"matian, l-he *ther:nf*rm*tion
cor"npris*r lhe infornration in;iucied ifi t*e Drr*ctar's Repnrt anC its Annexui"e bLrt does **t i*clzsde lh*
consolidated fin*ncial slalements and our auditcr's report th*re*n.

Our opi*ion *n lhe consolidated financ!ai statements does n,:t cover the other infarrnati*r: an* v;e do not
*x,prc*s any form of *Esilrance conclusi*n therecn"

In ecnnection with our audit *f th* consolidated financial statements, our responsibilily is to read the ather
informatinn anci, in doing so, c*nsider whether such other information is materially inccnsistent with the
cansoliciated financial statem€nts or cur knowledge cbtained in the audit or otl-ierwise appears to be
materially n:isstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we c*nclude that there is a materiai
misstatement *f this other information, we are required to report Lhet i*ct. We have n*t*.ing to report in th!s
regard.
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fresp*rcs*bilitEes af mramagwattemft asad the>ee cft"xmrged wr$Eh gowern&mea f,mn th* amntscEEdmted

fE mm ncim $ staeffi !'nemtg

The i-lalding eurnpany's Board cl ilireet*rs rs respnn*ibte f*r the preparation and pr*sent*tran af thesc

consoiidated fir:ancial statemeilts in terrn af the requirement: *f the &ct that give a true ond fair view *f the

r*ns*lidated state *f affairc, ccns*lidated prnfit" a*.* *thc!" cornprahensive infin"le, ccr:saiidntad changes tn

equity and cans*lidaled cnsh flctrs nf th* Group in acc*r**nce wllh lh* acc*unting prineiplms generally

accepterl in I*rlia, includi;:g the lndian Accnui"ltin2 Standards ("Ind A5") speeified under sectlon X33 cf the

fi,rt rea* with thc Ccrnpnnies {trndian Acc**nlirrg Stanrlnrds} ru}es 2C15 ns amei:ded,

Tlie re*pectiv* Bc*rd nf Dir*ct*rs *f the C*r-npa*ie= included in th* Group fire responsii:!e l*r mflintenanfr€

ol *d*quate acc*untir:g recnrds in nccord*rrce with the pr*visions *f the Art f*r safegLlarding the assets

of the Gncup *nd for pr*v*ntirtg and d*t*rtinq {ratsds and cther irregularitier; E*lection and applicaticn *f
apVr*priat;: accuur:ling policies; r::aking jL;dEments and est!mates th*t rre reasorlfrble and prr-:dent; *nd the

design, implernenlati*r: *nd mainten*nce oi adequate intcrnal finar:ciml {oillrflts, lhal v+ere oper*tiirg

effectively for ensuring the accuracy anel completeness *f theaccounting records, relevant to the preparation

*nd pr*:entation of the consolidafed financial statementE lhat g!ve a tr*e *nd fair view and are fr*e fronr

rnaterial mi$st*temenl, wheth*r due t* fraulct ar *rror, which have been used f*r the purpnse of preparation

af ttre cansolidat*d financlai staleffienls by the Directors af the HcldinE C*n:pany, as afmresaid.

trn prepnring the c*nsnlid*t*d fin*ncini 5taternefit5, the respective Srard *f Directors cf lh* Cornpani*s

ine!udecl in th* Gr*up ere re$ponsible far *ssessing lhe ability *f the respective {*rnp*rz'S to cofiliuLJe as a

goilg c*ncern, disclosing, a= *ppltc**1e, rnaLterrr*,|*i** ao qsing fonceril and Llsing the gc!::g concern bnsls

of *ccmunt!*g u*less rnanasem*nt eith*r intends ta liq*!rl*l* their r**pective Campai^rY or t* f,ease

oper*ai*ns, or has no reclistir altern*tive but to do 
=*"

The respect!ve *cari *f ilirect*rs ul lhe cun:panies !lc!*derj ir: the Group *r* respcnsible fcr ct'er=**ing
ti:e finans:ial reponting frr*{*** *t t** Gr*up.

&.a3ffiaZ*r's reapcmmsEE:*XEt[ee ?mn t?c* auxdit *€ tfux a*ns*x$$dated f$rlanclmI s€*tmswents

Our otllectives frr* to *btain rea:anm[:le assilrance a*nrit v,ihctlrer th* rcnsclidated fir:ancial statemenls

*= n wh*ie are lree fi-*r'n mal*rrai n:ts=lalemenl, trhciher dr-le t* fraud or error, and tc issu* *n,&u<j:t*r's

R.eport that includes uulr *pinion. Reasona*!e nssuranre is * h!gh Xev*l *f assurance, b*t is n*t fi gilarantee

that an *udit c*nduct*d in acc*rdance wilh 5A= rv!ll alw*ys deteel a maNerial missl*ternent when it *xisls.
Misstat*mentp can arise fro*: fraud *r crror and are considered materiai if, !ndividually or in the aggregate,

th*y cauld reaso::aLrly be expected tn influence the econ*mie decisions rf users taken an the basis of lhcse

consc'.;ated financial stater1r11s.

As part of *n aufiit in acrordance with SAs, ire *x*rciE* prolessi*nal judgnre*t and m*intain professianai

skeplicism thraugh*ut the aud!t. We alsn

irlentify ancl a$zess the risks *{ rnaf.erial misstatement cllh* cons*liclaled financiai st&tsmefils, t''rhether

due t* ?raud *r err*r, design ancl perf*rnr audit procedures responsive tc lhose risk:, and cbtain audit

evid*nce that is sufficient and appr*priate t* pravide a basis f*r rstsr api*icn. The risk of not rietertinq a

rnat*rial misstaterfient resultinE from fr*ud is high*r than i*r one neEulting frcrn error. as fraud rnay

involve collusion, f*rgery, intenti*nal omis:i*ns, r"nisrepres*ntations, *r ?-?te *v*rride cf internai c*ntrcl.

0*t*in an underel*nding *f inter*al contrc! r*lev*nt to the aud!t in crder to design audit procedur*s

thal are appr*priate in lh* circumstmnces, Under sect:on 1i.3{3}(i) of the Acl, we are also responrible

lor expressinE our cpinlon on whether the Yl*l*irsg C*mpany and ils subsidiary can:panies which *re
c*mpanies inc*rporated in Ir:dia have adequate internal firrancial c*ntrols wilh reference ta the

ccnsalidated financial stalen-Ients and the operatin! effectiveness of such contr*ls.

Evaluate the appropriaten*ss of accounting policiee r-rsed and the r**sonableness *f accounling

estimates anrJ related dlsclosures mad* by nranagemtnt"

Conclude an the appropriateness of managernent's use of the going concern i:asis of accounling and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists related l* events or

canditions that n':ay cast significant doubt rr: the e bility of the Gr*up to continue as a gotng ccncern.

if we conclucie that a material uncertainty existsn we ar€ required to draw attention in our auditor's
repnrt to the related disci*sures in the consolidated financial $tatements cr, if such disclosurcs are

inadequate, to rnodify ouropinion. Ourconcll:sions are hased on the audit evidence obtain*d Lip to the

date of our auditnr's report. However, future events nr conditions may cause the Group tc ce*se t*

tr)
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[cnliftile as a g*ir:q c0nccri]

[v*lu*te the cvernll present*li*n, str*cture and csntent nf the eans*lidated financi*l ststeft:entso

including the diselosuresi and whether the cunsciidated l!::**cial st*tements repne=ent the u*d*t"lyi::6

trafisaclio*s and eiJ*nts in a monner tirat achieves f*ir presentztiort.

Obtain suffirient appr-opriate audit evid*nce reqarding the fin*ncial informati*n of the enliti*s cr

bi:Eir:*,s* nctivities within th* Gr-*up t* expr*,ss arr cpini** on the c*nsolidated fi*ancial stalen:ents. We

are r*spsnsible f*r the directimn, supervision and perforni*nce al the audit af th* financial stmtcm*nts

of =url'r e*lilies !*rli:cled in the sr:*sali*,at*d flna*cial statemeilt$ *f :.,vhich ?{* are th* !nciependent

*1.:ditor=. Fnr ti':* mther *nliti*s inclu**d in the c*nsolid*l*rl fii-lnr:c!al stei*ments, which hav* been

auciited b7 other audilors, such t:ther auditors ramain nespor':sihle f*r the 11!recticn, supervisio*and
p*rlnrm*r:ce ef th* audits carri*.* **i by th*n.:. !\l* remain **l*1y resp*nsihie f*r aur *udit mpini*n"

We communicate with th*se charged with governance of the Hclding Campany and such other entilies

included in the ccnsolidated fir:ancial state ments *l which w* are the !r:dep*nd*nt auditr.:rs reqarding,

*{7:*{1# *ther rnatters, th* p!nnned srcpe anri tirning *1'lh* audit and sign!licant *udit findinqs, !nrludlnE

any stEnifican,*.d*{ir.ierssi*s in inLerfial t*r.,tr*i th*l v're irlentify dL:ring our *urlit.

life also prcvide thuse rharged wilh *cvarnfrnc* r;'rith a =i;tan:enl thal we h*ve eomp!ied r,a;ith reievant ethical

ruquirement* r*gar.Jing indep*n<1enee, *nd to cnrnr*unicate t:+ii* them nll relalionships mnd olher i'i:atl*r$

t?zatrn*t; reasun*bly be thought to bear on ilur indep*niler:;*, and wlrere apSslita*l*, related saf*guarr1s.

Sther *€att*rs

1. We draw attention to Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements in which the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries namely Mufin Green Finance Limited (formerly APM Finvest Limited) and Fintelligence
Data Science Private Limited describe the uncertainties arising from the Covid-19 pandemic.

Z. We did not audit financial statements of 2 subsidiary companies whose financial statements/financial
information reflect total assets of Rs. 10,300.71 lakhs*as at March 3L,2022, total revenue of Rs.

1,525.69 lakhs and net cash inflow of Rs. 889.08 lakhs for the year ended on that date before

consolidation adjustments, as considered in the consolidated financial statements which have been

audited by their respective independent auditors. The independent auditor's reports on the financial

statement of these entities have been furnished to us and our opinion on the consolidated financial

statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these entities,

is based solely on the report of such auditors and the procedures performed by us as described in the
Auditor's' Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

3. We did not audit Intermediate consolidated financial statements of 1 subsidiary company comprising 1

subsidiary whose financial statements/financial information reflect total assets of Rs.328'92 as at March

37,2022, total revenue of Rs.45.39 lakhs and net cash outflow of Rs.54.50 lakhs for the year ended on

that date before consolidation adjustments, as considered in the consolidated financial statements which

have been audited by its independent auditors. The independent auditor's reports on the consolidated

financial statement of this subsidiary company have been furnished to us and our opinion on the

consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in

respect of this subsidiary company, is based solely on the report of its auditors and the procedures

performed by us as described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Au.dit of the consolidated financial

statements section of our report.

The comparative financial information of the Group for the year ended March 3L,2O2l included in these
consolidated financial statements, have been prepared by the management after adjusting the previously
issued financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,

2006 to comply with Ind AS. The previously issued financial statements were audited by M/s' PGSJ &
Co., Chartered Accountants and their repoft for the financial year ended March 3L, 2A2l dated October
23, 2O2L expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Adjustments made to the
previously issued consolidated financial statements to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters on the
comparative financial information.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
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R*pxnrt *n *rtker legal and r*gu1aZ*ry nequlireareerz€s

A,s required by sectinn 143t3) of tlre Act, b*sed sn our *udil and on the c**sideratian rf eudit
reports*n e*parate finaneial statements of its subsidiaries, we r*pcrt, lo the exae{}l applicaL:le, that:

*i ltle have sousht and *?s?"ain*d all Lhr rntorn:alion and e<planations which Lo the best of *ur
knowledge and belie{ tw*re nece$sary for the p*rpos*s of *lu' nudit cf the af*resnirl
consolidaled finerncia! statements.

h) \n r:zsr *pini*n, proper books *f ftc(ount as r*q*ired by law r*l*ting to th* ,:reparation of the
*?<sresaid cr:n*clid*te d financial st#t*nrents have i:een kept so far as it app**rs fr*nr our
ex*nrinaIicn *{ t**** bocks and the repcrts nf th* *ther auciitnrs.

e] The Consolidated Baience 5heet, the C*-solid *?.*d Sfat*me ni *f Frolit nnd L*ss {including Other
Comprehensive Inc*me), the C*nsclidalad Slatemenl *f Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flnw Stat*ment deait with by this R.eport are in *gr*ernent with the relevant
honks *{ *r:r*,snt nr;li*tain*d for the purpose crf preparntian of the cansnlidated financial
st*lernents"

d) in our sp!fiiiln, the aforesaid cons*lidai*cl fin**cial stat*n:**ls c*mply 
"r,tilh 

thc Acecu*ling
Standards specified urtd*r section 133 CIf tnc Aet.

ei On the *a*is *f the writt*r: r*pr*,se*,tatinns received froi-n lhe Directcrs of the Hclding Company
a***74*rrh3L,2*27, and taken on recorcl by the &narrl *f Dir*etcrs rf the |"'1*lding Conrpany ar:d

th* repcrts of 'Lh* slet:-rtory auditcrs of its sub=i*iary c*mpeni*s incorp*r*ted in i*dia, n*n* *f
the Directnrs nf the Graup c*mpanies i*:*rp*r*t*d i* Tnrlia are diaqu*lified as nn March 3L,2027,
frorn i:eing *ppcinted as a Direci*r i* l*rn"ls af serticn l-54 (2) nf the Act"

fl With resp#ct t*L** *dequacy uf internal linanci*l ccntrnlg wiih reference tc fin*ncial :taternents
*f t?ze i-4*!ding Conrpany and its suhsidiary cornpanies incorpor*l*d in In*ia and the operating
effectiveness of Euch e*ntr*l$, refer to our separate keport in Annexure "A".

g) In our opinion and acco;-dinE tc Lhe Information and *xplanatians given tn us anci based on audit
reports a{ the rcspective independe*t auditors on separate financial statem*r:ls *f such subsidiary,
the rer::uneration paid/payable by the H*lding Cornpany to ils direcl*r ts in accordance with the
provisinns of section 197 of the Act re*cl with Schedule V to the Act. No rnanagerial remuneration
has been paid by any subsidiar! c*t\"tBanl to its director during the year.

h) ?lith rcspecl la lh* *aher n'latters to be Includei i* lhe Auditcr's Report in acccrclance with Rule
11 of lhe Ccmp*nies {Audit and P,uditar's} Ruies, 2il1-,+, in our **i*i{ifi and tn the i:est *f o,-:r

information and accordinE to the exp!anaticnrs given t* *s:

t| The Group does not have any pending litigations as at March 3t,2A22 having impact on its
consolidated financial position.

flj The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

fu) Th*re was no arnount which are required to he transferred, to the Invest*r fducation and
Pratection Fund by the l{*ldinE Con"lpany and its subsldlary companies incorporeted in

India.

The respectrve ManagementE *?l?t*1{*lding Company and its su.tbsidiary cornpanies
which are cornpanies inc*rp*rated in India, *ave r*presented that, to the besl of their
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advaneed *r loaned *r invesled (eitherfrom
borrowed funds or share premium or any cther s*urces or kind of funds) by the Holdrng
Company or its subsidiary companies to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
inclr:d:ng foreign entities {"1nt*.rr**,*tan*.s"}, with the understanding, whelher recnrded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or enlities identified inany manner wh*tsoever by or on behalf
of the Holding Can':pany or its subsidiany companies ("Ultirnate Seneficiarics") or
provide any guarantee, secunity or the like on behalf nf the Ultimate Beneficlaries

\
\
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Th* respectiv* M*n*gernents *f the llnlding Cnmpany and its subsidiary c*rnpanies lthich
ar* toTrzpanies incorp*rated in {nd!a, hmve representecl, that, tothe hest *f their knnwledge
and belref, nr funds (which ar* meie rial either indivtdually cr:n aggreg*te) have [:een receivecl

by the Holding company or its subsidlary eompanies frnm any pcrson{z} ar *ntity{ies},
r*cudtng foreiEn enlrlies {"'ilunding Par"ties"}, with ihe L:nderstnnding, whether record*d in
lvritinq or otherwise.thut the l-{olding Cnrnpany, or its sul::s!diary c*rnpanies shall, wheth*r,

dlrectly cr indirect!y, lcnd *r invest in clher p*rsons *r entities identlfled in mny mfinner
whatsoever *y or on behalf oi the Funding farty {'"Uliimate Beneficiaries"') nr provide ar:y

EUarantee, security *r the like am behalf of the Uitinrate Beneliri aries; end

Based on reasonable audit prccedures adopted by us and th*s* perforr*ed *7 the aurlitons

af the sts**idiari** inrorp*ratetl i* lndia, n*thlnq has com* to our nclice or stfier auciitars

n*tlce that has caused us to helieve lhat the repr*seritat"i*ns und*r sub-ciause (i) and (ii)
af lhe RL:;* :.Lt*3 as pravieled undar {iv}{t} and {iv}{ii) *bove. canl*rn any materral rni=-

stalement,

\ri In *ur opinion and according to the information and explanation Eiven to us, no dividend

declared ar paid during the year by the Group Companies ex{ept by a Subsidiary, Mufin Green

Finance Limited (formerly APM Finvest Limited) whose Board of Directors have proposed

dividend for the year ended March 3t, 2022 which is subject to approval by the members of
the respective subsidiary at its ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Dividend declared is in
accordance with section 123 of the Act and RBI Regulation to the extent applicable'

\1i \iiilh respe cl to lhe rnatiers specift*d in pa:-agraphe 3{xxi} and 4 cf t?,e C{}r{1*anies (Audit*r's
Report] Crder, 202CI {the ^CARO"J issued by the Centra! G*vernment in lerrr:s *f section

143{11} of lhe Act, tn i:e !neluded in the F.uditcr's r*port, accorrlinq to tlre i*farnr;,rti** and

explaneli**s glven ts Lrs, and basecj on lhe [AR* r*porls issued i:"y us for l]le t"ialding

Comprany and based *Tr o'"lt' c***irfgratie rt *{ C*.{1* repnrls cf the Cr:mpnny's :*bsldiari*s lssr;ed

ily lheir r*speclve inclependent auiiltnrs, we report th*t there ar* no quelificatinns ur advers*

remmrks in thesc CAR* rePorts.

{ii}

#t

For RSD & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regi No. O12777N

GOEL
Partner
Membership No. 526051
UDIN - 22526051BEIDHM531 1

New Delhi
September 30,2022



Annexure A to the f ndependent Auditor,s Report

(Referred to in paragraph (f) under'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' Section of our report of even
date to the members of Hindon Mercantile Limited on the Consolidated financial Statements for the year ended
March 37,2022) -- '-' -"- /.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- Section 3 ofSection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (.'the Act,,)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of l-lindon Mercantile Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the "H*lding Company) as of and for the year ended March 3l 2022, we hav* audited ihe internalfinancial c*ntrols with referenc* to c*nsolidated financial statements of the Flolding company and its subsidiaries(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as -the Group'), i,rri.r, ,r* .o*puniei incorporatedin India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies inciuded in the Group, which are companies incorporated in India,
are responsible for establishinE and maintaining internal financia! controls based on the internal contrcl over financial
reporting criteria established by the respectlve companies ccnsidering the essential components of internal cantrol
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial R"eporting issued by the Instituteof Chartered Accountants of India (.ICAI?. Thes* responsibilities include the design, implenlentatlon and
maintenance of ad*quate internal financial controls that were cperating effectively for ensuring the *rd*rly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of itsassets,th* prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness af the accounting records,
and the timely prepar*tion of reliable financial infornnation, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our resp*nsibility is to *xpress an opinisn on the l-{olding company and its subsidiaries, which are companissincorporated in India, internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on curaudit' We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidancq Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls OverFinancial ReportinE {the -Guidance frlote') and the standards on Auditing, specified under section 14r(101 of theAct, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those-Sta'ndards and the Guidance rubte requirethat we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboutwhether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements wasestablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financialcontrols over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls overfinancial repofting included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that amaterial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiven"l, oiint"rn'uicJntrol basedon the assessed risk' The procedures selected depend on th-e auditor's judgment, including the assessment of therisks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the respective independentauditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below is sufficienland appropriate toprovide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with'reference tc these consolidated financialstatements.

Meaning of rnternal Financial controls over Financial Reporting ,

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assuranceregarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepiration of financiaistatements for external purposes inaccordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls over financialreporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabledetail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) providereasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financialstatements in accordance with generally.accepted accounting principies, ano tnat receipts and expenditures ofthe company are beingrnl: 
?n1y 

in accordancewith authorizaltions of management and diiectors of the company;and (3) provide reascinable assurance regarding prevention or timely detectiin of unauthorized acquisition, use, ordisposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

?
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or frjud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls overfinancial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may betome iiadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or piocedures may deteriorate
or for other reasons.

Opinion

ln mi,:r *pinion, the ll*iding A*rrzpany anci ils *r:* nl'Subsidiary Con:p*ny which are cornp*n!*s ir:r.*rp*r*ted in India,
have, m*intainerl in allr:ateriml respects, adequ*l* int*rnal fin*ncin! contr*ls wilh referenc* t* c*nsolidated ?in*rtrial
steternenls and such inter**l financial r**trntrs with r*lcrenc* to conso{idated financinl staternenls were *p*rating
cifectively as *t 3L Mareh 2il22, based cn th* internal ccntrols over financial nep*rling criteria eslablished by the
respeclive compariies c*nsidering the essential cornponer:ts of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note
an Audit *f Internal Financial Controls Over Finaneial R.eporting issued by the lnstitute cf Chartered Accountants *f
lndia {"the Guidance l\ol*"}.

Sti*er F4atten:

Our report und*r sectifin 143(3>{i} nf ihe Act on lhe *dequiacy anC *peraling effecliveness cf ihe;iiternal fin*r,sial
controls with refer*r:ee to consslidated {ir:*rsrial statonients of the li*ldlng ilornp*ny, in so f*r ;= it rel*tes t* 1
subsidiary ccmpafiy forming part of tlre Grnup, which is c*mpany inc*rpnrat*el in India, i* b***d on the
r*rr*spt]nding rep*rt of th* aurlitor of such sub=idlary incorp*rated in India.

The Group includ* 2 subsidiary;*nlpanies ir':ccrpnrated in Ii-rdia rvhich are exernpted under sacticn \a7{i} *tth* Act end lheref+re, nuditors h*ve nat *xpressmd th*ir opi*ior: *n I*lern*l Iir:anclai Ccnlr*is *var Finencinl
ile p*rting uuith reference tc finanrial Etatcments *f th*;e C*mpa,:ies.

For RSD & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrapan No. O72777N

>v
---Ji'Y

PURNIMA GOEL
Partner
Membership No. 526051
UDIN -22526051BEIDHM53 1 1

New Delhi
September 30,2022



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED

CIN: U34300D11985P1C021.785

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 3L,2022
(lts. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No.
As at

March3,.,2022
As at

March 31, 2021.

ASSETS

Financial Assets

a) Cash and cash cquivalcnts
b) Ilank balanccs othcr than cash & cash equivalcnts
c) Reccivables

-l rade Reccivab cs

d) Loans

c) lnvestmcnts

f) Othcr financial assets

Total Financial assets

Non-Financial Assets

a) Dcferred tax asscts {nc1)

b) l)ropcrty, plant & equlpmcnt
' c) Iiiilht of uso asscts

d) lnlanglblc .rsscts undcr devclopmcnt
c) Goodwill
f) n'h(,r "tangible a:.eLs

f) Oihcr non financlal assets
'lotal Non-financial assets

Total Assets

l.rA3lLtl tEs ANr) tQUllY
LtAllrLtflEs

lll FinancialLiabilities

a) t'ayables
.1 rade payablt:s

i) fotal outst.rfdlng ducs of micro entcrprises and small entcrpriscs

ii) Iotal outstanding dues of crr:ditors othcr than nticro enterpriscs and

srna I cntcrprlrcs
b) tlorrowings (othcr than Debt Securl.ies)

c) SUL)ordinatedL)ebts

d) Othrr iinancirl liabillLlcs

Iotal Financial Liabilities

lV Non-Financiall-iabilities
i,) Curr{rnt iJx iiabililios (ncll
b) I)rovisions

c) Dc{e'rr:d lax iiahl ltics (net)

c) Orlrcr norr linanclal liabilitics
Iotal Non-financial liabilities

EQUITY

V Equity
a) ! qJlty sl-rarc c,rpiral

b) Othcr {:quity

c) Non-conlrollinBlntcrcst
Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

4

5

6

7

8

I

1,121.48

590.00

1?,2,.37

4!t, /80.99

999.9ri

81.9..32

1.,152.06

30.u i
35,s9 2..83

:r52,.63

49,433.71 37,328.39

10

11

11

t2
42

11

13

L7

18

10

19

94.14

93.:10

83.06

14 /.1:;

49.1.:i

/ /.!tO

1,399.58

21.71

0.33

236 6:,

1,939.88 253.15

51,3i3.59 37,586.54

L4

15

16

20

2l

10,25i 93

30,000.00

"ao2. 
/ :,

^,,626 /i.)

30,rJ00.0c

2 ,16) .A'8

4L,O54.64 33,7AA.78

86.54

1.36

25.4r

2).33
o.6 /

1..5.:i l

1r.9.96 r'76.21

1,) /9.) 6

5,600.99

"t,.\18. 
/t,

'1,1)).4!)

?,499 4()

10,198.99 l,t2r 55

51,3,'3.59 77,5L5.51

t hr-. r:corrpanying, notcs arc an intcgratl p:lrt of thc consolldated finarclal statemcnts

/\s p:r ouf rcportJ of cvon date attachcd
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TOR AND ON BEHALI OF HE BOARIJ OF DIRECIORS

For R5D & Co.

Cllartcrco Acco Jnlants
cn No.012/7/ll

i
IGOTL

hip No.525C51

Place ; Delhi

Date : Septemter iO,202.2 .
ti OtN 41126o5 1 

pEt Q ttv 5s t t

Prat3p Singh

Company Sccrotary

Nl. No. A46666

I)ir cclor

V
DELHI

M

01t16987

i.uv Khanna

l)i r(:clt] r

i))lJt0//)l,tr()

S.No.



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED

Cl N : U34300D11985P1C021785

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

{lts. in L akhs)

S.No. Particulars Note No,
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022

For the Period Ended

March 31, 2021.

Revenue f rom operations
(l) lnlcrcst income

,li)t'cc and commission income
(iil) Other opcrating revcnue

Total Revcnue from operations
Other !ncomc

Total lncome {l+ll)

E xpe nses

(i) tinance costs

(ii) Nct loss on fair value changes
(iii) lmpairmcnt of financlal instruments
(iv) t,mploycc bcncflts cxpenscs
(v) Dcprcciation and amortlzation

lvi) Other expenscs

lV Total Expenses

V Profit before exceptional items and tax (lll-lV)
Vl I xccptlonal ltcms

Vll Profit before tax {V-Vl)
Vlll Tax expense

1) Currcnt lax
2) Tax rclated to carller ycar

.i) I)r:fcrred tax

lX Profit for the year lvll-Vlll)

xt

1,:;61.54

241.42

7,11),.63 4,.1,41,.98

382.06 1r.63

8,153.69 4,L54.66

4,78U.58 t,:;32..41

' 23L.15 222.79

587.89 87.26

37.66 3.29

2,032.43 1,,890.72-

7,677.71 3,736.47

475.94 418.19

4,1 I 0.3 1

31.61

26

27

1.1

29

33

475.94

6:t.1 3

418.1 9

161 .60

I8.40

( 14.39 )

(e6.61j )

5 21.89 23 8.19

Other Comprehensive lncome
A) i) ltcms rhat wlll not bc reclassiflcd to profil or oss

ll) ncomc tax rclatlng to items that will not bc rcclassified to pro{i1 or loss

sub Total A)

l]) i) ltcms that !vilL bc reclassificd to profit or loss

li) ncorfc 1ax r.latlng to ltems that will bc rcclassiflcd to profit or loss

Sub Total B)

Total Other Comprehensive lncome (A+B)

Total Comprehensive lncome for the year (lx+X)

Profit for the year attributable to
a) Owners of lhc Company

b) Non conlrolljng irrtcrcst

Other comprehensive income attributable to: -

a) Owfcr! of the Company

b) Non controlting jntcrcst

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
a) Own0rs of thc Company

b) Non corrLrotLing intcrcst

Earnings per Equity Share (Face value Rs. 10)

Basic (Rs.)

33

0.81
(0.21)

0.60

0.60

522.49 238.19

567.46
(4s.s7)

238.19

238.19

0.54

0.06

568.00
(4s.s 1)

xil
39

39

4.8 / 3.92

3.92

2-2

2.3

24

2:)

Di I uted

accompanVinB notcs are an integral part of the consolidatcd iina Statem cnts

ns pcr our rcport of cveir date atlached

L-52

For RSD & Co.

Chartered Accountzrnts FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

l-irm Registration No.012-777N

GOEt

I)a rtn0r
N/onbcrship No.:j26051

Place: Delhi

Date : September 30,2022

u D r.a, 2L526 A 5 i b Et O H fi 53 il

#,
Company Secretary I)i rcctor

k
DELHI

No. A46666 01 71 6987

Luv i(hanna

[)ircctor
l) N:0//2.1426



HINDON MERCANTILE TIMITED

ctN u34300Dt1985P1-C021785

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(lts. ln Lakhs)

Particulars
Year ended Period eilded

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Cash flow from operating a.tivities

Profit before tax
Adjustment for :

lnteTCst expenses on casc abl ltiars

l)epft:c ation rnd amortizatLon

lmpairmcnt on flnancial instrumcnts

Operating profit before working capital chanEes

( ncrcase)/dccrease in tradc rcc.:lvables

( ncn:ase)/decrease in Uank ba anccs other than cash & cash equlvalents

(lncrcase)/decreasc in loans (nct)

lncrease/(decrcasc) ln frnancla abl ltlcs

-, c,../\dc( -"5.) ^ p ovts (.n:

ncrcase/(di:r:rrast:) in other non-flnanclal liabl llles

( nr:rcasr:)/dt:creast: in oth{:r non flnancial assets

( ncrcase)/dccrr:asc in olhcr flnancla assets

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
i)ir.rct tax pa d (nct)

Net cash generated fronr/(used in) operatinB activities {A)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of inv(:stments

Purchase of invcstments n subsidlaries

loan glvcn

Purchase of property, plant & cquipmr:nt
Purchasc of intanglb c assets undcr devclopment
Purchasc of lntanglb c asscts

Net cash generated from/(used in) investint activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Procceds from llorrowlngs (other than debt securities)

llepayment of {lorrowlngs (othcr than dcbt securities)

ljrocecds from Subord nat.d Dcbts

Procecds from cqulty sharc capital

l)aym.rnr of lease labl tlcs

Net cash generated frorn/(used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase/{de.rease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash anC cash cqu va cnts a: lhr: bcginn ng of the year

lcasn and Cash Lquivalcnts o{ subs diar es at thc tlnr.r of aqulstion

Cash and cash equivalents at the cnd of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalentsi
Casl. on hand

tla anc.rs wlth banks
.on currarnt accounts

Dcpos ts wlth uark hav ng orlgina maturlty of ess than 3 months

Total cash and cash equivalents

475.98 418.19

4.1,6

31 .66

231.15

3.29

222. /9

644.27
(30.8 /)

(31,6tj9.46)

2,469.41
(1.06)

1)4.4t
(:j 24)

_ \262.41) l.436.1 /)
(7,s36.61) '29,294.64],

(999.9rj)

\/,a6)..4e)
(1 60.00)

(8s.13 )

114t.7:,)

{ 12 0.16)

(16.7s)

(8,574.88) {16.7 s )

748.95
(91.s0)

(s90.00)

(4,691.06)

11,466.4).)

1.i,1

(1 13.1 o)

0,,a])..\2)

18,402.5u

(9 ,?.1.c .D2.)

2,099.99

11 /.3/1)

i 98.6.-1

( r,86 /.2 1 )

30,000.00

2,030 00

Ll,275.2L 30,361 .42

(s,c96.59)

1,1:;2 .46

5,0 6i;.61

905.40

2.46.66

1,121.O4 1,152.06

95.73

1,025.3s 686.49

463.32

2.2 5

:t-,121.08 1,152.06

Note:

t.Statcmentofcashlowshasbccnprcparedundcrtheindlrr:ctmcthodassetoutlnthclnciAS/ "StatcmentofCashfows"
2. Ihc Cash flow from operat ng, lnvestlng and financinE act vities after considcring tho lmpacl of acqulstion of subsldlarles.

iheaccompanyingnotesaTeanlntogralpartoftheconso datcdfinancla statcmenls 752

As per our report of cvcn datc altachcd

For RSD & Co.

Chartcred Accountants

Ii rm Rcglstration No.0127/7N

Mcmbc:shlp No.526051

Place I Delhi

Date : September 30,2022

Q zpt t ?L92 6a 5 t fr e I D 11 Y1 53 tt

FOR AND ON BEHAI.F OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

^r/

LMK *k,
"il:i:]ffi:::' N,4a

116947

V
Luv Khanna

l)l turcto r

D N:0//23,i2ti

*

;""*i

17,796.s?l (2s,43e.27].



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED

CIN: U34300D11985P1C021785

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

A. IQUIIYSIIARICAPITAL
l:q!ity shJres of lis. 10 .-ach is!ucd, subscr bcd and tully p, d up

(Rs. in takhs)

As at April 01, 2020 56,41,346 5 68, /3

Add : l!!ued dur ng the yerr 55,33,579 5 53.3 6

AsatMarch31,Zo21 1,12,)0,925 1,1??09

Add ssucddurnslhey.-ar 15,11 lc! t5/.1t
A,,rNrdr.h 1r,207, .)/.W

B, OIITR

Reserve Irund

capital Iteserve u/s /rs lC of RRI

Act,1934
Iarnings

Other ltems of I'otal oth.r.qu[y Oth.r.qu[y
oth.r attributablc to attributablc to

Comprehcnsive the olvner of th., Non contrclling

lncome Conrpany inter.st

aalanc. as at April 01, 2020 193.a) 2 7 4a s64.01 1a4.63

lqutyshaftrslssueddlrlngthcycar 7.416.in 1,4/664
Prol t ior thc year 

' 
?18.19 . ?38.19

lranlfcrfromRclaiedfarnngs 63.65 A.I.J 6418
lr.nsf.-rto mpairment ltescrve (0./3) - (0.71)

Irrnsfcrto ltescrve fund (61.6s) (61.65)

\o'r (o r,o rl 'r r. j,'^,q-,r' 
' 1,t64-)"

tquityshar.-s ssu€ddurngthcy{rar 2,510i5 2,510.15

Protttortheyc.r 561.46 \a/.46 (41j.:jl)

Crpita R{*ervc of Acqu stion 7:l.la 21.18

lr.nsfcrfrom lletrincd t:arfinss(Note 21.1(a)) 118.17 5.38 144.15 2.3/
lransfo to lmpairmcnt Rcserve (5.38) (5.18) t7 1/)
lransfertoltes{irvr[und (136./l) (1]8.//)
ll'rnreasurcmcnt ofthe dcfincd bencfits pl.n (n(i) il.I;4 0 54 | (16

Aalance as at March 31, 2022 23.38 395.64 4,014.19 1,161.13 5.11 0,54 5,600.99 1,118.74

lheaccompanyinEnotesareanintesralpanofthecofsoldatedJinarcia statements

As per our report of even date attached

For RSD & Co.

Chaftered Accountrrts
F rm Rcgislat on No.09777N

Jz

,*QX'
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NOTES FORMING PART OF TIIE, CONSOT,IDATED }-INANCIAL STATITMENTS

1. Corporate information

Hindon Mercantile Limited ('the Company' or'the holding Company') is a Public Limited Company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office in Delhi to
carry on the business of a Non-Public Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Finance Company in India.
The Company is registered under Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, The Company
holds a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India. The registered office
of the company is located at 201, 2nd Floor, Best Sky Tower, Plot No. F-5, Netaji Subhash Place,
North West Delhi-110034. The Company is engaged in the business of Investment and financing
activities. The. company is also engaged in providing an online market place to the participants
involved in Feer to Peer Lending and also act as a distributor of financial products and intended to
engage in busindss of Account aggregation services

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Hindon Mercantile Limited
("the company" or'the holding Company') and its subsidiaries (collectively "the group") for the
year ended March 37,2022.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the subsidiaries of Hindon
Mercantile Limited ("the company" or'the holding Company'or'the parent'), consolidated in

accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 1 1 0'Consolidated Financial Statements.

Name of the
company

Country of
incorporation

a/o

shareholding
as at March
37,2022

"/o

shareholding
as at March
3l,2O2l

Consolidated
AS

Date or)

which
Co rn pa ny
became
subsidiary

Hindon Peer to
Peer Finance
Private Limitedx

India 100 100 Subsidiary w, e,f
Octo ber
09,2020

Mufin Green
Finance Limited
(Formerly known
as APM Finvest
Limited)

Ind ia 67.34 Not
applicable

Su bsid ia ry w.e.f
March 09,
2022

Hindon Account
Aggregation
Services Private
Limited

India 100 Not
applicable

Subsid iary w.e.f.
Oclo ber
75, 242_1

xThe Consolidated financial statements of Hindon Peer to Peer Finance Private Limited include the
financial statements of the following subsidiary company:

Name of the
company

Country of
incorporation

o/o

sh a reh o ld ing
as at March
31,2022

o/o

shareholding
as at March
37,2021

Consolidated
AS

Date on
which
Company
became
subsidiary

Fintelligence
Data Science
Private Limited

India 100 Not
a pplica b le

Subsidiary w,e.f.
June 17,
2027

2, Basis of Preparation and Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation and Presentation

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format prescribed
in the Division III of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"). The Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7
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"statement of Cash Flows". The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity are
together referred as the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with the Companies
(IndianAccounting Standards) Rules, 2015 under Sectio'n 133 of Act and relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter("Ind AS").

The Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 are the first financials
with comparatives, prepared under Ind AS. Effective April 1, 2021, the Group has adopted all the
Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First Time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2020 as the transition date. The transition
was carried out from the Indian Accounting Principle generally accepted in India as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ('Previous
GAAP'). Refer Note 46 for an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has
affected the Financial Position, Financial Performance and Cash Flows of the Group.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared and presented on going concern basis and the
relevant provisions of Act and the guidelines and directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) or any other authority, to the extent applicable.

Amounts in the Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in indian Rupees in lakhs rounded
off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule III to the Act. Per share data is presented in
Indian Rupee to two decimal places. The Group presents its Balance Sheet in the order of liquidity,

Accounting policies are consistently applied except where a newly-issued Ind AS initially adopted or
a revision to an existing Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy.

Basis of consolidation :

The consolidated financial statements Incorporate the financial statements of the holding Group
and its Subsidiaries being the entities that it controls. Control is evidenced where the group has
power over the investee or is exposed or has riglits to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Power

is demonstrated through exlsting that give the ability to direct relevant activities which significantly
affect the entity returns. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as the apparent Group where necessary adjustments are made to the financial
statements od subsidiary to align the accounting policies in line with accounting policies of the
group. For Non-wholly owned subsidiary a share of the profit/loss for the financial year and net
assets is attributed to the non-controlling interests as shown in the consolidated statement of Profit
and Loss and consolidated Balance Sheet. For acquisitions of additional interests in subsidiary
where there is no change in control the group recognizes a reduction to the non-controlling interest
of the respective subsidiary with the difference between this figure and the cash paid, inclusive of
transaction fees being recognized in equity. The financlal statements of subsidiary acquired or
disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss from the
effectlve date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as appropriate. Intragroup
balances .and transactions and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intragroup
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements unrealized losses

are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.

Consolidation procedure:

(a) Cornbine like items o1'assets, liabilities, equity, income expense and cash flow o1" lhe parcrtt
with those of its sr-rbsidiarics. For this purpose, income and expenscs of the subsidiary arc
based on the amounts of the assets and liabilitics recognized in the consolidat.cd financlal
statements at lhe acquisition date.

(b) Offset(eliminate) tlre carrying amount of the parent's investmcnt in each subsidiary and the
.parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary.
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(c) The excess of cost to the Group of its investment, on the acquisition dates over and above the
Group's share of equity in the Companies Consolidated, is recognized as Goodwill on
Consolidation being an asset in the consolidated financial statements. The said Goodwill is not
amortized, however, it is tested for impairment as at each Balance Sheet date and the
impairment loss, if any, is provided for. On the other hand, where the share of equity in

Companies consolidated as on the date of investment is in excess of cost of investments of the
Group, it is recognized as Capital Reserve and shown under the head Other Equity in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

(d) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities equity income expenses and cash flow relating
to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resultlng from intragroup
transactions that are recognized in assets such as inventory and fixed assets are eliminated in

full.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attribute to the equity
holders of the parent of the group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit valance when necessary adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the group's
accountlng policies.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of Companies consolidated is identified and presented
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet separately within equity. Non-controlling intcrcsts in thc net
assets of Consolidated companies consists of :

(a) The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling interests at the date on which investmenl
is made; and

(b) The non- controlling Interests share of movements in equity since the date parent subsidiary
relationship came into existence.

The Profit /(loss) and other comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests are
shown separately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.2 Functional and Presentation Currency

TheConsolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is the functional
and the presentation currency of the Group and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs with
two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

2.3 Basis of Measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values.

A historical cost is a measure of value used for accounting in which the price of an asset on the
balance sheet is based,on its historical cost, it is generally fair value of consideration given in
exchange for goods andservices at the time of transaction or original cost when acquired by the
Group.

Fair value is the price that likely to be received on sell of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability,the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the Consolidated
Financial Statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS 116 Leases,

Fairyalue measurements under Ind AS are categorized into fair value hierarchy based on the degree
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to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs
to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access on measurement date;

Level 2 inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset
orliability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 where.unobservable inputs are used for the valuation of assets or liabilities

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Indian Accounting
Standards ("Ind AS") requiresthe management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions.
These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the year. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.Actual results could differ
lrom those estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. The
Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the Consolidated Financlal
Statements are prudent andreasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the
differences between the actual resultsand the estimates are recognized in the periods in which the
results are known / materialize. Some of the areas involving significant estimation / judgement are
determination of Expected Credit Loss, fair valuatlon oflnvestments, Income taxes and employee
benefits.

Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certaintv of its
recovery.

2.5.1.1 Interest

Interest income on financial instruments is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate ("EIR") appllcable.

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all the contractual
terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are
incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all
other premiums or discounts, For financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
("FWPL"), transaction costs are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss at
initial recognition.

Interest income/expenses is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit
impairedfinancial assets/liabilities (i.e, at the amortized cost of the,financial asset before adjusting
for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired finahcial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the EIR to the amortized cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses).

2.5.L.2 Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Conrpany's right to receive clividerrC is established

V
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2.5.1.3 Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The
Group recognizes the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts
/agreement and when it is probable that the Group will collect the consideration.

2.5.L.4 Other Income

2.5.2

2.5.2.L

Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognized when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

Financial Instruments

Fair Valuation of Investments

Some of the Group's Investments are measured at fair value. In determining the fair value of such
Investments, the Group uses quoted prices (unadjusted)in active markets for identical assets or
based on inputs which are observable either directly or indirectly. However, in certain cases, the
Group adopts valuation techniques and inputs which are not based on market data. When Market
observable information is not available, the Group has applied appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the valuation model.

2.5.2.2 Recognition and Initial Measurement

All financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognized
on the trade date, i,e,, the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provtsions of the
instru ment.

Loans are recognized when fund transfer is initiated or disbursement clreque is issued to the
customer. The Group recognizes borrowings (other than debt securities) when funds are received
by the Group.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair valure. Transaction costs and
revenues that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets ancl financral
liabilities (other than Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FWPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or firrancial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition, Transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or firrancial Iiabilities measured at FVTPL are recognized irnmediately in the Consolidatecj StatemenI
r:f Profit and Loss.

2.5.2.3 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities

2,5.2,3. 1. Financial Assefs

The Grouo classifies and measures all its finarrcial assets based on the business rnodel for
managing the assets and the asset's contractual terms. either at:
Amortized cost
Fair Value through other comprehensive income
Fair Value tlrrough Profit and Lcss

2.5.2.3. 7. 7 Amortized Cost

The Group classifies and measures cash and bank balances, Loans, Trade receivable, certain
debtinvestments and other financial assets at amortized cost if the following condition is met:

Financial Assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are SPPI;

2,5.2,3.7,2 Fair Value through Othey Comprehensive Income ("FVOQ")

l-he Group classifies and measlires certair.r debt instruments at FVOCI wherr the investrnerits are
held within a business rnodel, the objective of which is achieved by both, collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial instruments and the contractual terrls of the financiL:l instruments
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meet the Solely payment ofPrincipal and Interest on principal amount outstanding ('SPPi') test'

The Group measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the

investments is not for trading and the Group's management has elected to classify irrevocably

some of its equity instruments at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definltion of Equity

under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such

classification is determined on an instrument- by-instrument basis.

2.5.2.g.7,9 Fair Value through Profit and Loss ("FVTPL")

Financial assets at FVTPL are:
- assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; and/or
- assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or lreld

to collect and sell; or
- assets designated at FVTPL using the falr value option'

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement is

recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss'

2.5,2.4 Evaluation of Business Model

Classification and measurement of financial instruments depends on the results of the Solely
payrnents of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding ("SPPI") and the business

model test (refer note 2.5.2.4.1). The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects

how tlre Group's financialinstruments are managed together to achieve a particular business

objective.

The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through other

comprehensive income that are derecognized prior to their maturity to understand the reason for

tlreir clisposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the obiective of the business for which

theassetwasheld. Monitoring ispartof theGroup'scontinuousassessmentof whetherthebusiness

model for which the remaining financialassets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not

appropriate whether there hai been a change in business modei and so a prospective change to

the classification of those instruments'

2.5.2.4.7

a

a

a

Business Model Test

An assessment of business model for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification

of a financial asset, The Group cletermines the business model at a level that reflects how financial

assets are managed together to achieve a particular business ob3ective. The Group's business

rnoclel does not depencl on managernent's intentions for an individual instrument, llrerefore the

business model assessmentis performed at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an

instrument-by-instrument basis'

The Group considers all relevant information and evidence available when making the business

model assessment such as:

how the performance of the business model and the finarrcial assets held within that business

model are evaluated and reporied to the Group's key management personnel;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held vrril'iiiir

that business model) ancl, in particutar, the way in which those risks are managed; and

how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the

fair value of the assets rnanaged or on the contractual cash flows collected).

At inltial recognition of a financial asset, the Group determines whether newly recognized financtal assets

are part of jn existing business model or whether they reflect a new business rrodel. The Group

reassesses its business model at each reporting period to determine whether the business model

has changed since theprececling period" For the current ancl prior reportinc.; period the Group has

not identifiecl a change in its business model,

Solely paynrents of Pnincipal and Interest ("sppl") on the principal amount outstancling

For an asset to be classifierj and measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, its contractuai terms
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should give rise to cash flows that meet SPPI test.

For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. That
principal amount may change over the Iife of the financial asset (e.9, if there are repayments of
principal). Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk
associated with the principal amountoutstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin.

Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual casir flows that are
unrelatedto a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity
prices, do not'giverise to contractual cash flows that are SPPI. luch financial assets are either
classified as fair value through profit & loss account or fair value through other comprehensive
income.

2.5.2.4.1.L Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses

Financia I .Assets at Amortized Cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income and impairment loss are
recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on DE recognition is
recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt Instrument at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income and impairment loss are
recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on subsequent
measurement is recognized in OCI and on DE recognition the cumulative gain or loss recognized
in OCI will be recycled to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Instrument at FVOCI
Gains and losses on equity instruments measured at FVOCI are recognized ln other comprehensive
income and never recycled to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends are
recognized in profit or Ioss as dividend income when the right to receive paymenl has been
established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of whole or part of
the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instrurnents a[
FVOCI are fair valued at each reporting date and not subject to an impairnrent assessnrent,

Financial Assefs at FVTFL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gain or losses, including any interest
or dividend incorne, are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

2.5.2.4, L.2 Recl assif icatio ns

If the business model under which the Group holds financial assets changes, the financial assets
affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new
category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in
business model that result in reclassifying the Group's financial assets.

2.5.2.4.2 Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

2.5.2.4.2.7 Classificdtion as Debt or Equity

Debt and equity inslruments that are issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance witlr the substance of the contractual arrangement.

A financial liability is a ccntractual obligation to Celiver cash or another financial asset or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entiry under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Group or a contract that will or may lre settled in the Gr,)up's own
equity instrL,ments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Group is cr nray be obliged to
deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity
that will or may be settled other than by theexchange of a fixed amount of cash (or another
financial asset) for a fixed nunrber of the Group's own equity instruments.
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2. 5. 2. 4. 2. 2 Eq u ity I nstru ments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asse[s of an entity after
deductingall of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the face value
and proceeds received in excess of the face value are recognized as Securities Premium.

2.5,2.4,2.3Subsequent Measurement and Gain and Losses

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Interestexpense is recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or
loss on DE recognition is recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

2,5.2.5 Impairment and Write-off

The Group recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses on the following financial
instrufirents that are not measured at FVTPL:

Loans and advances to customers;
Other financial assets;
Loan commitments

Equity instruments are measured at fair value and not subject to an impairment loss.

ECL is required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
12-month ECL, i.e., loss allowance on default events on the financial instrument that are
possible withinl2 months after the reporting date, (referred to as Stage 1); or
Lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that results from all possible default events over the life of the
financial instrument, (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3),

A loss allowance for lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that flnancial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, For all other financial instruments,
ECL is measured at an amount equal,to the 12-month ECL.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment at the end of each reporting period
whether a financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by
consideringthe change in the risk o1" default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instruments.

Based on the above process/ the Group categorizes its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as
described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognized, the Group recognizes an allowance based on 12 nronths
ECL,Stage 1 loans also include facilities rvhere the credit risk has iinproved and the loan has beerr
reclassified from Stage 2 to Stage 1.

Stage 2: \,Vhen a loan has shourn a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Group
recordsan allowance for the life time expected credit losses. Stage 2 loans also include facilities,
where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3 to Stage 2.

Stage 3: When loans are considered credit-impaired, the Group records an allowance for the iife
time expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the
entire outstanding amount, ora propotion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced, Thisis considered a (partial) DE recognition of the financial asset.

2.5.2.6 Determination of Expected Credit Loss ("ECL")

l-he measurement of inrpairment losses (ECL) across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement.

In particular, the estimation of the anrount and tirning of future cash flo\,vs based cn Grcup's
historical expei-ience and colialeral values vvhen determining inrpairment losses alo,'.q y;ith tlre
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assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:
Bifurcation of the financial assets into different portfolios when ECL is assessed on a collective
basis.
Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
Development of ECL models, including choice of inputs / assumptions used.

The various inputs used and the process followed by the Group in measurement of ECL has been
detailed below.

2.5.2.6.7 Measurement of Expected Credit fosses

The Group calculates ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure expected cash
shortfalls,discounted at an approximation to the portfolio. A cash shortfall is a difference between
the cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive.

When estimating ECL for undrawn loan commitments, the Group estimates the expected portion of
the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected Iife. The ECL is then based on the
present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down. The expected cash
shortfalls are discountedat an approximation to the Interest rate on the loan.

The Group measures ECL on an irrdividual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that
share similar economic risk characteristics. The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the
present value of the asset's expected cash flows using the asset's original EIR, regardless of
whether it is measured on an individual basis or a collective basis,

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are/ as follows:

Exposure at Default (EAD) is based on the amounts the Group expects to be orrued at the tirne of
default. For a revolving commitment, the Group includes the current drawn balance plus any further
amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limii by the tinre of defaiilt,
should it occur.

Probability of Default (PD) represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligation (as per "Definition of default and credit-impaired") eittrer over the next 12 months (12
months PD), or over the rernaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obltgation.

Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Grourp's expectation oF fhe extent of loss on a defaulted
exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of collater.rl
or other credit support.

Foruvard-looking economic information (including management overlay) is included in cieterrnining the 12-
month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored
and reviewed on an ongoing basis.

2.5.2.6.2 Significant Increase in Credit Risk

The Group monitors all financial assets, including loan commitments contractsissued that are
subject to impairment requirements, to assess whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the Group
measures the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL. The Group rnonitors all
linancial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are subiect to
inrpairment for a significant increase in credit risk.

In assessing whether the credil r-isk on a financial instrument has increased sigrrificantiy since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrunient at the
reporting date based on tlre remalning maturity of the instrument r,ryith the risk of a delault
occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current repc;rtir-ig date wherr the
firrancial instrument was first recognized. In making this assessrtrent, the Group cotrsiders boti';
qudntitative and qualiLative information that is reasonable and supportable, including l-tistorical
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experience that is available without undue cost or efFort,

The quantitative factors that indicate a significant increase in credit nsk are reflected in PD models
on a timely basis. However, the Group still considers separately some qualitative factc-rrs to assess
if credit risk has increased significantly. For corporate lending, there is a particular focus on assets
that are included on a'watchlist'. Given an exposure is on a watch list once, there is a concern that
the credit worthiness of the specific counterparty has deteriora[ed. ECL assessment for watch list
accounts is done on a case by case approach after considering the probability of weighted average
in a different recovery scenario. For individual loans the Group considers the expectation of
forbearance, payment holidays, and events such as unemployment,bankruptcy, divorce, or death.

Given that a signiflcant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given
change, in absolute terms, in the PD is more significant for a financial instrurnent with a lower initial
PD than compared to a financial instrument with a higher PD.

As a back-stop when a financial asset becomes past duebut not Stage 3; the Group considers that
a significant increase in credit risk has occurred and the asset is classified in stage 2 of the
impairment model, i.e, the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL.

2.5,2.6,3 Credit-Impaired Financral Assets

A financial asset is'credit-impaired'when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaireC financial assets are
referred to as Stage3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data about the
following events:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
restructuring of loans due to financial difficulty of the borrowers;
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or
the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event. Instead the cornbined effecl of several
events may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired. The Group assesses whether
debt instruments that are financial assets measured at amortized cost
are creCit-irripaired at each reporting date.To assess if corporate debt instrurnents are credit
impaired, the Group considers factors such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the
borrower to raise funds,

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to
deterioration in theborrower's financial conditior.r. The definition of default includes unlikeliness to
pay indicators and a back-stopif amounts are overdue for more than 90 days.

2,5.2,6.4 Definition of Default

The definition of default is used in measuring the amount of ECLand in the determinalion of whetl-rer
the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL.

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default:
the borrower is past due more than 90 days + Accounts Identified by the Group as NPA as per
regulatory guidelines + Objective Evidence for impairment (Qualitative Overlay); or
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligalions to the Group.

When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligatidn, the Group takes into account
both qualitative and quantitative indicators, The information assessed depends on the type of the
asset, for example in corporate lending a qualitative indicator used is the breacir of covenants,
which is not as relevantfor individual lending. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and
non-payment on another obligationof the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis.

2.5.2.6.5 Write-off

Loans are vvritten off whert tlte Groi,rp has no reasonable expectations oI i-ecoverir-:E the financial
asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case wlren the Group deiermines thaL !he
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borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a DE recognition event. The
Group mayapply enforcement activities to financial assets written off/ may assign / sell loan
exposure to ARC / Bank /a financial institution fora negotiated consideration. Recoveries resulting
from the Group's enforcement activities could result in impairment gains.

2.5.2.7 Modification and DE recognition of Financial .Assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of
a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between the initial recognition and maturity
of the financial asset, A modification affects the anrount and/or tlming of the contractuai cash flovls
either immediately or at a future date. Irr addition, the introduction or adjustnrent of existing
covenants of an existing loan would constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted
covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows depending
on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g.a change to the increase inthe interest rate that
arises when covenants are breached).

The Group renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and mrnimrze
the risk of default. Loan forbearance is granled in cases where although the borrower nrade all
reasonable effrtrtsto pay under the original contractual terms, ther-e is a high risk ot default or
default has already happened and the borrower is expected to be abie to meet the revised terms.
The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes
to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principaland interest repayment), reduction in the
amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to covenants.

When a financial asset is modified the Group assesses whether this modification results in DE
recognltion. In accordance with the Group's policy, a modification results in DE recognition when it
gives rise to substantially different terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantiaily
different from the original contractual terms the Group considers the following:

Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification, are no longer SPPI, change
in currencyor change of counterparty, the extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants,
if these do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then; a quantitative assessment is
performed to compare the present value of the remaining contractual cash flows underthe original
terms with the contractual cash flows underthe revised terms, both amounts discounted at the
original EIR. If there is a significant difference in present value, the Group deems the arrangement
substantially different, leading to DE recognitlon.

In tlre case where the financial asset is derecognized the loss allowances for ECL is rerneasured at
the date of DE recognition to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The
difference between this revised carrying amounL and the fair value of the new financial asset with
the revised terms may lead to a gainor loss on DE recognition. The ner,v financral asset may have a

ioss allowance measured based on 12-morrth ECL except rrvhere the nelv loan is consiclered to be
originated-credit impaired. This applies only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is
recognized at a signiiicant discount to its revised par arnount becausethere remains a high risk of
default vvhich has not been reduced by the modification. The Group monitors the credit risk of
modified financial assets by evaluating qualilative and quantitative information, such as if the
borrower is in past due status under the new terms.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not resLrlt
in DE recognition, the Group determines if the financial asset's credit risk has increased significantly
sinceinitial recognition by comparing:

The renraining llfetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original
contractua I terms;
The remaining lifetirne PD at the reporting date based on the nrodified terms.

For financial assete rnodified, where modrfication does not resulI in DE recognirion, the estir-nate of
PD reflectsthe Group's ability to collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Group's
previous experience of similarforbearance action, as well as various behavioral indicators, including
the borrower's payi'nent perfoi-mance against the nrodified contractual terms. If the credit risk
remains significantly higher t[ran irhat \,vas expected at initial reccanition, the loss allo,.,rance is
continuerd to be rneasured at 3n amount equalto lifetime ECL. The loss aliowarrce on forborn.: loans
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is generally measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the borrorryer's improved
repayment behavior following modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase
in credit risk.

Where a modification does not lead to DE recognition, the Group calculates the modification
gain/loss comparing the gross carrying amount before'and after the modification (excludlng the
ECL allowance). Then the Group measures ECL for the modified asset, where the expected cash flows
arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls
from the original asset.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset's cash flows
expire(including expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or when the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues tocontrol the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the
proceeds received,

On DE recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/loss that
had been recognized in OCI and accumulated in equity is recognized in the Consolidated Staterrreni
of Profit and Loss, with the exception of equityinvestnrenl designated as rneasured at FVOCI, rryhere
the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

On DE recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g,when lhe Group retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amcunt
of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognize under continuing involvement,
and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of tlre relative fair values of those parts on lhe
date of tlre transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognized and the sum ofthe consideration received for the part no longer recognized ar-rd

any cumulative gain/loss allocated to it that had been recognized in OCI is recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. A cumulative gain/loss that had been recognized in
OCI is allocated between the part that conlinues to be recognized and the part thatis no lonEer
recogrrized on the basis of the relative falr values of those parts. This does not apply for equity
investments designated as measured at FVOCI, as the cumulative gain/loss previously recognized
in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,

2.5.2.8 DE recognition of Financial Liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obli(latlons are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying anrcunt of the frnancial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.5.3 Investment in subsidiaries
Investments representing equity interest in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any provision for
impairmerit,

Invcstmcnts are reviewed for impairment if evcnts or changes in circumstanccs indicatc that the
carrying arnount may not be recoverable.

2.5.4 Property, Plant and Equipment (*PPE")

PPE held for use are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

PPE is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item is
expected to flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is statecl at
original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative
impairment, i1'any. Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable
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to acquisition of PPE are allocated and capitalized as a part of the cost of the PPE.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefitsare expected to arise from the corrtinued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on tne
disposal or retirementof an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future econonric benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured rellably.
Intanqible assetsare stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated
amortization and cumulative impairment. Administrative and other generaloverhead expenses that are
specifically attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalized as a part of
the cost of the intangit:le assets.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as
"Intangible assets under development",

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic beneiits are expected
from useor disposal. Gains and losses arising from DE recognition of an intangible a3set, measured
as tne difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carryrng amount of the assets are
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized,

2.5.6 Capital work-in-progress

Capitai work in progress includes assets noi ready for the inlendeduse and is carried at cost,
comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

2.5.7 Depreciation and Am'lortization

Depreciation is recognized using written down value method so as to write off the cost of the assets
less their residual values over thelr estimated useful lives specified in Schedule II to the Act.
Depreciation methcd is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and
residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end with the effect of any change in the
estimates of useful life/residual value is recognized on prospective basis.

Depreciation for additiorrs to/deductions frorn, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of
U SE.

The useful life of the property, plant, equiprnent and Irrtangible Assets held by ihe Group is as

follows:

intarrgible assets'"vith finite useful lives are amortized on written down value basis orver the
estimated useful Iife. The method of arnortization anri useful life are reviewed at the end of each
accountirrg yearwith the effectof any changes in the estima[e being accounted foilrtr a prospective
basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment by comparing its recoverable
amount wlth its carrying amount annually and wl"lenever there is an indicatiorr that the intangible
asset rxay be impairetJ.

!

x

Class of Assets Useful Life

Com puter 3 years

Veh icles 1 Ll yea rS

Office Equipment's 5 years

Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

Website 3 years

Computer Software 2 years
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2.5.8 Impairment of Assets other than Financial Instruments

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization
and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment wherever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of such reporting period.

2.5.9 Employee Benefits

Short term Employee Benefits
Employee benefits falling due within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related
service. Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service,

Defined Contribution Plans
Contributions to dcfined contribution schemes sucfr as cmployees'statc insurancc, enrploycc
provident fund and employee pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the aixount
ol contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employecs, Group's
provident fund contribution is made to a governmcnt administered
fund and charged as an expense to the Consolidated Slatement of Profit and Loss. Thc above
benefits are classified as Dcfined Contribution Schemes as the Group has no furlher delined
obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Post-em ployment Benefits
The Group operates defined benefit plan in the form of gratuity and cornpensated absence. The
liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of its dcfincd bcncfit plarrs is the-, prcsent
value of thc dcfined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The deiined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projectcd unit crcdit mcthod. Thc prcsenl
value of the said obligation is determined by discounting the estimatcd future cash out flow:, usrnE
markct yields of government bonds that have tenure approximating the tenures of the rclated
liability, The interest expenses are calculatcd by applying the discount rate to the nct dcfincd
benefit liability or asset. The net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability or assct is
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurement gains and losscs
arising from experience adjustmcnts and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognize:d in the
period in which they occur, directly in other items of other comprehcnsive income. They are
included in Other Equity in the Statement of Chanqes in Equity and in the Balancc Shcct.. Changcs
in the prescnt value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendnrcnts or
curtailments are rccognized immediately in profit or loss as past sei-vice cost.

2.5.10 Leases

The Group as Lessee
1-he Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for office premises. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a Iea:;e, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease tf
the contract conveys the right to control tlre use of an identified asset for a period of time ln
exchange for consideration. Toassess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identil'ied asset, the Group assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asseL
(ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of

the Iease and
(iii) the Group has tne right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of cornmencernent of the iease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use assei ("iiOU")
and'a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in wh
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Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain
that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liabilityadjusted for any lease payments made at'or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the counLry of domicile of these
leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a terminatlon
option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

2.5.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises of cash on hand and dernand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
deposits with banks (with an original maturity of three months or less frorrr the date of placement)
and cheques on hand. Short term and liquid investments being sublect to more than insignificant
risk of change in value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

2.5.L2 Dividends on Equity Shares

The Group recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity shareholders of the Group
when the dividend is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group and
a corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity. As per the corporate laws in India, an
interim dividend is authorized when it is approved by the Board of Directors and final dividend is
authorized when it is approved by the shareholders.

2.5.13 Securities Premium Account

Securities premium is credited when shares are issued at preiriurn. It can be used to issue bonus
shares, to provide for premium on redenrption of shares and issue expenses of securities lvlrich
qualify as equity instruments.

2.5.L4 Finance Costs

Finance costs include interest expense calculated using the EIR on respective financial instruments
and borrowings is measured at amortized cost, amortization cf ancillary cosLs incurred in
conncction with the arrangenlent of borrowings and exchangc diifcrcnccs arising from foreiqn
currer'rcy borrowings to the extent they are rcgarded as an adjuslnrent to the intcrcst cost.

2.5,15 Foreign Currencies

(i) Functional currency of the Group and foreign operations has been determined based on the primary
economic environment in which the Group and its foreign operations operate considering the
currency in which funds are gerrerated, spent and retained.

(ii) Transactions in currencies other than the Group's functional currency are recorded on initial
recognition using the exchange rate at tlre transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date, foreigrr
currency monetary items are reported at the rates prevailing at the year"-errd. Iilon-monetary items
thatare measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporcing r.lf monetary iterns
at each Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognized in the Consolidated Statenrent
of Pi"ofit and Loss in the period in which they arise
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2.5.16 Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date
of the acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Group. The consideration
transferred in the acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
recognised at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill ls initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, other than those incurred in relation to the issue of
debt or equity securities. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the fair value of contlngent consideration are recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.5.17 Segments

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the Chief Operatlng Decision making body in the Group to make decisions for
performance assessment and resource allocation. Operating Segment are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to accounting policies are in line with the internal
reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision maker.

2.5.18 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per
share is computed using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential shares,
except where the result would be anti- dilutive,

2.5.19 Taxes on Income

The Group's tax jurisdiction is in India. Significant judgements are involved in detei'rrining the
provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for certain tax
positions.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recogrrized in tlre
Consolidated Staternent of Profit and Loss except when they relate to items that are recognized
outside Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (whether in other comprehensive lrrconre or
directly in equity), in which case tax is also recognized outside Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and Iiabilities and their respective tax bases, and
unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets are recognized to tl.re
extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against r,vhich the cleductible
temporary cliflerences, unused tax losses and depreciation carry-for-wards could be utilized.

The carryin-q amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax assetto be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date, and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allorv the deferred tax asset to 5e recorrered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in
tfie period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable r-ighl. to set off
current tax assets against current tax Iiabilities and when they relate to incorne laxes id\/ied by'the
same taxation autlrority and the Group intcnds to settle its current tax assets and liahiiitres on a

net basis.
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The Group provides for current tax liabilities at the best estimate that is expected to be paid to
the tax authorities where art outflow is probable.

2.5.20 Goods and Services Tax Input Credit

Goods and Services tax input credit is recognized in the books of account in the period in which
the supply of goods or service received is recognized and when there is no uncertainty in
availing/utilizing the credits.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

(a) Provisions are recognized only when:

(i) The Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and
('i) It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation; and
(iii) A reliable estimate can be rrrade of the amount of the obligation.

Provision is measured using the casl.r flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the
effect oftime value of money is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value
of those cash flows.

(b) Contingent Liabili$/ is disclosed in case of :

(i) A present obligation arising fron-r past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; or

(ii) A present obligation arising from past events, wlren no reliable estinrate is possible.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the econornic
benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation unCer the contract is
recognized and measured as a provision"

(c) Contingent Assets:

(i) Contingent assets are not recoqnized in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(ii) Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow <lf econornic benefits is probable

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are revier,rred at each Balance Sheet date

2.5.22 Comrnitments

a)
b)
c)
d)

Cornmitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;
Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;
Funding related commitment to associate and joint venture companies; and
Other non-canceilable comrnitrxents, if any, to the extent they are considered rnaterial and
relevant in the opinion of management,

2.5.23 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Corrsolidated Staternent of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing
and investment anC financing activities.Cash ilol.,,frorr operating actir,rities is reported using indirect
method ad justing the net profit for- the effects of :

i. clranges during ihe period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a norr-cash nalure;
ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealized foreign currency

gains and losses; and
iii. All other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in tlre Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows exclude itemswhich are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet,

eo
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3

3.1

3.2

Recent Accounting Developments

Law enacted but not effective

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and
post-employment benefits received Indian Parliament's approval and Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India and subsequently, on
November 13, 2020, draft rules were published and stakeholders' suggestions were invited.
However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Group will
assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the
period the Code becomes effective.

Amendments in Ind AS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has made the
following amendments to Ind AS which are effective from April 01,2022'.

(a)Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amcndment clarifics which fees are to be included by an entity when it applies the'10 percent'
test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. The Group docs not
expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its Consolidated Financial Statements.

(b)Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Full"illing a Contract
The amendments specify that the'cost of fullilling'a contract conrprises the'costs thal relate
directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incrementa costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would bc dircct labor, materials) or an allocatron of othcr costs
that relatc directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarifrcation and thc Group
does not expcct thc amcndment to have any slgnificant impact in its Consolrdatcd Financial
Statements.

(c) Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use
The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling ltems p.roduced while the entity is preparing the asset
for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognize such sales proceeds and related cost in profit
or loss. The Group does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its Consolidated
Financial Statements,

(d)Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework
The amendments spccify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method,
the identil"iable assets acquired and liabilitics assumed must meet the definitions of assets and
liabilities in the Conccptual Framework for Financial Reporting undcr Indiarr Accountrng Standards
(Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition
date. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in ils Consoiidated
Financial Staternents.
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HINDON MERCANTITE LIMITED

CIN: U34300D11985P1C021785

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAT STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

4 Cash and cash equivalents
(Rs.1n l-akhs)

Particulars
As at

Ma(.h 31,2022
As at

March 31,2021
Cash on ll. nd

Balances with banks:
. ln curTCnt accounts
' i)r:postswlth i]!nk havingorglna maturtVof lessthan 3 months

Total

95.73

1,025.35

2.2.5

6U6.49

463.3)

L,L2L.O8 1,152.06

5 Bank Balances other than Cash and

Particulars
As at As at

March 31,202131,2022
590.00Dcposlts wllh llank having orlglna maturlty of morc

Total

3 months

590.00

6 Trade Receivables

Pa rticulars
As at

March 31,2022
As at

March 31,2021
Rcccivab cs consldcrcd good-Securcd

llcccivab es cons dcrcd good Unsccured

Rcccivab es wh ch have s gniflcant n.rcasc ln Clrcdlt Jllsk

R.:cclvab c Crcdlt lmpaircd
Rccelvab cs from salc of nvcstmcnt
l.css: mpairmcnl Loss Al owancc (Lrxpected Crcdit loss)

Total

12,2.3 / 3A.A /

L22.37 10.87

llcc{rlvab cs consid.rred good Llnsr:cured

Total
122.31

t22.37 122.31

Trade Receivables ageing Schedule as on March 31,2021

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Year Z-tYeat More than 3 Years Total

Total 72.33 18.54 30.87

Nodcbtsducbydlrcctorsorolhr:rofficersofthcCompanVoranyofthemethcTscvr:ra yorjontywlthanyothcTocrsonordcbtsducb',,llrms n:uin: rti:d
liabilLty partnerships (i t t'js), privatc compan cs in which any dl(:ctor ls a partncT oT a dlrector or a mcmbr:r.

7 Loans

122,.3 1

Particulars
As at

March 31,2022
As at

March 31,2021

4,564.12

2,135.90

236.67

447.47

6,360.01

682.53

L93.42

5.'r'1

34,141.64 2 8,466.30

45,780.99 35,592.83

11,3EE../0

34, t4t;. /\

7,235.96

24,466.30

46,135.45

3:i4.46

35,142.26

:1r:19.43

46,1 35.4 5

35r+.4t:

35,702.26

10!1.43

45,780.99 35,592.83

45,7 80.99 35,592.83
*inc uding loans repayab c on.demand

finvcst t td.)

7.1 Loans granted to oromotors, Directors, Kev Manasement Personnels and related parties

a. rcpavab e on demand

b. w thout spccifylng any terms or perlod of repaymsnt
c. Othcrs

/.2 Go d/Gold lewel cry are p edgcd as sccurity for ovcrdralt taken from bank (ltcfcr notc 14)

\ *
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Trade Receivables ageing Schedul€ as on March 31,2022

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Y€ar More than 3 Years Total

At Amorised Cost

(A) ferm Loans

se cu red

t.oans agalnst Vchlc csll

I oans aga nst (io d/(io d Jcwe .ry (llcfcr note 7.2)

l-oans aga nst t and/Proprrrtlcs
[.oans to (:orporatesli

Unsecured

L.oans to Staff

Othcr l.oans*

Total Gross (A) (l)

Less: lmpairment Loss A owancc

Total Net {A) (l)

(U) (l) Socurcd by lang bie Assets

(l ) Securcd by n tanglb e Ass!)ts

( i) Unsccured

Total Gross {B) (l)

L css: lmpalrmcnt l-oss A owancc

lotal Net (B) (l)

(C) (l) toans in ndia

{a ) t)ublic Sector

{b) Others

Total Gross (C) (l)

icssi mpalrment Ioss A owance

rotal Net (C) {l)
( ) toan Oulsidc Ind a

L css: mpairmcnt i css A owancc

Total Net (C) {ll)
Iotal Net (C) (l) & (ll)

46,135.45

3:t4.46

35,702.26

109.43

45,780.99 3s,s92.83

46,1:15.41, 35,10;.26

S+



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED
CINr U34300D11985PlC021785

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

8 lnvestments

(tts. in l.akhs)

Particulars
Face value per

share

As at
Match 31,2022

As at

March 31,2021
Nos.

- lnvestments in Mutual Fund

Stll Magnum Low Duratlon l-und

Total
r.,000 35,121 999.95

999.95

Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Market value of quoted inv€stments
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

999.95

999.95

lm Loss Allowance Credit

Pa rticu la rs
As at

|ir'..a(.h 3L, 2022

As at
March 31,2021

nteTcsl accrucd but not duc

Sccurity [)cpos]ts*

n dvan(cs to Staff/oth.rrs
lnsuTancc c aim rccc vab cs

Olhr:r recclvab es

Total 819.32 552.63
\fu.
Aprl 04,2022tosubsidlary,NlufinGrcenl:lnanccLlmited(formerynl)i\4 1:lnvcsttinrltcd)
*inc udes {is.75 akhs glven as cash co latera against ioan from Non-llank ng Flnancla nstltuilons.

10 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities {net)

4.64

101.58

0.04

4).94
6/4.24

262.64

3.09

2.35

4a.45

236.14

Particu la rs
As at

nr'I'arch 3L,2022
As at

March 31,2021
Dofcrred tax ab ty (A)

Deferred tax asset (U)

Deferred tax asssts/{liabilities) (nct) {refer note 33) C= (B-A)

4.14

90.28

15.51

90.14 (1s.51)

Particulars As at as at

D"f**d;^ ["btq (-\) 
March 31' 2022: March 31' 2021

Defcrred tax asset (tl) 3.08

Deferred tax asssts/(liabilities) {net) (refer note 33) D= (B-A) {6.ss)

******This space is intentionally I{l{t blank*****++***"*
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HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED

ctN No. u34300011985Pr-C021785

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022
(Rs. ln L akhs)

11. to !se As5ets & Other

As at Addition on

April 01, 2021 consolidation
Addition Disposals/Adj

As at As at Addilion on

Vur. h rl, )0r, lp.il 0r, )021 !o.!ol'd!lion
As rr As at As at

I o. lh. V.rr I) s.osr \/Ad
.,.r_n",, M' . ll )A)l v-' - ll 20l/ V"r,a ll /0)l

A. Property, Plant and l.quipment

i !rfitur. afd firtLr.s 5.20

0.38

15.04

4.22

16.31

1.89

0.11

1.15

1.4E

6.3 9

5.41

3.37

0.11

/.64
1.5.37

5.49

o-2.1

8.63

t4.91

3.31

a.2.1

13.89

3.14

0.38

0.14

5.12

1.13 0,14

28.84 5.86 85.13 - 119.83 7.67 5.52 13.34 26.53 93.30 i.17
12.10 16.74 28.A4 5.92 7.75 J.6-t 2a.17 6.18

99.61 99.61 16.61 I 6.61 8l 06

B. Risht to us. Assets

<J9.61 99.61

C. Other lhtJngible Assets

L5.61 1.11 ? 1.:t9 5.5 6 1 /.5a 0.3t
4.10 52,98 15.67 7.71 21.59 0.33

4.10 ?.27 1.54 3.ll 0.tl

Propeily, P rnt and [quipment & Oth.r lntrhgib e Assets as at March ]1, ?071

As at Addition on

April 01, 2020 consoiidJtion
D{lductioh/ As rl As at Addltion on

szle March 11,7021 Apri 01,2020 consolidatior March3l,2021 March3l, 2021 March31, 2020

A. Propeny, Plant and Lquipment

I !rn ture a.d f xtures 5.20 5.20 A.40 0.49 1.89 3.31 1.80
0.38 0.38 0-01 0.04 0.11 0.21 0.31
\.32 13.72 15.04 0.55 0.60 1.1:i 13.89 0.r/

3.02 - 8.22 3.90 0.62 4.52 3.70 1.tO
12.!A 16.74 - Za.a4 5_92 1.75 1.61 21.17 6.18

B. Oth.r ntangib e Assets

4.10 4.10 2.23 1.54 3. tl 0.ll
4_10 4.10 z.z3 3.11 0.33 7.alL54

*lhis space is int'ntiona lv l'ft bi'nk'*'********
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HINDON MERCANTITE LIMITED

CIN: U34300D11985P1C021785

NOTES TO THE CONSOL!DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

12 lntangible assets under development

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at

March 31,2022
As at

Match 31, ?.02L

Softwares under deve opment

Total

1.41 .Ls

1.47.15

121 Ihedeveopmentofth€rsoftwarecommcnccddurlngtheycar,isscheduedforcompetlonattheendofthc{lnanctalyeat2.A22,?"3.

13 Other Non-Financial Asscts

Particulars
As at As at

March 31,2022 Mat.h 3L,2027
lla anc.s wlth Covernment Authorlties

Iax Crcdits/ Ilefund

Advances to Others

l)repa d llxpenses

Total

L6A.27

1,0:i 6.05

L08

89 5!l

136 95

1,399.58 236.65

14 Borrow:nts (other than Debt Sccurities)

At Amortised Cost

Particulars
As at

March 31,2022
As at

March 31,2021
secured

Term Loan

from Non Banklng financlal lnstitutlons

Overdraft
From ban (s

U!t !!qq Ied
Term Loan

L-oans {rom Others

Repayable on Demand
. Loans from related parties

I oans from Corporates

Total

Out of Above

ln ndia

Outslde nd !

1,657.33

993.04 199 39

1.00

1,544.?9

0.4?,

L,426.89

10,251.93 7,626.70

I 0,251.93 1,626.74

r.0,251.93 1,626.70

14.1. Nature of Security

[)]rectors T he same are rcpavab e ln cqua lnsta rncnts from :1 2 to 18 months.

b Ovcrdrafl facillties from []an<s are against by pkrdge of go d loan security.

c Periodlcal Ileturns fl .!d wlth the []anks in ft:spect of overdraft facillties are ln agrecment wlth the boo (s of account.

pcnC ng to bc r.glstcred with the tlcgistrar of Companles as on N/larch 31,2022.

e Ih.rCroupisnotdeclaredwlfu defaulterbyanyban<,financia lnstitutlonorlenderasatMarch3l,2022

f IhcGrouphaveutillsedtheborrowrngsta<enfromthcbanl(s/flnancla institutionforthepurposeforwhich oanwastaken.

14.2 Terms of Repayment o{ BorrowinRs (other than Debt Securitiesl as at March3L,2O22

Particulars Upto 1 Year
Over 1 Year to 3 Over 3 Year to 5

Years Ycars
Over 5 Years Total

5ecu red

Term Loans

I rom Non llrnl(ing I inanclal lnstitutlons

Ilate of lnteresl (llO ):14 15 /5%

Overdraft

flO : 9'1 1%

U n secured
Term [oans
. I oans irom Cthers
Itr)l: l'i l 8'l

Rcpayable on Demand

.urn Trom ^. ,L.d I lrl a-

RO 12 1.1,%

I oans from Corporales

RO 10 18%

Total

Processing Fee {lnd AS Adjustment)

Total

1,588 14

993.04

89.88 1,67 8.02

993.04

92.27

1.00

1,508.29

t0,t82.74 89.88 10,212.62

( 20.69 )

10,251.93

92.27

1.00

7,508.21)

Terms of Repayment of Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) as at March 31,2021

Particulars Upto 1 Year
Ovcr 1 Year to 3 Over 3 Ycar to 5

Over 5 Years lotal

!q!ured
Overdraft
- ljrom ban (s

ItO :9-11%

s
1 99.39

V

199.39

.e
CI
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HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED

CIN: U34300D11985PtC021785

NOTES TO THI CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

Terms of Repayment of Borrowings (other than Debt Securities) as at March 31,2021

(tts rn ta<hs)

Particulars Upto 1 Year
Over 1 Year to 3 Over 3 Year to 5

Years Years
Over 5 Years Total

Unselured
Repayable on Demand

- [ oans from rc]ated parties

lio:1r%
I odns ffom Corporat.s

ItOl: 12%

Total

4.42.

1,42 6.89

o.42

7,426.89

1.626.70 1,626.10

Processing Fee (lnd AS Adjustment)
Total 7,626.

15 Subordinated Debts

As at As at
Particulars

Ma 7021
Unsecured
At Amortiscd Cost

Term Loan

L oans {rom Corporates

Total

30,000 00 30,000.00

30,000.00 30,000.00

Terms of RepaVment of of Subordinated Liabilites as at March 3t,2022

Particulars [Jpto 1 Ycar
Over 1 Year to 3 Over 3 Year to 5

Years Years
Ovcr 5 Years Total

Ll n secu red

l'erm Loan

- [ oans from Corporates

ttOlr 15% (presentiy 10% w e.f November 01, 2021)

Total

30,000 00 30,000.00

30,000.00 30,000.00

Terms o{

Particulars

oI of Subordinated Liabilites as at March 2.02L

Upto 1 Year
Ovcr 1 Year to 3 Ovcr 3 Year to 5

Years Years
Over 5 Years Total

Tcrm Loan
.Loans from Corporalcs

RO | 15%

Total

30,000.00 30,000 00

30,000.00 30,c0 0.00

Particulars
As at

March 31,2022

As at

March 31,2021
ntcrest dccrued but not due on borrcwing

Lcas{r I ab] lt.rs

Salary and Othcr bcncfits payablc

t labl lty for txpenses

Securlty Deposits

Advances from others

Total

346.2.2.

84.62

3.20

109.42

2L7.79

1.46

fi68 :l ti

10.35

7,392..3 /
91.?O

802.7 t 2,762.04

lherewasnoamo!ntoutstandingandduefortransfcrlothe nvcstorfducatlonand Protectonl.unddurngth.yearcndt:dNlarchfl,l3l2

17 Current Tax Liabilities

Particulars
As at

March 31,2022

As at
March 31,2021

Prcvlslon for ncome tax (net of advance tar)
Total 86.64 22.33

V

DELHI

L6 Other Financial Liabilities

SJr-

P



HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED

CIN: U34300D11985P1C021785

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3L,2022

18 Provisions

(Rs. ln Lakhs)

Particula rs As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Provlsions for Employee Benefits
- cratuity Payable (Refer note 32)

Total

1.36 4.61

1.36 o.67

19 OtherNon-FinancialLiabilities
Pa rticulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Statutory ducs payablt: 25.41 137.70

10

20 Equity Share capital
Pa rticula rs As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021,

Authorised share capital
2,50,00,000 (March :11, 2.0).1'. ).,:t0,00,O00) cquity shares of Rs. 10 cach

lssued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

1,27 ,92,634 (March 31, 2021,: 7,12,20,925) €quity shares of Rs. 10 each

2,:i00.00

1,,2/9.26

2,-500.00

1,122 .O9

20.1 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

At thc bcglnning ol thc ycar

ssucd during the ycar

Outstandlng at the cnd ofthc ycar

1,1.2,2,O,925

1.5, /1,/O9

56,E / ,346
55,33,s /9

1,,27,92,634 t,12,20,925

20.2 Ietns/ rights attached to equity sharcs

I he Company has on y one class of equity sharcs having par value o{ lls.10 pcr sharc (N/arch 31,20)1: lts. 10 pcr sharc). I ach holdcr o1

cquityshareslsontitlcdtoonevotepcrsharr:. AlloqultysharcholdcrsarchaverighttoBctdlvidondinproportiontopaidupvalucof
oach cquity sharc as and wlrcn declared.

n the event of liquidation of the Cornpany, the holders of cquity sharcs wl I bo entitlcd to rcccivc rcmainlng assets of thc Contpany, allcr
distributlof of all prefercntial arnounts. The distributlon rvl I bc in proportion to thc nunrbcr of cqulty sharcs hcld by thc sharr:ho dr:rs

20.3 Details of shareholders holdi more than 5 shares in the

Name of the Shareholder
As at March 31, 2022

Nos. % of holding

As at i!4arch 31,2021

Nos. % of holdir;.

Mr. l(apil Garg

Mr. itajat (ioyal

Ilosillcnt Lnnovalions l)vt. Ltd.

l\/ls. Surabhl :;ctia
Mr. Sandccp Jain

N,4s. Ncha AgJrwJl
I:inrncn Advisors Pvt. ltd.

33.94%

2 4.) O%

1).6'.t%

3.96%

6.23%

2.25%

34.81%

26.65%

13.92_%

5.80%

4.36%

4.36%
),.4/%

43,4 1,848

30,9ir,448

1 6,18,200

6, /4,488

5,06,:l:]5

/,96,IJs8

?,8 /,)4E

39,06,358

79,89,866
15,62,500

6,51,272

4,88,907

4,88,901

?.,77,361

20.4 Details of the shares held by Promoters in the Company

Name of the Promoter
As at March 31, 2022

Nos. % of holding

As at March 31. 2021 % change in

Nos. % of holdine shareholding
Mr. Kapil (larg 43,41.,848 33.94'%

)4.)0%
34.81%

26.6!,'%

11 .1\%

3.56%

39,06,.15u

?9,89,866Mr. Raiat Goval

{unds wcre raiscd.

20.6 Shares alloted for a consideration otherthan cash:

theCompar,yh.rsa o1tcd5,25,82,946and1./,54,4OA nurrhcro{fullypaidupcqultvsharcsa otcdonNovcmberl:l,2020toth0
sharcholCcrs of MLrfin Iin.rncc limitcd and QIP rrinancrai Serviccs Privatc Limitcd rcspcctlvoly, undcr a schcrne of arrangr:mcnl (mcrgcr

and arnalgamatlon)(ltefer notc 41)

29.7 lhcCompanyhas.1lloted1,52,092 luliy paidupcquitysharcsonMarch30,2O)2 lathc cndcrsof convcrl-lbcloafsatrrountingtoRs.
56/.:12 lakhs.

21 Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Iicscrvc I und u/s 4li iC ot lilll Act, i9.]4
Socurlties Prcftriurn

lmpalrmcnt llescrvc
licta ncd [:arnings

Ca0ltal Rcservc

Othcr l10ms of Othcr Comprchcnsivc lncorn(l

39:).64

4,074.11)

ti.1 i

1 ,',] 61 .13

2 3.lfJ
t). l)4

?.56.87

1,504.04

0.73

/3 /.r]?

Total Other 600.99

V
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HINDON MERCANTILE LIMITED

CIN : U34300D11985P1C021785

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

2l".L Nature and Purposes of Reserves:

a. Reserve Fund u/s 45-lC of RBI Act, 1934:

ThcGroupCompaniescreatedarcscrvcfundpursuanttoscction45 Co{the Rosorve[]anl(of ndlaAct, 1!l-l4bytransfcrrlrgancuItfot
lcss than 20% of its nct proflt cvcry year as disclosed in thc Consolidatcd Stalcmcnt oi l,ro{lt and I oss and beforc any Civ dcnd dcc arcd

wherr:ver applicablc. Wlthdrawal frorn this rcscrvc is aliowed only aftcr obtalning pcrmisslon {rom thc lltll tlcscrvo l!nc rc alcd to
subsidiarlcs arc discloscd on post aqulstlon profit ln proportion of thc sharoholding oi thr: llolding Compary amount s dlscoscd post

dcq-r\l o-.

b, Securities Premium:

Ihis Rescrve reprcscnts thc prcmium on lssue of cqulty sharcs and can bc utl lzcd ln accordance with thc provisions oi thc Cornpanrt:
Act, 201.3.

c. Retained Earnings:

Ilotaincd earnlnBs comprisc of thc proflts of tho (lroup carncd till datc nct of dlstributions and othcr adjustmcnts.
d. Other ltems of Other Comprehensive lncome:

Othcr Comprchcnsivc lncome inc udcs llcmcasuremcnt of thc dcfincd bcncflts pLan (nct)

e, lmpairment Rescrve;

lmpairmcnt llcscrvc comprise the amount of dlffcrcncc bctwecn thc loss allowancc on oan asscts as rcqulrcd undcr lnd AS 109 and thc
provision rcquirod as pcr prudential norms o{ Rcscrve t}ank of ndla on ncornc []ccognition, Assot C:rssificJt on 2nd Irrovisionirrg ( IinCI,)

approprlatcd from the nct proflt in tcrms of ltlll notlfication. No withdrawals aro permlttcd from this rescrvc without prior pcrmission of
the lill .

f. Capital Reserve:

Capltal ucscvc represcnts fair value of nct assets acquired excccds purch:tsc cosl.

**+*+***lhls space is lntcntlonaliy left b 'rnk************
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HINDON MERCANTILE LIMTTED

CIN: U34300D11985P1C021785
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

(Rs. in L.akhs)

22 lnterest ihcome

Particu lars
For the Year Ended

Match 3L,2022
For the Period Ended

March 31,2021
lntcrcst income on loans

Total

7 ,56)".54 4,1,L0.31,

7

23 Fee and Commission lncome

Particulars
For the Year Ended

March 31, 2022

For the Period Ended

March 31, 2021

loan [)roccssing []oes

Total

701,.42

20L.42

31.6 t
31.67

24 Other operatinB revenue

Pa rticu la rs
For the Year Endcd

March 31, 2022

For the Period Ended

March 31, 2021

[)ocumcnt lland ing and Other lncomc

Total

8.6 t
8.61

25 Other income

Particulars
March 31,2022

For the Period Ended

March 31, 2021

lntcrcst income on dcposits with Ilanks

lnterest on ncome Tax llcfund
lnterest on Securlty Dcposit

lluslncss nuxlllary Service Chargcs

Miscel ancous ncomc

Total

8.92

0.09

0.2r.l
..\ t? .4.\

0.34

9.44

3.24

382.06 12.68

26 Finance Cost

For the Year Ended

March3L,2022
For the I,eriod Ended

March 31,2021
nterest on borrowings (othcr than dcbt sccurities)

Lntercst on Subordlnatcd Debts

nterest on lcasc iiabilitics

ntcrcst on othcrs

tlank charges

Total

893.r;5

:i,8 /5.00

4.16
.1 

1.00

4./ /

t4.87

1,451 .52

0.94

3.08

4,788.58 1",532.41

27 I of financial instruments

Pa rticu lars
For the Year Ended For the I'eriod Ended

March 31,2021March 3.J,,2022

On financial instruments measurcd at amortised cost

On loans

- [ oan n ssels Writlcn Off (Nct of I]ecovcries)

Total

231 15 90.84

131.95

231.15 222.79

28 Employee benefits expenses

Particu lars
For the Year Ended

March 3\,2022
For the Period Ended

March 31,2021
5alarics and wagcs

Gratuity and Compcnsatcd Abscncc

Contributlon to provid.rnt and other funds (Rt:fcr notr: 32)

Staff rvcl{arc cxpenscs

558.58
1.44

22./1
1'.16

82.26

1.1.t

587.89 81.26

29 Other expenses

Particulars
For the Year Ended

Match 3L,2022
tor the Period Ended

March 31,2021
Auditor's rcmuncralion (Statutory Audlt I ce)

iluslncss auxlllary chargcs

Commission paid

I)orrfollo managcment cxpenscs

Profr:sslonaL & lcgal chargcs

N,4isccl aneous cxpenses

Office Irxp0nscs

l)rintinS and stationcry

Posta8e and te cgram

Advertisement

Ilatcs, larcs & [:.]es

Itent (ttcler Note 40)

N,4arl(cting I xpcnses

[,4aintenancc Scrvrce

I ravelling and convevance

Total

\.4)
1,584.ll1

15.?A

0.13

)) 5.4 )

19.22

15.32

0.0:r

u 1.ll9

5.54

)9.L5
1.06

) .16

.\4.) 1

1.59

1,,t /8.42

48.4:l

29.48

1.0.56

2.r7

4.44
L0.2.3

9.8)
2,O32.43 3.,490.12

DEI.HI V
**********************This space is intentionally left blank****x

*)*

4,110.31

For the Year Ended

Pa rticulars

\
X



30.

31

32.

IIINDON MI],RCAN]'ILE I,IM I'I'II D
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NO'I'ES I,-ORMING PARI'O}''IIIE CONSOI,IDA'I'ED I'INANCIAI, S'TA]'I]MI]N'I'S

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(a) Contingent Liabilities - Nil (March 31, 2021 - Nil).

(b) Commitments - Nil (March 31, 2021 - Nil).

Partly owned subsidiary

Financial information of subsidiary (Mufin Green Finance Limited (formerly APM Finvest Limited)
before adjustment that has non-controlling interests is provided below:

3,3L8.74

,l
7_s.69

a)

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 878.10

Details of Employees Benefits as required by the Ind AS 12 "Employee Benefits"

Defined Contribution Plans

The Group has recognized the following amounts in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Rs. in lakhs

-).o-l

Particulars t Y 202L-22

(Rs. in Lakhs)

I Summarized Balance Sheet
Ownership interest held by non- controlling interests 32.66%
Financial assets 9,107.12
Non-Financialassets 1,182.39

Flnancial liabilities (72.14,\

Non-Financia I llabilitles ( 10s. e7)

10 160.80

Consolidation adjustments
Net assets after adjustments 10,150.80

Net assets attributable to non- controlling interest

Summarized statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income
Reve n ue

Profit/ (loss) for the year 1088.19

0.19

1088.38

355.40

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Proflt/ (loss) allocated to non-controlling interest
Other comprehensive income a llocated to non-controlling,interest 0.06

13.94Dividend declared to non-controlling interest

iii Summarized cash flow statements

6,140.86
(20.26)

Cash flows from investing activities

For t.he year cnded
lYarch 31,2021

2. B0

Particu la rs

Contribution to ESI 4.O5

Ma h3 2022
For the year ended

1
0. B0

CS

Co bution to EDLI
Administration Ch

o.69
o.69

0. 12
0. 1l

22.7t

DELHI

Total

V

Net assets

ll.

Cash flows from operating activities 8,842 s0)

Contri['lution to orovident fund
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NO'I'}IS F'ORMING I'AR'I'OF 1'IIE CONSOI,IDATI]D ITINANCIAI, S'I'A'I'T]MIi'N'I'S

b) Post Retirement Benefit PIan - Gratuity

(i) Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
Rs. in lakhs

( ii) Amount recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as Employee Benefit
Expenses

Rs. in lakhs

(iii) Assumptions

Particu lars As at March 31,
2022

Financial Assumption
Discount rate 7.26 5 ,16
Salary Escalation Rate # 10.oo 10.00
Demoqraphic Assumptions
Retirement age (Years) 60 60
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability l0oo/o of IALM

(2012-14 )
100o/o cf IALl,1

(20t2-14 )

Attrition at ages
Up to 30 years 44.OO 44.00
From 31 to 44 years 44.OO 44.00
Above 44 years 44.O4 44.OO

As at lvl,rrah -11,

).0? |

# I ne estimatc of rate of cscalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, taken inLo account
inflation, se-'niority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and denrancj in the ernplcynrenl
ma rket.

(iv) SensitivityAnalysis
Rs. in Iakhs

Gratu
(0.04) o.a2

\

Particulars As at
March 31,?OZL

Prcsent value of plan liabilities o.67

As at
March 3L;2022

Fair value of plan assets
Deficit/(Surplus) of funded plans o.69 0.67
Unfunded plans

Net plan liabilities/ (assets) 1.36 0.67

Pa rticu la rs For the year
ended

March 3L,2022

For the year
ended

March 3L,2O2L
Currcnt servicc cost L.44 o.43
Past service cost
Interest cost o.o6
Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (o.81)
Total expenses o.69 4.67

o,24

As at March 3L,2022

Disco u nt
ratc

Change in
assumptinn

O.5Oo/o

fncrease
impact

on
present
value of

plan
liabilities

Decrease
impact

on
present
value of

plan
liabilities

i n crease
inrpacL on

p resent
rra lu e of

pla n
lia b ilities

Dccr easc:
rmpact orr

p resen t
,ra lu e of

pia n
lia bilities;

As at March 3 2021
Chanqe in

assu m ption

0.50%

DELHI9">-
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As at March 3L,2022
Change in

assumption
Increase
impact

on
present
value of

plan
liabilities

Decrease
impact

on
present
value of

plan
liabilities

Change in
assu mption

I n crea se
impact on

p rese nt
value of

pla n
lia bilities

Decrease
impact on

p resent
value ol

pla n
iia bililies

Salary
Esca lation
Rate

O.5Oo/o o.04 (o.04) 0.02

As at March 31 2021

0.50%

33.

a)

( 0.02 )

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably posslble changes of the
respective assumption occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be representative of the
actual change. It is based on a change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all
other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumptionr the method (Projected
Unit Credit Method) used to calculate the liability recognized in the balance sheet has been applied. The
methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared
with the previous period.

(v) The defined benefit obligations maturing after year ended March 37., 2022
(Rs. in lakhs)

o.04
r..o3

Income Tax Expense

Tax expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
in lakhs

Total tax nized for the ar (4s.91) 1 80.

b) A reconciliation of thc tax cxpense to the amount cornputed by appll,ino !he stalutoi-y incorne tax ratc
to the profit bcfore tax is summarized bclow:

Rs. in lakhs
For thc ycar ended

l4arch 31 , 2021

Maturing within As at March
3L,2022

0-lyear o.o 1
1 - 2 years o.o2
2 - 3 years
3 - 4 years
4 - 5 years

o.o4
o.15
o.o7

ar onwards
rS

6
5-6

Particulars For the year
ended March

3L,2022

For Lhc yeai-
ended Nlarch

37,2021
Current tax
Current tax on taxable income for the year 65.13 r 61.60
Total Current tax expense

65. r"3
161.60

Deferred tax
Deferred tax charqe/(credit) (96.6s) 18.40
Total deferred tax expense/(credit) (e6.6s) t8.40
Tax expense for the year (3 1. s2) i80.00
Tax related to earlier year (14.39)

Particu lars For the yean ended
March 3Lt'2O22

Effective Tax Rate 2V.82o/o
Profit before tax 475.94

2-7 .820/o

41 8.1 9
Current tax expcnsc on profit before tax cxpcnse at the
enacted income tax ratc in India

L32.42 1 1 6.34

DELHI
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NO'I'ES !'ORMING PAILI'OF'IIIII CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S'l'A'l'I1MI,l,NTS

Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible/
(taxable)/rate difference in calculatinq taxable income

( 163.e4) 6 3.66

Tax Expense for the year (31.s2) 1B 0.0 0

Effect of earlier year tax adiustment (14.39)
Tax Expense recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss

180.00

As at April 1,
2020

-Deferred
Tax Asset/
(Liabilities)

Pa rticu Ia rs
(Credit)/
charge in

Consolidated
Statement

of Profit and
Loss

Credit/
(cha rge)
in OCI

As at March
3L,2O2L
-Deferred

Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Addition on
consolidation

(credit)/
charge in

Consolidated
Statement

of Profit and
Loss

(Credit) /
charge in

ocr

Impact of
d ifference
between tax
depreciation
and
depreciation/
amortization
charged for
the financial
re porti nq

( 1 .07) 4.33 (s 40) (o.84) (86.8e) 80.65

Impact of
Provisions of
Incomc 'Iax

Act,1961 oT

Im pa irmcnt,
Employcc
bcncfits and
othcrs

3.95 14 .06 (10.I 1) 3.50 (e.76) 2.94

Deferred tax
(Liabilities)
/ Assets
(Net)

2. UB 1ti. 39 (1s.s1) 2.66 (e6.6s)

o.2r"

o.21 83.59

c) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

(4s.91)

As at
2022

Rs. in lakhs
As at March

3Lt 2022
-Deferred
tax Asset/
(Liabilities)

x Amount less than one thousand

34. Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximize the shareholder value,
safeguard the business continuity and to maintain strong capital base for investor, creditors and
market confidence. For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity
capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.
'The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions, future plans and the requirements of the financial covenants. The funding requirements
are met through loans and operating cash flows generated. The Group monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group's policy is to keep optimum
gearing ratio as given below:

in lakhs

March 31
As at
2021Particu la rs March 3

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended March 37, 2022 and March 37, 2021

Borrowinqs (other than Debt Securities) 10,25r,93 1,626,70
Subordinated Debts
Other financial liabilities
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

30 000.00
BO

( 1,121. CB )

aq30 000
2 1 62,0u

(1,1s2 06)
Net Debt (A) 39,933.56
Total Equitv (B) 10,198.99

32,636.72
3,621.55

Capital and Net debt (C)=(A+B) 5O,132.55
Gearing ratio o/o (A/C) 79.660/o

36t258.27
9O.O1o/o

DELHI
V
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35. Financial Risk Management

The Group is mainly engaged in Investments & Financing activities and Other Financial Services. The
Group's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance and support Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets
include loans, cash and cash equivalents and receivables.

The risk management policies of the Group are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by
the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Group's actlvities.

The Group is exposed to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Group's management oversees
the management of these risks to ensure the Group's financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate pollcies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with Group's policies and risk objectives. The major risks are summarized below:

35.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
a customer contract, leading to financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its investment
and financing activities towards Loans to various clients. The Group's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Credit risk has always been
managed by the Group through credit approvals, establish credit limits and continuous monitoring the
credit worthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Financial assets are wrilten off when there is no reasonable cxpectation of recovery, such as a borrower
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, Where loans/interest have been writlen off, the
Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to atlempt to recover rhc loans,/r-cccivabic Cur:.
Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as incomc in thc Consolidatcd Statcrncnt of P:ofit
and Loss.

-fhe Group measur.es lhe expected credit loss ol'trade reccivablcs/loans basccj on hislorical lrend,
available external and internal credit risk factors such as financial condition, agcing oi accounts
receivable etc., industry practices and thc busincss environment in which lhe entity operatcs. Loss rates
are basr:d on actual credrt loss experience and pasl- trends.

As at March 31,2022, the Group did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit
risk, which had not been adequately provided for, The carrying amount of the financial assets recorded
in the Consolidated Financial Statements, grossed up for any allowances for losses, represents the
maximum exposure to credit risk.

35.2 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and market price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans, investments, borrowings and fixed deposits.

35.2.1 Interest Rate Risk

The interest rate risk exposure !s mainly from changes in fixed and floating interest rates. The interest
rates are disclosed in the respective notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.
The breakup of the financial assets and liabilities on the basis of interest and non-interest nature is as
u nder:

tn

g

Pa rticu Iars As at
March 31,2021

Financial assets

As at
March 3L,2O22

Non*interest bearing
Cash and cash equivalents 1121.08
Trade receivables t22.37

688,14
30,87

DELHI
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Investments 999.95
Others Financial Assets 819.32 5 52.63
Loans
Interest bearing
Deposits with Bank 590.OO 463.32
Loa ns * 46,135.45 35,702.26
Financial liabilities
Non-interest bearinq
Trade Payable

802.71 2,762.08Other Financial Liability
Interest bearinq
Borrowinqs (other than Debt Securities) 1Or251.93

3O,OOO.OO
L,626.70

Subordinated Debts 30,000.00
x Gross Portfolio

Sensitivity Analysis
The table below summaries the impact of increase and decrease in rate of interest on the Group's
Equity/ other assets and profit for the year. The analysis is based on the assumption that the interest
rate has increased/decreased by 50 base point.

(a) Interest rate sensitivity - Borrowings
Rs. in lakhs

(b) Interest rate sensitivity - Loans
Rs. in lakhs)

F.Y
20-21

17 8.51
(17B.s1)

(c) Interest rate sensitivity - Fixed Deposits with Bank
Rs. in lakhs

35.2.2 Currency Risk

The Group does not have any currency risk exposure as there is no foreign currency
obligation/receivable.

35.2.3 Market Price Risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in markct prices of equity shares and mutual funds units. In the case of thc
Company, market risk primarily impacts financial instruments such as Investmenl in Mutual Funds,
Equity Shares etc. measured at fair value through profit or loss,

The Company exposure to market price risk arising from Investments held by the Company and is
classified in the financial statements at fair value through profit or loss. Categories of Investments held
by the Company is given below:

],
t'

*R

F.Y,
202L-22

F, Y,

2420-21
50 bp increase would decrease the profit before tax by (201.36) (1s8.13)

50 bp decreasc would Increase the profit before tax by 201.36 158. r3

50 bp increase would increase the profit before tax by
20 L-22

F.Y.

230.68
50 bp decrease would decrease the profit before tax by (23o.68)

F.Y.
202L-22

F.Y. 2A20-
21

50 bp increase would increase the profit before tax by 2.95 2.32
50 bp decrease would decrease the profit before tax by (2.es) (2.32)

DELHI

l



IIIN DON MITII.CAN'TILE I,IMI'I'EI)
cIN U34300I)Ll985PLC021 78s
NOTES TORMING PAII.l'OF'I'IIE CONSOI,IDA'TI]D I'INANCIAI, STA'I'IIMI'N]'S

36.

36.1

in lakhs

Sensitivity Analysis

The table below summaries the impact of lncrease and decrease of the index on the Company's Equity/
other assets and profit lor the year, The analysis is based on the assumption that the instrument index
has increascd by 5% or decreascd by 5a/o with all other variables held constant.

Rs. in lakhs

35.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will not be able to settle or meet ils obligations on
time or at reasonable price. Liquidity risk are managed through combination of strategies like managing
tenors in line with asset liability management policy and adequate liquidity cover is maintaincd. Thc
Group's treasury team is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as scttlcment management, In
addition, proccsses and policies rclatcd to such risks are overseen by Senior rranagement. lvlanagement
monitors the Group liquidity position through rollinq forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
Rs. in lakhs

xGross of processing fee of Rs. 20.69 lakhs

Other Financiai Instruments Disclosures

Financial Instruments by Category

The carryinq valuc and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 3L, 2022 are as
follov,,s:

Rs. in lakhs

Pa rticu lars Amortized
cost

Financial
assets/

liabilities at
fair value

rough profit
or loss

Financial
assets/

liabilities at
fair value

through OCI

Total
Carrying

value

Total fair
value

*

Pa rticu la rs Equity Shares(quoted) Mutual Funds Total

Market value as at March 3Lt 2022 999.95 999.95

Market value as at March 37,2021

Particulars March 31,
2022

lYarch 31,
2027

57o increase would increase the profit before tax by 50.oo
50/o decrease would decrease the profit before tax by (so.oo)

Pa rticu la rs Less than I
year / On

demand

1to5
years

>5
years

Total

As at March 3L,2027
Borrowinqs.other than Debt Securities LO,t82.74x 89.88 LO,272.62
Subordinated Debts 30,ooo.oo 30,ooo.oo
Other financial liabilities 743.94 54.77 802.7L
As at March 3L 2027
Borrowinqs other than Debt Securities 1626.7 0 t626.10
Subordinated Debts 30,0 00.00 3 0,0 0 0.00
Other financial liabilities 2 070. BB 91.20 216 2.08

(a) Investment in equity
shares (unquoted)

(b) Mutual Funds 999.9s 999.95

DELHI
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L22.37

xGross of processing fee of Rs. 20.69 lakhs

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2021 arc as
follows:

Rs. in lakhs

L,626.7 0

30 0 00.0 0

36.2

36.2.L

(c) Other financial Liabilities 2,16?_.08

Fair Value Hierarchy

-fhis scction explains lhe judgments and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognized and measured at fair value and (b) rneasured at amortized cost
and for which fatir values are disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Staternents. 1t docs not inclucle fair
value information forfinartcial assets and liabilities if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation
of fair value"

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2021

Level 1 Lerre! 2 Lcvcl 3

l\ssetsl

v

\

(c) Trade receivables L22.37 122,37
(d) Loans 45,780,99 45,780.99

- 
4E,79o.99

819.32(e) Other financial assets 819.32 819.32
(f) Cash and cash
Eq u iva lents

1121. 08 1121.08 1121. 08

(S) Bank balance
than cash and
eq u iva lents

other
cash

590.OO 590.OO 590.OO

Liabilities
(a) Borrowings other than

Debt Securitiesx
LO,272.62 LO,272.62

30,ooo.oo

LOt272.62

30,ooo.oo(b) Subordinated Debts 30,ooo.oo
(c) Other financial

lia bilities
802.7L 802.7L ao2.7r

Pa rticu Iars Amortized
cost

Financial
assets/

liabilities
at fair
value

through
profit or

loss

Total
Carrying

value

Total fair
value

Assets
(a Investment in equity
shares (unquoted)

b Mutual Funds
(c) Trade receivables 30, B7

35,592.83
)A O- 30.u/

3 5,59 2. B3(d) Loans 35.592.U3
(e) Other financial assets 5s 2.63 552,63 5 52.6 3

1,15 2.06(f) Cash and cash Equivalents 1,1 5 2.06 1,152.06

Liabilities:
(a) Borrowings other than Debt
Secu rities

L,626.70 7,626.70

(b) Subordinated Debts 30,000.00 30,0 0 0.00
2,762.08 2,162.08

Level 1 Level 3

March 3Lt 2A22
Level 2

(a) Investment in equity
shares (Unquoted)

Pa rtic u la rs

(b) Mutual Funds 999.9s

DELHI&r V
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Assets:
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities 44.62

36.2,2 Measurement of fair values

The above table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1to Level 3, as described below;

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or liabilitics.
Level 2 - Input other than quoted prices includcd within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices).
Levcl 3- Inputs for the assets or thc liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobscrvable
Inputs)
Valuation Methodologies of financial inslruments measured at fair value
- Listed Equity shares are measurcd on the basis of closing rate of the stock exchange where equity
shares are listed.
- Mutual Funds arc measured based on the published net asset value (NAV) by AlvlFI and are classified
as Level 1.

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost
Rs. in lakhs

-thc fair value of the financial assets is included at amounts at which the instrurnenls could be exchanqed
in a current transaction bctween willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

(ii) The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value

(a) Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, other payables and other
financial liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts [argely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

37.

(b) Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Group based on
parameters such as inter-est rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this
evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected losses of these receivables.

Maturity profile of Assets and Liabilities on undiscounted basis
Rs. in lakhs

March 3l-,2021Pa rticu lars March 3L,2022
Lease liabilities 84.62

March 3lt 2022
Within 12

months
Alter 12
m onlh s

Within 12
months

lvlarch 31,2021
After 12
months

Pa rticu la rs

Financial Assets
1121.08 t,752.06Cash and cash equivalents

590.OOBank balance othcr than cash and cash
eq uiva lents

L22.37 12.33 18.54Trade receivable
20313.76 1-5279.01Loans 43059.12 2721.47

999.95Investments
736.10 503.9 3 48.7 0

27.11

L47,L5

49.15

22

Current tax assets Net

Ta ible Assets

Goodwill

83.O6
93.30

Others Financial Assets

Intangible assets under development

Non-Financial Assets

NetDeferred

aht of

90.14

77.50 0.3 3Other Intangible assets

DELHI
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Financial Liabilities
1626.70LOL82.74* 89.88Debt Securitiesother thaBo

30000.0 030000.ooSubordinated debts
91 .205a.77 2

Financial Liab tes
Current tax liabilities nct 22.33

O.BB743.94

86.64

er financial liabilities

1.36Provisions 0.61
15.516.55Deferred tax liabilities

137.1025.4LOther Non-Financial Liabilities

Other on-financial 1090.75

*Gross of processing fee of Rs. 20.69 lakhs.

Disclosures as required by Ind AS-24'Related Party'

List of Related parties and their relationship:

308.83 1 0.11 226.54

38.

38.1

S.No Relation Name ulars of Re

1 Key
Personnel

Management Shri Kapil Garg

Shri Ajay Kumar
Chhabra
Shri Adish Kumar
Jain
Shri Mayank PrataP
Sinq h

Managing Director w.e.f. Septernbcr
of ,2021
Company SecretarY

Chief Financial Offlcer of Subsidiary
Company w.e.f. l'4arch 09, 2022
Company SecretarY of SubsidiarY
Com w.e.f. March 09 2022

2 Relatives of KeY

Management Personnel
Shri Rajat Goyal
Smt. Shelly Garg

Husband of Smt, Ncha Agarwal, Director
Wife of Shri Kapil Garg, Managing Director

3 Non-Executive Directors Smt. Neha Agarwal
Shri SandeeP Jain
Shri Luv Khanna
Shri Pradip - Kumar
Kar
Shri Amol Sinha

Non-Executive Di rector
Non-Executive Director
Non-Exccutive Director
Non Executive Dircctor w.c f October
23,2021
Non-Executive Director w.e.f November
25 2027

38.2 The following transactions were carried out with Related parties in the ordinary course of
business:

Rs. in la h
Year endcd

Ma L 2027
Year ended

March 3t, 2022
Nature of transactionName of the Related PartY

563.91159.87Shares issuedShri at Go
3.59Shares issuedShri Ghanshyam Das Goyal

Shares issuedDevi GaS
2_35.t2

75.28
L6.57Shares issuedShri Luv Khanna

0.30Director Sitting feesri Amol Si ha
L50.OODirector's Remu neration
372.OOLcan repaid
373.OOLoan received

50 5.5 7228.88Shares rssued
2.734.92

1.OODirector sitting fces
nlnterest Paid on

Shri Kapil Garg

KumarPra d
63.4526.L4Shares issuedJa inShri

0.19Interest paid on loan
63.4526.L4Sharcs issued

Smt Neha Agarwal

0.4 06.29
665.0O

Interes[ paid on loan
Loan repaid
Shares issued 20.0o

665.OOLoan receir",ed

Smt Shelly Garg

DELHI
i*
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38.3 Outstanding balances with Related parties
inl kh

38.4 Particulars of Remuneration to Key Management Personnel
Rs. in lakhs

Particu lars

Shri Mayank Pratap Singh,
Com an Secreta

Value of pe uisites x

38.5

38.6

39.

x calculated as per Income Tax Rules

No amount pertaining Lo related parties has becn provided lor as doubtful debts or wnLten off

Related party relationship is as identified by the Cornpany.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Yea r
cndcd
N1 a rch

31 2021.

40

40.1

40.2

Disclosures of Leases pursuant to Ind AS 116

Tlre Group has taken building on operating lease for office use.

Amounts recognized in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
Rs. in lakh

Fcr thc ycar endcd
March 31 2021

{i
A

Name of the related party Nature of transaction As at March 31,
2022

As at March 31,
2021

Ka pil Garq Loan outstandinq (liability) 1.OO

Shri Kapil Garg,
Managing Director

Year ended
March 31,

2022

Year ended
March 31,

2027

Shri Ajay Chhabra,

Year ended
March 31,

2022

Year ended
Ma rch 31 ,

2021

Com Secreta

Salarv and Allowances 150.OO 8.26
Contribution to PF o.20
G ratu ity
Value of perquisites x

Particu lars Shri Adish Kumar Jain,
Chief Financial Officer

Year
ended
March

3L,2022

Yea r
ended
March

37, 202t

Year
ended
March

3L,2022
Salary and Allowances 1.OO o.50

o.o2Contribution to PF o.o2

Particulars Year ended
March 3Lt 2f)27

Year endcd March
31, 20?1

567.46 238 19Net Profit for the year (before OCI) attributable to the
Company (Rs, in Lakhs)
Weighted average no. of Equity Shares 1 16 805 60 6B 677

OU 68,6f 7

4.87 3.92
Diluted average no, of Equity Shares
Basic earninqs per share (Rs.)
Diluted earninqs per share (Rs.) 4.47 3.92

1Face value of each share (Rs.)

For the year ended
March 3L,2022

Pa rtic u la rs

Rcnt ENSCS 29.15
Depreciation Expenses 16.61
Interest Expenses 4.16

DELHI
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4O.3 The changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (ROU)
Rs. in lakhs

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

40.4 The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities
Rs. in akh

84.62

40.5 The movement in lease liabilities
Rs. in lakhs

40.6 The details regarding the contractual maturities of lease Iiabilities on an undiscounted basis
Rs. in lakhs

4L Pursuant to the order dated September 14, 2O2O of the National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi
Bench IV, in the matter of amalgamation of Mufin Finance Limited and QTP Financial Services Private
Limited with Hindon Mercantile Limited ('the holding Company') in a scheme of amalgamation under
section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the'Scheme') w.e.f 'July 31, 2019'(appointed date),
in accordance with the scheme of amalgamation, with effect from the appointed date, the company
has accounted for amalgamation of Mufin Finance Lirnited & QTP Financial Services Private Limited in
its books ofaccounts as per"The Pooling ofInterest Method"as described in Accounting Standard(AS)-
14 "Accounting for Amalgamations" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, In
accordance with Para 10 of Accounting Standard (AS) 14,'Accounting forAmalgamation', the company
has effected said amalgamation recognizing the identifiable assets attheir existing carrying amounts,
In accordance with Paragraph 35 of aforesaid Accounting Standard-14, the difference between the
amount recorded as share capital issued and the amount of share capital of the transferor company
have been adjusted in reserves.

Business Combination
(a) Mufin Green Finance Limited (Formerly known as APM Finvest Limited)

Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement entered into between the Sellers ('rOutgoing Promoters")
and Hir.rdon Mercantile Limited and Kapil Garg ("Acquirers") 1, lhc Acquirers

ii
r"'

1;:

\

BuildingPa rticu la rs

For the year ended
March 3L,2022

For the year ended
March 31,2021

Balance at the beqinninq of the vear
Add itions 99.67

Depreciation ( 16.61)
Balance at the,end of the year 83.O6

Particu lars For the year ended
March 31,2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Current lease liabilities 29.44
Non-current lease liabilities 54.78
Total

Particu lars

Balance at the beginning of the year

For the year ended
__, !Le-1c[f1, 2p22 March 31, 2021

For the ycar ended

Additions 97.80
Interest Expenses 4.16
Deletions
Payment of lease liabilities (77.34)
Balance at the end of the year 44.62

Particu lars As at March 31,
2022

As at March 31.
2021

Less than one ear
One to five ea rs 58.79
More than five

95.09

DELFiI
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have acquired entire stake of Mufin Green Finance Limited (Formerly known as APM Finvest Limited)
('The Company") from the Outgoing Promoters resulting In change in management control w.e.f
March 09, 2022, Consequently, theAcquirers are the new Promoters of the Company and the Outgoing
Promoters have ceased to (i) hold any shares in the Company, (ii) hold control of the Company and
(iii) be the Promoters of the Company. In this regard, the Company has received "No objection" from
the Reserve Bank of India. The application filed by the Company with the stock exchange for
reclassification of outgoing promoters to public category is under process. Brief description of Assets
and Liabilities and Capital Reserve as on March 08,2022 is given below:

(Rs, in Lakhs)

Pa rticulars
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Amount
50 1 3.78

Loans 55 51. 17

Other FinancialAssets 4.14

Property, Plant and Equipment and lntanglble Assets

Deferred Tax Assets(net)

0.04

3.49

Other Non-Financia I Assets a aa

Total Assets (A) 74,579.99
FinancialLiabilities

219.88Current Tax Liabilities(net)
Total Liabilities (B) 279.44
Equity as at March 08, 2022 6= (A-B)

Hindon Mercantile Limited'share in Equity (D) 6,935.86
lnvestment (E)

Capital Reserve (D-E)

6,91'2.49
23.37

(b) Hindon Peer to Peer Finance Private Limited, subsidiary ('the Acquirer") have acqLrirecl entire stake
of Fintelligcncc Data Science Private Lrmited (''fhe Company") fi-om the Outgoing Promoters
(AAPCA Demystifying Data Technologies Private Limited) resulting in change in management
control w.e.f June 16,2021. Consequently, the Acquirer is the rrew Pi-onroters of the Company
and the Outgoing Prornoters have ceased to (i) hoid any shares in the Company, (ii) hold control
of thc Company and (iii) be [he Promoters of the Company. ]n this regarcl, rhe Cornpany has

received "No objection" from the Reserve Bank of Indla Bricf description of Assets and Liabilrties
and Goodwill as on June l-6, 2A21 is givcn bclow:

(Rs. in lal<hs)

Pa rticulars Amount
Cash and Cash Equivalents Financial Assets 51.83

Loans 1 7.08

Other FinanciaIAssets

Property, Plant and Equipment and lntangible Assets

0.08
37.50

Other Non-Financial Assets 16.44--

Total Assets (A) 123.03
Other Financial Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)
20.5 6

0.83

Other Non-Financial Liabilities 0.19

Total Liabilities (B) 22.L8
Equity as at June 16,zgZL C =(A-B )

Hindon Peer to Peer Finance Private Limited' share in

lnvestment (E)

100.85
100.85
150 00

Goodwill (E-F) (4e.1s)

I ij')DELHI
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43 The Board of Directors of subsidiary Company, Mufin Green Finance Lirnited (Former-ly kncwn as APM
Finvest Limited) in their meeting held on May 18, 2022 have recommended a dividend G) Re.0.20 per
Equity share of face value of Rs.2 per share (i.e. 10%) for the financial year 2021-2.2 as pcr Scction
723 of the Act subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at the ensuing General lYeeting.
The proposed dividcnd of Rs. 43.22 Iakhs have not been recognized as liability in the books of accounl
of the subsidiary.

44, The Group's main business is Investments & Financing activilles and Other Financial Services. All
activitics are carricd out within India. As such there are no reportablc scgmcnts as pcr Ind AS 108 -
'Operating Segnrents'.

45 The Group Companies does not see any challenge in the recoverability of the carrying values of its
assets and to its liquidity position. The eventual outcome of impact of the COVID-19 pandemic may
be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Group Companies will continue to monitor any material changes to the future
economic conditions.

46. Notes on Transition of financial statement to Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS

The Group has prepared consolidated financial statement for the ycar cndcd lYarch 31, 2022, in
accordance with Ind AS for the first time. For the periods up to and including the year cnded March
31-,2027, the Group prepared consolidated financial statemcnt in accordancc with accounting
standards notified under section 133 of the companies Act 2013, read together with the companies
(Accounting Standard) Rules 2006, as amended (Previous GAAP). Accordingly, the Gr-olp has prepared
its Consolidated Financial Statements to comply with Ind AS for the year endcd lVarch 31.,2022,
together with comparative information as at and for the year ended l'vlarch 31 , 2A2L as cjescribed in
the summary of signilicant accounting policies. in preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements,
the Group's opening Baiancc Sheet was not presented as at April 1, 2020 i.c. the transi[ion dale lo
Ind AS for the Group as the Company had prepared its first consolidatod financial slatcmcnts for the
financial year ended lvlarch 31, 2O2l as per ind AS.

'fhis notc explains the principal adjustments madc by the Group in restating its Previous GAAP
Consolidated Financial Staterncnts, including the Consolidated Financial Statcmcnts as aI and for the
year ended March 31,2027.

46.L Exemptions availed.

(i) Deemed Cost for Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
and Intangible Assets recognized as of April t,2020, (the transition date). Measured as per the
Previous GAAP and use that carrying value its deemed cost as of the transition Cate under Ind AS.

( ii) Classification and Measurement of Financial Asset
The Group has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

( iii) Estimates
On assessmenL of tlte es[irnatcs rnade under the previous GAAP Cons<-rlidated Financial SLatr:i'ncnts,
the Group has concluded that lhcre is no necessity to revise the estimate under Ind AS, as thcrc is

no objective evidcnce of an error in those estimates" llowever, estimate-e [lrat were required under
it-td AS but not required under Prcvious GAAP are made by the Group ior t.ilr: rclcvant rcporting datc:;
rellecting conditions existing as aI that date. Thc Group made esrimate.s for [oilov,ring itcrns in
accordance with Ind ASi at the date o1" transition as these werc not requlred unoer picviitus GA/IP:
Impairment of financial assets based on expr:cted credit loss modcl.

DELHI

)- s}-



IITNDON MEITCAN'TIL!] I,I MITI] I)
cIN U34300I)L1985PLC02 I 7{ts
NOTES I,'OnMING PAIII'OF I'IIE CONSOLIDATltD I,'INANClAl, S'l'A'l'll,MEN'I'S

(iv) Exemption for business combination
The Group has adopted not to apply Ind AS 103 Business Combinations retrospectively (business
combination that occurred before transition to Ind AS).

46.2.L Reconciliation of net profit for the year ended March 3t, 2OZL between the Previous GAAP
and Ind AS is as under:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particu lars Period ended March 31t 2O2l

Net profit as per Previous GAAP
3 1U.23

Adiustments

Interest income on Finance Lease (Refer note 1) 76.62

Rental income on Finance Lease (Refer note 1) (91 .47)

Depreciation on assets of Finance Lease (Refer note 1)
14"85

MAT credit entitlement adjustment (Refer note 2)
( 80.04)

Net Profit as per Ind AS 238.19
Re-measurement of the defined benefits plan

Total Comprehensive Incorne as per Ind AS 238.19

46.2.2 Reconciliation of Equity reported in Previous GAAP and Ind AS is as under

Rs. In Lakhs

46.2,3 Reconciliation of Equity as at March 3Lt 2O2L and Total Comprehensive Income for the
year ended March 3L,2O2L

Reconciliation of Equity as at March 3I,2021
Rs. In Lakhs

Ind AS

B'/30

Pa rticu la rs l\s at March 3L,2O2L
Balance as per previous GAAP 3,621,55

Adjustmcnts

Ealances as per Ind AS 3,62 1.5 5

S.No.

Pa rticu la rs

Previous
GAAP

Ind l\S
Adjustments

ASSETS

I Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
1,1 52.06 1 ,1 52.06

Bank balances other than
cash & cash equivalents
Receiva bles

-Trade Receivables

DELHI
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Loans

Investments

Other financial assets
552.63

Total Financial assets
37,O36.1O 292.29 37,328.39

II Non-Financial Assets

Deferred tax assets (net)
...

21.77

0.33

Property, plant &
equlpment

1
3 13 .46 (292.29)

Right of use assets

Intangible assets under
development
Other Intangible assets

0,33
Other non-financial assets

236.65 236.65

258.15
Total Non-financial assets

550.44 (292.29)

Total Assets
37,5A6.54 37,5A6.54

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

Payables

-Trade payables

i) Total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small
e nte rp rises

ii) Total outstanding dues
of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Borrowings (other than
Debt Securities)

1,626,70 L,626.70

Subordinated Debts 30,000.00

2,162"08

30,000.00

Other financial liabilities 2,162.08

Total Financial Liabilities 33,788.78

IV Non-Fina ncial Liabilities

300.545 292.29 35 59 2.8-l

552.63

33,788.78

t,
*

DELI.{I

Currcnt tax liabilities (net) 11. -1J 22 . -13

I
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0.67

553,62L

1,72'2.09

2,499.46

371586.54

c, Total Comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2021

In kh

Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15.51 15.51

Other non-financial
lia bilities

137.70 137 .to

Total Non-financial
liabilities

L76.2L L76.2L

EQUITY

V Equity

Equity share capital r,722.O9

2,499.46Other equity

Total 3,621.55

Total Liabilities and Equity 371586.54

0.67

5.No, Pa rtic u la rs Note For the Year
Ended

March 31,
202L

For the Year
Ended March

3L,2O2L

Revenue from operations
(i) Interest income

(ii) Fee and commission income

1 4,033.69

31.51

I Total Revenue from operations 4,O65.36 76.62

4,110.31

31.67

4,L41.98

II Other income 1 104.15 (e1.47) 72.68

III 4,769.5L (14.8s)Total Incorne (I+II) 4,L54.66

Expenses
(i) Finance costs

1 ,532.41
(ii) Impairrncnt of financial
instru ments

1 532.41

2'22. /9 222.19
(iii) Ernplol,cc brenefits experlses

(iv) Depreciation and amortization t
87.26

3.29

87 .2_6

18.14

t,890.12
IV

(v) Othcr cxpcnses

Total Expenses
3,75L.32

14.85

(14.8s)

1 890.12

3,736.47

DELHI

\ I

{-

*

I,

I ta.azt-

\
\ 1p+)"



IIINDON MI]RCAN'I'II,It I,IMIl'8, I)
cIN 1I34300t)L1 9851'LC02 I 785
NOTES F-ORMING I'A IIl' OF 1'IIE CONSOI,IDA]'ITD I.-INANCIA I, S]-A'I'IIMI],N'I'S

Profit before exceptional items
and tax (III-IV) 418.19 418.19

VI Exceptional items

V]I Profit before tax (V-VI)
418.19 418.19

VIII Tax expense

1) Current tax
16 1.60 16 1.60

2) MA'l- credit 2

80.04
3) Tax related to earlier year

4) Deferred tax
18.40 18 40

IX Profit for the year (VII-VIII)
318.23 80.04 238.19

x Other Comprehensive fncome
A) i) Items that will not be
reclassified to profit or Ioss
ii) Income tax relating to items that
will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Sub Total A)

B) i) Items that will be reclassified
to profit or loss
ii) Income tax relating to items that
will be reclassified to profit or loss
Sub Total B)

Total Other Comprehensive
Income (A+B)

XI Total Comprehensive Income
for the vear (IX+X) 318.23 80.04 238.19

46.2.4 The Transition frorn Previous GAAP to Ind AS has no material adjustments on the Consolidatec
Statement of Caslr Flow except reclassification of certain items to confirm lnd AS presentation.

Note

1. Leases

The asset given on finance leases by the Group accounted as property, plant and equipment undcr
previous GAAP has been restated as loan. Accordingly, Lease rcnt and deprcciation accounted
under previous GAAP reversed and Intercst using EIR is accounted as Interest Incomc.

2. MAT credit entitlement adjusted from other equity

3, Classification of financial instruments.

The Group has cvaluated the facts and circumstanccs on date of transition to Ind AS for the purposc

ol classification and measurerncnt of financial assets/flinancial liabilitics. Accordingly, bifurcation ol
assets/liabilities as financial/non-financial is identif ied and rcclassified. Howcver, this
reclassification is not presented as t.ransition adjustments.
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4. Effective Interest Rate (EIR)

Uncjer Previous GAAP, Transaction costs charged to customers jncurrcd by the Group was

rccognized upfront while under Ind AS, such costs are included in the initial recognition anrouni of
financial asset/financial liability and recognized as intcrest income/interest expenses using the
effective interest rnc:thod.

5. Fair valuation for financial Assets and Liabilities.

The Group has valLrcr; financial asscls and liabilities, at. fair value and changes are recognized in
Consolidated Statenrent of Profit and Loss.

6. Retained Earnings.

Retalned Earnings have been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments

7, Expected Credit Loss.

Thc Group made estirnate ol irnpairment of Financial Asscts bascd cn expected creCiL Ioss model
in accordance witlr Ind AS at thc date of transition as these were not requircd under prcvious
GAAP.

47,There are no outstanding duers (including interest) of 'Micro'and'Small'Enterprises pursuant to
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSN4ED Act') as at March 31,2022
(lv'larch 3l,2O2l * Nil). Accordingly, no disclosures are required to be given under'MSNlED Act'.

48. Durirrg lhe year, provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 related to Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Activities is not applicable to the Group except Mufin Grcen Financc Llmited
(Forrncrly APM Finvest Limited) where section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 is applicablc but no
amount was required to be spend on CSR Activities during the year.

49. 'Reconciliation of Gross Carrying Amount of 'Loans and Expected Credit Loss on Loans
( before Inter-Company Adjustments)

A, Reconciliation of Gross Carrying Amount of Loans
Rs. in lakh-s

xincluding inter-cornpany, loan of Rs. 21.54 lakhs

B. Reconciliation of Expected Credit Loss on Loans
Its. in la

trarticulars As at
2422March 3 ril a rch *'t

109.4:-l 1 i-l.l:9
13.S8

On Amount written off l31.95
On Ncw Asscts originated or purclraserl 580,57

As at
2421

a

Particu la rs

Gross Carrying Amount at the beginning of the
vear

35t7O2.26

l\s at
March 3Lt 2022

As at
March 31,2021

4,1 80.9 3

Ncw Assets originated on date of acquisition of
subsidiaries

5,567.94

New Assets oriqinated or purchased 147,633.70
Transfers toi (from) Staqe 1 (3,620.36)
Transfers to/ (from) Stage 2 3r445.68

7 6,471".OA

(22.03)
( 1 08.94 )

Transfers to/ (from) Staqe 3 130.9,7
( 131.9 5 )

68t74
Assets written off
N(:t Recovery (L42,V46.3L) (44,817./2)

35,702.26Gross Carrying amount at the end of the year 46/155.99x

DELI.II

Expected Credit Loss at the beginning of the year
Expected CrediL Loss on date of acquisition of
subsidiarir:s
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144.99

*excluding amount of Rs. 8.48 Iakhs of lmpairment Reserve made on lo::ns as per [ieserve Uanl< of
lndia Vlaster Directior-r.

5O, Other Statutory information

Disclosure in terms of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

Net assets (i.e. Total assets Share in Profit or (loss) Share in other Share in total comprehensive
minus total liabi sive income

AsaY"ot
consolidated

net assets

Amount AsaY"of
consolidated
profit or loss

Amount AsaY" of
consolidated

tota I

comprehensive
income

income
AmountAsa%of Amount

consolidated
other

comprehensive
income

Pa rent
H i ndon

lvlorca ntilc
Li m itcd

101.49 6,982.52 L72.15 693.1.4 1.72.1.O 693.55

S u bsi dia ries
(lndia n)

Hi ndon

Acco u nt
Ailgregation
Sc rvi ccs

P rivatc
L.im ited

H i ndon

to
F inance

P rivatc
t im itcC

It4 uf in

Financc

Lim ited

?

(Forrncr iy

API\l Finvcst
Lim itcd)
(loss Minority
intcrcst in

subsidiary)

(lcss I ntcr-
G roup
climination)*

Total

141 .68

100.00

150. 1.O.1,2 0.02 0.12

P

Grcen

ecr
CCT

3.4i)

0.02 o.L2

231 .54 4.81 21 .65

10,160.80 1.91".77 1,0t38.19

(3, 45.57

35,18 0,19

(0.06)

4.87 71 .65

19t.62 r,08E 38

8.01(11 11) 45.5 1

( 104.s3) se)r 91.(7 (226.84) i1,281 .2t)

6,880.25 i00.00 567.46 100 00 563 00
*inciuding offset (elinrinatc) the parcnt's portion of equity of subsidiaries

51. The Consolidatcd Financial Statcments were appro\/€)d for issue by the tloard ol Direciors on Septenrber 30,

2022.

52. All amounts in the consolidated {inancial statements and notcs have bccn prcscntcd irr lndian Rupr:i:s in lakl's
rounded oI'f to two decimal places as permitted bv Schcdulc lll except per share data and as ot.herwi.;c stat.r:r:1.

Impact on Expected Credit Loss of Exposure transferred
between stages during the year

LL7,43

Increase/(decrease) in provision on financial assets(net
of recovery)

(466.8s) (24s.33)

Increase/(Decrease) in Expected Credit Loss
during the year

231.15 9 0.84

Expected Credit Loss at the end of the yearx 354.46 1 09.43

DELHIsd> V

15.93 0.41

(776.67) (1.,781 .)7)

(48..24)

\



IIINDON ME,ITCAN'I'ILI], I,IMII-IJI)
cIN U34300I)L1985I'LC02 1785

NOTI]S I'ORMING I'AIIl'O}''I'IIE CONSOI,IDA]'I],D ITINANCIAT, S]'A'I'I],MIIN]'S

Figures pertaining to the subsidiary companies have been reclassificd whcrever necessary to bring them in

line with the Conrpany's Financial statemcnts. Figures in bracl<ets represent corrr:sponCing prcv ous ycar
figures. Previous ycar figures have bcen regrouped / reclasslfied whcrevcr ncccssary including those as

requircd in kceping with revised schedule lll of thc Companies Act,2013.

As per our report of even date attached

For RSD & Co.
Cha rtered Acco r.r nta nts
Firm Rcgistration No. C12777N

Purnima Goel
Pa rtn er
Membership No. 526051

Place: Delhi
Dater September 3O, 2O22
tJDr N : 1L5L6ioS t 8Er DhFt 53 t I

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

U
Mayank Pratap SinEh
Company Secretary
Membership No.446666

Luv Khanna
Director
DIN: 07723426

q Director
0r7 16987
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